
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Graham Seal 

 
 
 

24 January 2020 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held on Monday 3 February 2020  at 7.30pm in the Council Chamber, 
Campus East, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 January 
2020 (previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

3.   PETITIONS  
 

 No petitions have been received for this meeting. 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 No questions from the public have been received for this meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack



5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items 
on the Agenda. 
 

6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of the Council, Member 
of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

7.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS  
 

 No questions by Members have been received for this meeting. 
 

8.   BUDGET PROPOSALS AND MEDIUM TERM FORECASTS 2020/21 (Pages 5 - 
156) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural 
Services) presenting to the Council the 2020/21 budget proposals for approval. 
 

9.   MATTERS ARISING FROM THE CABINET  
 

 To consider recommendations from the meeting of the Cabinet on 6 January 
2020:- 
 

(a)    Peartree Conservation Area (Pages 157 - 168) 
 

 Consideration of the designation of the Peartree area of Welwyn Garden 
City as a conservation area. 
 
(Note: Report attached.  Click link below item 7 for the Appendices:- 
Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel Agenda Pack on 17 December 
2019) 
 

(b)    Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan (Pages 169 - 174) 
 

 Submission of the Business Plan 2020-2050 setting out the Council’s 
strategic plan for managing its social housing stock. 
 
(Note: Report attached.  Click link below item 8c for the Appendix:- 
Cabinet Agenda Pack on - 6 January 2020) 
 

10.   PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2020/21 (Pages 175 - 188) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
seeking approval of the Council’s Pay Policy Statement for 2020/21. 
 
 
 

https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=977
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=266&MId=977
https://democracy.welhat.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=988


11.   NOTICES OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16  
 

 No notices of motions have been received for this meeting. 
 

12.   URGENT MATTERS  
 

 To consider any matters of urgency subject to the agreement of the Mayor in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 5.1(s). 
 

 
Circulation: The Mayor and Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Graham 
Seal, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Part I 
Item No: 8
Main authors:  Ka Ng and Richard Baker 
Executive Member: Cllr. Duncan Bell 
All Wards 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 3 FEBRUARY 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

Budget Proposals and Medium-Term Forecasts 2020/21 

1. Executive Summary

1.1. Following the consideration of the 2020/21 budget proposals at Cabinet on the 6 and 21 
January 2020, the purpose of this report is to present to Council the budget proposals 
for approval, specifically: 

• Revenue Budgets 2020/21

• Capital Programme 2020/21 – 2024/25

• Use of Reserves 2020/21

• Fees and Charges for 2020/21

• Medium Term Strategy and Governance Framework 2020/21 – 2022/23

1.2. The budget was considered by Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee (ROSC) 
on 8 January 2020. Recommendations made by ROSC were presented to Special 
Cabinet on 21 January 2020, and the outcome of these recommendations have been 
included in this report (3.1.9 onwards).  

1.3. The recent Peer Review report commented positively on how the council has managed 
our finances and that the council is in a strong financial position and has a proven track 
record of delivering savings.  Officers have followed up the recommendation from the 
Peer Review that baseline budget should be reset in order to release savings and this is 
summarised in this report. 

1.4. The 2020/21 budget proposals and the updated Medium Term Financial Forecasts have 
been produced to ensure that the Council maintains a sustainable financial position over 
the planning period to 2022/23. The following Council strategies and policies have 
informed the budget-setting process: 

• The Council's Vision and Priorities, as stated in the Business Plan

• The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

• The Housing Revenue Account 30 year Business Plan

• Service Strategies and Plans

1.5. The Corporate Management Team and Cabinet have met to review and monitor 
emerging budget proposals throughout the budget preparation period.  A budget briefing 
was held with Members highlighting some of the key issues and pressures that the 
council is facing in the medium term.   

Page 5

Agenda Item 8



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

1.6. It should be noted that the Council has not yet received Final Settlement, and that any 
changes made by the Government between the Provisional Settlement received and 
Final Settlement, will be accounted for as part of the Councils budget monitoring process 
for 2020/21. 

 
1.7. This covering report provides members with the details of key assumptions and updates, 

and is supported by the following appendices: 
 

  General Fund 

• Appendix A – General Fund Summary 2020/21 

• Appendix B – General Fund Head of Service Summaries 2020/21 

• Appendix C – General Fund Savings Summary 2020/21 – 2022/23 

• Appendix D – General Fund Growth Summary 2020/21 – 2022/23 

• Appendix E – General Fund Fees and Charges 2020/21 
 
 Housing Revenue Account 

• Appendix F – Housing Revenue Account Summary 2020/21 

• Appendix G – Housing Revenue Account Summary of Changes 2020/21  

• Appendix H – Housing Revenue Account Fees and Charges 2020/21 
 
 Capital Programme 

• Appendix I– Capital Programme 2020/21 – 2024/25 

• Appendix J – Capital Financing Summary 2020/21 – 2024/25 

• Appendix K – Capital Reserves Summary 2020/21 – 2024/25 
 
 Medium Term Financial Strategy and Governance Framework  

• Appendix L – Medium Term Financial Strategy and Governance Framework 
2020/21 – 2022/23 

 
Other Items 

• Appendix M – Special Expenses 2020/21 

• Appendix N – Statement of the Chief Financial Officer 
 

1.8. The local government financial position remains unclear beyond the 2020/21 budget.  In 
particular, the council’s funding position will be impacted by the future Spending Review,  
fair funding review and further reform of the business rates retention system, the 
outcomes of which are unknown at this stage.  
 

2. Recommendations 
 
2.1. That Council note the recommendations from Cabinet, and the Statement of the Chief 

Financial Officer on the robustness of budgets and adequacy of reserves (appendix N) 
 

2.2. That Council also note that the following amounts for the year 2020/21 have been set in 
accordance with regulations made under Sections 31A and 31B of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 as agreed by Cabinet on 6 January 2020: 

 
 
 
 

Page 6



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

  
100% 

TAXBASE 
99.40% 

TAXBASE 

      

Welwyn Garden City 17,603.1 17,497.5 

Hatfield 11,861.7 11,790.5 

Welwyn 4,692.4 4,664.2 

Ayot St Lawrence 69.6 69.2 

Ayot St Peter 115.4 114.7 

North Mymms 4,417.7 4,391.2 

Essendon 435.5 432.9 

Northaw &Cuffley 3088.5 3,070.0 

Woolmer Green 563.2 559.8 

  
  

Total 42,847.1 42,590.0 

 
2.3. That Council approve the following budget proposals: 
 
2.4. General Fund  
 
2.4.1. The proposed General Fund Budget as summarised in Appendix A, and detailed in 

appendix B. 
 
2.4.2. The inclusion of the savings and growth proposals into the budget as detailed in 

appendices C and D. 
 

2.4.3. The 2020/21 fees and charges which have been incorporated into the budget proposals, 
as set out in appendix E. 
 

2.4.4. The increase in the Council’s Band D Tax of £3.15 (1.49%), taking the average Band D 
Tax to £214.92 for 2020/21. 

 
2.4.5. That £100k is added to the Climate Change earmarked reserve from the 2020/21 

budget, the expenditure of which will be delegated to Corporate Director (Resources, 
Environment and Cultural Services) and Corporate Director (Planning, Public Protection 
and Governance) in consultation with Executive Member for Resources, the Executive 
Member for Governance, Public Health and Climate Change, and the Cross Party 
Climate Change Member Group.  

 
2.4.6. That £1.2m is added to the Pensions earmarked reserve from the 2020/21 budget. This 

is to help the Council meet its potential pensions liability in year three of the proposed 
medium term financial strategy. The current balance reserve will be used towards an 
additional payment to the fund in 2019/20 as required by the pensions actuary. 

 
2.4.7. That £25k is added to a new earmarked reserve for youth service, and the expenditure 

of which will be delegated to Corporate Management Team, in consultation with the 
Leader and Executive Member for Resources.  

 
2.4.8. That the Budget Priority and Transformation earmarked reserve is renamed as 

Modernisation reserve and that authority for the expenditure is delegated to the 
Modernisation Board (Chief Executive, Corporate Directors and Corporate 

Page 7



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Modernisation Lead) in consultation with the Leader and Executive Member for 
Resources. 

 
2.4.9. The Special Expenses Scheme as set out in section 3.5 of this report continue into 

2020/21, and the Special Expenses detailed in Appendix M be approved for inclusion in 
setting the Council Tax for 2020/21. 

 
2.5. Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  

 
2.5.1. That dwelling rents are increased by CPI+1% in accordance with Government 

legislation, resulting in an average rent of £106.16 per week. 
 

2.5.2. The continuation of the policy to charge formula rent when vacant properties are re-let.  
 
2.5.3. The Housing Revenue Account budget for 2020/21 as shown in appendix F. 
 
2.5.4. The 2020/21 fees and charges which have been incorporated into the budget proposals, 

as set out in appendix H. 
 

2.5.5. The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) to maintain HRA working balances to 
around 5% of rental income.  

 
2.6. Capital Programme 

 
2.6.1. The Capital Programme for 2020/21 to 2024/25 as set out in Appendix I.  

 
2.6.2. The Capital Financing for the Capital Programme, for 2020/21 to 2024/25 as set out in 

Appendix J, and note the forecast capital balances in Appendix K.  
 
2.7. Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 
2.7.1. The Medium-Term Financial Strategy and Financial Governance Framework, including 

all annexes and prudential indicators for 2020/21 – 2022/23 as set out in appendix L. 
 
 
3. Explanation 

 
3.1. General Fund Revenue Account 
 
3.1.1. The Government announced a four-year settlement in 2016/17, which provided some 

certainty to local government on our grant levels up until 2019/20.  Subsequently, the 
Government announced a one-year Spending Round in early September to cover 20/21 
only and that a further Spending Review will be announced during 2020 for future years. 
 

3.1.2. The Council potentially continues to face a decline in the grant income from central 
government, and funding for services is increasingly being derived from local funding 
(i.e. Council Tax, Business Rates and charges for services); at the same time local 
demand on Council services has increased. 

 
3.1.3. The requirement to set a balanced budget demands a stringent process to deliver 

efficiencies, preserve as far as possible the quality of front line services, and retain the 
ability to generate income and to recognise the increasing demand on key services.  

Page 8



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 
3.1.4. The proposed net cost of services budget for 2020/21 totals £13.865m and is £0.134m 

(1%) lower than the 2019/20 original budget of £14.000m.  The movement between 
years is summarised in the following table. 

 

 £'000 
2019/20 Original Budget 14,000  
Less:  2019/20 fixed-term growth (70) 
Add: 2020/21 fixed term growth 100  
Add: 2020/21 ongoing growth 205 
Less: 2020/21 efficiencies (1,104) 
Add: Inflation and other changes 703 
Less: Recharge to HRA 31 
2020/21 Original Budget 13,865 

 
3.1.5. A breakdown of savings and growth are included in appendices C and D, and are also 

detailed in the reconciliation of controllable expenditure in the Head of Service 
summaries in appendix B. 
 

3.1.6. Whilst budget proposals are firm for the net cost of services, the Council awaits 
confirmation on a number of areas that may impact on the overall position: 

 

• At the time of writing, the council awaits the final settlement confirmation for 2020/21, 
which is expected to be announced in February.  
 

• Parish Precept proposals, although these changes will have a net nil impact on the 
summary shown in appendix A.  

 
 Baseline reset 
 
3.1.7. Following a positive outturn on the 2018/19 financial position, and as recommended by 

the Peer Review, the Finance team have led on resetting the baseline position.  In 
particular, an exercise has been undertaken to cap expenditure budgets, or increase 
income budgets, using the past three years of financial outturn data. 
 

3.1.8. This exercise has proved to be very successful, generating around £800k of efficiencies.  
 
Recommendations from 8 January 2020 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
3.1.9. The budget was considered by Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee (ROSC) 

on 8 January 2020. Two recommendations were made to 21 January Special Cabinet.  
 

3.1.10. The first was that Cabinet increase Council set fees and charges annually in future 
years. This is to avoid council set fees and charges falling behind the market rates and 
general inflation, which can lead to sudden large increases at irregular intervals. In 
response to this, Cabinet noted that this is similar to the approach adopted for the 
2020/21 fees and charges setting process and would broadly agree with ROSC’s 
recommendation going forward.  

 
3.1.11. The second recommendation was that Cabinet consider making a budgetary provision 

for more youth diversionary services to reduce anti-social behaviour. 

Page 9



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

3.1.12. Cabinet considered this recommendation and whilst it was recognised that an Anti-
Social Behaviour Scrutiny Sub-Committee has been set up to look at the provision of 
youth activities available for residents and actions to reduce anti-social behaviour, it was 
agreed by Cabinet to amend the proposed 20/21 budget to set up a Youth Service  
earmarked reserve. 

  
 Climate Change 

 
3.1.13. In light of the council’s commitment to Climate Change, the 20/21 budget has set aside 

£100k (in addition to the £50k added to the 19/20 budget) to be used on climate change 
initiatives. 

 
 Funding Settlement  
 
3.1.14. The Government announced that it would be providing a one year settlement for 

Councils, rather than a multi year settlement. It also confirmed delays to the various 
funding reviews until 2021/22, such as the fair funding review and business rates 
retention review. This was due to priority being given to the UK’s exit from the EU.  
 

3.1.15. The details of this one year settlement have been delayed due to the general election 
and the Provisional Settlement was eventually announced on 20 December.  The key 
points to note are: 

 

• Removal of negative Revenue Support Grant for 20/21; 

• Hertfordshire Business Rates Pool has been accepted, which includes Hertfordshire 
County Council, Hertsmere, North Herts, Stevenage, Three Rivers, Welwyn Hatfield.  
Any member authority will have any option to withdraw within 28 days of the 
Provisional Settlement, if this is the case, the whole Pool will fall; 

• New Homes Bonus Grant - the national growth baseline for payments will remain at 
0.4% for 20/21, however as indicated in the previous consultation, there will be no 
legacy payment associated with the 2020/21 grant award.  The government will 
consult on the future of New Homes Bonus in the spring of 2020. 

• Council Tax referendum limit for Shire Districts is up to 2% or £5, whichever is greater 
 
3.1.16. Although the Government has set a baseline level of income for Business Rates, the 

amount of funding received will depend on the actual amount billed for Business Rates 
which will be influenced by other factors including the collection rate, business growth 
across the District and the provision for successful appeals.  

 
 New Homes Bonus 
 
3.1.17. The Council will receive £1.028m New Homes Bonus grant in 2020/21 and 70% of the 

income will be used to support base budget expenditure.   
 

 Collection Fund  
  
3.1.18. The Council’s Council Tax requirement for 2020/21 is calculated as £9.153m (exclusive 

of parish precepts). The proposed taxbase for 2020/21 is 42,590.0. 
  

3.1.19. The income due from Council Tax goes into the Collection Fund. Throughout the year 
the actual number of properties (as well as allowances for exemptions, discounts or 

Page 10



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

appeals) inevitably varies from the figure estimated at the start of the year. This leads 
to a change in the amount of Council Tax due, and therefore a surplus or deficit on the 
Collection Fund.   
 

3.1.20. For 2019/20 there is a small forecast deficit position on the council tax element of the 
Collection Fund.  This deficit on the collection fund is shared between the Major 
Preceptors, i.e. the County, the Police Authority and the Borough, in proportion to their 
precepts for the year.   

 
3.1.21. The proportion of the small deficit that each of the Major Preceptors will contribute to the 

Collection Fund when calculating the Council Tax for 2020/21 is as follows:  
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council £6,544.56 

Hertfordshire County Council £33,076.50 

Hertfordshire Police & Crime Commissioner (£52.77) 

Total Deficit £39,568.29 

 
3.1.22. The Localism Act 2011 abolished Council Tax capping in England and instead allows 

local residents to reverse ‘excessive’ Council Tax increases by means of referendum. 
The Government has set the 2020/21 referendum threshold for district Council’s at the 
higher of £5 or 2%. The proposed increase of 1.49% for Welwyn Hatfield in 2020/21 is 
therefore within the threshold, and below the rate of inflation.  

  
3.1.23. A provisional figure of £1.465m has been included in the budget for a deficit on the 

Business Rates element of the collection fund. This figure will be refined mid-January, 
on the completion of the Councils NNDR1 return. This deficit is mainly from 2018/19 
appeals, was reported as part of the closure of accounts for that year, and funds set 
aside in an earmarked reserve to fund this deficit.  
 

3.1.24. The total provisional Collection Fund deficit (for both Council Tax and Business rates) 
totals £1.472m as shown in appendix A. 

 
 Budget Assumptions 
 
3.1.25. The 2020/21 budget proposals include the following key assumptions: 
 

Employee Costs 2.7% general pay inflation. Actual increases will 
depend on national pay negotiations* 
18.3% of employer pay as contribution to the 
pension fund  
3% Vacancy factor 

Contractual Inflation Inflation has been included in line with agreed 
contractual indices, mostly RPI or RPIX 

Utilities Inflation has been included in line with agreed 
contractual indices 

Fees and Charges Maximised where possible in line with the Fees 
and Charges Strategy. Proposed fees and charges 
are set out in appendix E 

Council Tax 1.49% increase for 2020/21, which is lower than 
inflation, which was 2.1% at October 2019. 

 

Page 11



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 Reserves 
 
3.1.26. It is important that the Council maintains a reasonable level of reserves to cushion 

against unanticipated budget pressures.  The Council holds two types of reserve:  
  

• Working balances, which are required as a contingency against unforeseen 
events, and to ensure that the Council has sufficient funds available to meet its 
cash flow requirements. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Section 
151 Officer to report on the adequacy of financial reserves when setting the 
General Fund budget requirement for the year.  

  

• Earmarked reserves, which are funds approved by Members to finance specific 
items of future expenditure. The Council’s Financial Regulations dictate that 
Earmarked Reserves can be created only with Member approval, and that all 
subsequent transfers to and from those reserves also require Member approval.   

 
3.1.27. The following table shows a summary of the earmarked reserves held, and the 

explanation for holding these reserves, along with the forecast closing balances at the 
end of each financial year. 

 
Earmarked 
Reserve 

Purpose of Reserve 
31 March 

2019 
31 March 

2020 
31 March 

2021 

    £'000 £'000 £'000 

Strategic 
For use of one-off specific projects 
and fixed term growth directly 
delivering corporate objectives. 

1,562  1,328  1,363  

Modernisation 
reserve 

For use on modernisation and 
transformation projects. 

1,333  1,333  1,333  

Resources 
To manage volatility in Business 
Rates income and changes to the 
Business Rates funding. 

3,148  1,535  70  

Pensions 
reserve 

This reserve is necessary to help 
mitigate the impact of additional 
costs arising in the triennial review 
cycle 

1,047  0  1,200 

Head of 
Service 
Reserves 

These reserves are set aside for 
emergency property works or 
uninsured losses and other risks 
emerging through the years 

776  352 352 

Grants 
Reserves 

These reserves set aside grants 
received for specific purposes 
which will fund future expenditure 

718  662  662  

Youth Service 
To fund youth diversionary 
services in order to reduce anti-
social behaviour 

0 0 25 

Climate 
Change 
Reserve 

Following the Council declaring a 
climate change emergency, this 
reserve is being set up to support 
its strategy and action plan. 

0 50 150 

Total Earmarked Reserves 8,584  5,260 5,155 

Page 12



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 
 

3.1.28. The Council’s MTFS recommends a minimum working balance of £2.6m. This budget 
proposal leaves a balance of £6.949m in working balances, above the requirements of 
the MTFS. 
 

3.1.29. The Council’s Section 151 Officer has reviewed the reserve position and advises that 
the current anticipated balances, together with the Council’s plans for addressing the 
on-going and increasing budget gap, are adequate to ensure continued financial 
sustainability and a protection against unforeseen events.  

 
CIPFA Financial Management Code 

 
3.1.30. In light of the tightening fiscal landscape and the financial pressures that local authorities 

are under, CIPFA has published a Financial Management Code in October 2019 to 
assist local authorities to build sound financial management across the organisation.   

 
3.1.31. It should be noted that the council has received very positive feedback from the Peer 

Review in terms of the management of our finances and that the council has always 
received a clean bill of health with no issues highlighted in the value for money 
assessment carried out by our External Audit. 

 
3.1.32. The Financial Management Code is part of a series of packages put together by CIPFA 

that support local authorities in building a financially sustainable future.  The package 
also includes a measure called Financial Resilience Index, which is designed to support 
and improve discussions surrounding local authority financial resilience.  The index 
shows a council’s performance against a range of measures associated with financial 
risk. 

 
3.1.33. The index analyses council finances using a suite of nine indicators including level of 

reserves, rate of depletion of reserves, external debt, and auditor value for money 
assessments.  There is a key focus on the level of reserves available and also how 
rapidly are they being drawdown to support the council’s expenditure.  In light of the 
Northamptonshire case, the level of reserves is a key measure viewed by CIPFA of the 
council’s financial sustainability level.  

 
3.1.34. For Welwyn Hatfield, none of the indicators show that Welwyn Hatfield is at major risk 

of financial stress and officers will continue to work with External Audit as the financial 
resilience index is likely to influence the focus of their audit. 

 
3.2. Housing Revenue Account Budgets 

 
3.2.1. The budget and 30-year forecasts have been prepared on the basis of the following high 

level principles, as detailed in the Council’s 30 Year HRA business plan: 
 

• The Council will continue to maintain existing stock to at least decent homes 
standard. 
 

• The Council will aim to maintain stock levels at around 9,000 dwellings. 
 

Page 13



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

• The Council will continue with the Affordable Housing Programme, to fully make 
use of the retained right to buy receipts available to it. 
 

• The Council will continue to take a balanced approach to reducing its level of 
Housing debt, whilst ensuring some flexibility is maintained for any future 
legislative or policy changes. 

 
3.2.2. The budget proposal for 2020/21 is a small deficit on the HRA of £0.149m, with working 

balances forecast at £2.640m at the end of 2020/21. The closing position on the working 
balances equates to 5% of rental turnover and is within the range of 5%-15% considered 
to be best practice.  
 

3.2.3. Key changes to the budget are set out in Appendix G. 
 

3.2.4. The Council’s current plans for the HRA, and forecast borrowing, are affordable in the 
medium to longer which will be shown in the 30-year Business Plan. 

 
 Rent Setting 
   
3.2.5. As detailed in previous budget reports, the Government announced in 2015, a statutory 

requirement for Local Authorities to reduce rents by 1% for the financial years 2016/17 
to 2019/20. The 2019/20 budget was the final year of this rent reduction period. 
 

3.2.6. On the 4th October 2017, the Government confirmed its intention to end the rent 
reduction policy after the fourth year, by stating that “increases to social housing rents 
will be limited to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) plus 1% for 5 years from 2020”. 

 
3.2.7. The proposed 2020/21 includes increases of CPI +1%. In line with rent standards, CPI 

was used from September 2019, which stood at 1.7%, taking the increase in rents to 
2.7%. 
 

3.2.8. The introduction of the rent reduction policy, saw not only a reduction in the income for 
the HRA, but also meant an end to rent convergence. This means that neighbouring 
tenants, with identical properties, could be paying different rent levels. The legislation 
did not allow the Council to make changes to current tenancies in order to continue with 
convergence.  

 
3.2.9. The Council may however, change rent levels on when a property becomes vacant, and 

re-let these at the target rent level. In order for the Council to maximise the income from 
its assets, and to continue to work towards a fair approach for tenants, it is 
recommended that the Council continue with the policy to move to formula rent when 
vacant properties are re-let. 

 
 Universal Credit 
 
3.2.10. On 6 December 2017, Universal Credit was rolled out in the Borough for new single 

claimants, working age claimants with less than three children, and current claimants in 
these categories will be migrated where there is a change of circumstances. 
 

3.2.11. Based on feedback from other Local Authorities, there is evidence that the Council may 
see an increase in current rent arrears levels. It is expected that this initial increase will 

Page 14



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

be followed by a plateau in arrears levels, creating a new baseline for the rent arrears 
performance. 
 

3.2.12. An exercise was undertaken before the start of 2019/20 to review the provision for bad 
debts budget in the HRA in light of these changes.  Monitoring during 2019/20 has not 
highlighted any need to further change these budgets. 

 
 30 Year HRA Business Plan 
 
3.2.13. Key assumptions used in the 2020/21 budget, and being incorporated into the business 

plan are: 
 

Budget Assumptions 

  

Pay award 2.7% for 2020/21 

Pensions and NI Current rates included, no assumptions for increases 
or reductions 

Rents CPI plus 1% for five years from 2020/21, the CPI 

CPI 2.5% (for year 2 onwards) 

RPI 3.5% (for year 2 onwards) 

Working Balance Minimum 5% of turnover 

Major Repairs Reserve Fully utilised each year to reduce borrowing 
requirement and avoid additional borrowing costs 

Right to Buy 32 each year, reducing over the life of the business 
plan 

Affordable Housing 
Programme 

Continuation of the Council’s existing programme and 
one for one replacement of units disposed though right 
to buy 

 
3.3. Capital Programme 
 
3.3.1. The Capital Programme has been structured to enable delivery of the Council's 

Business Plan and the HRA Business Plan over the medium to long term. The 
Programme includes all of the capital schemes within both the General Fund and the 
Housing Revenue for 2020/21 to 2024/25, and is detailed in appendix I. The financing 
of the programme is shown in appendix J.  A forecast of the Council’s Capital Reserves 
and Grant Balances is included in appendix K. 
 

3.3.2. The Capital Programme continues to deliver the council’s ambition to regeneration our 
town centres, improvement in our housing stocks as well as the affordable housing 
programme.  The council is in the process of setting up a housing company and a 
business case will be presented to Cabinet in the future. 

 
3.3.3. The Council complies with the Prudential Code for controlling Local Government Capital 

Finance, and the Budget for 2020/21 has been prepared in the context of these plans 
and controls. The key objectives of the Code are to ensure that: 

 

• Capital Investment Plans are affordable, prudent, and sustainable; 

• All external borrowings and other long-term liabilities are within prudent and 
sustainable levels; 

Page 15



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

• Treasury Management decisions are taken in accordance with good practice and 
in a manner that supports prudency, affordability and sustainability; and, 

• The Council is accountable for its decisions. 
 
3.4. Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 
3.4.1. The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and Financial Governance Framework, 

detailed in appendix L, sets out the Council’s strategy for maintaining financial 
sustainability and a commitment to provide the best possible value for money for the 
community.  It also provides a framework for the Council to plan and manage its 
resources over the current Comprehensive Spending Review period in order to meet 
the Council’s overall corporate objectives. 
 

3.4.2. The Council is currently in a good overall financial position with general fund revenue 
reserves (non earmarked) estimated at £8.546m at the start of 2020/21 and a housing 
revenue account (HRA) balance of £2.8m.  This is a direct result of robust financial 
management and a prolonged period of achieving efficiencies to balance the budget as 
government funding has reduced.   
 

3.4.3. However, in line with other local authorities, the Council is facing further severe financial 
constraints as central government grants continue to reduce.  At the same time the 
demand on some of the Council’s services continue to grow and further responsibilities 
will be transferred from central government. 
 

3.4.4. In line with Government expectations, the Council aims to be more self-sufficient, with 
less reliance on Government Grants and more reliance on local income streams and 
taxation.  
 

3.4.5. Forecasts suggest the Council is required to find a further £1.9m of savings on the 
general fund by 2022/23 in order to live within its means and maintain a reasonable 
cushion in reserves. This is a significant challenge and whilst the focus remains on 
safeguarding services it may not be possible to find efficiencies of this magnitude and 
guarantee no impact upon frontline services. 
 

3.4.6. The MTFS has been written at a time of unprecedented uncertainty in local government 
funding.  In particular, this is dependent upon the outcome of the Spending Review, Fair 
Funding Review and 75% Business Rates Retention system, and a full reset of all the 
mechanisms within the business rates system.  Forecasting the Council’s likely level of 
income over the next three years has required a large degree of judgement and 
estimation.   
 

3.4.7. The Government has also announced further proposed changes to the New Homes 
Bonus scheme and there is work continuing on the fundamental review of the Local 
Government funding regime.   

 
3.4.8. There remain a number of uncertainties and risks to the Council’s finances in the 

medium term, the details of which are contained within this strategy.  The Council will 
continue to experience pressure on services arising from demographic and government 
policy changes and continued high expectations of service delivery.   

 

Page 16



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

3.4.9. The capital forecasts and strategies contained within the MTFS, give a high-level 
overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity 
contribute to the provision of local public services along with an overview of how 
associated risk is managed and the implications for future financial sustainability 

 
3.4.10. In accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of 

Practice 2017 and MHCLG guidance on local authority investments, the Council is 
required to have a Treasury Management Strategy, a copy of the 2020/21 strategy is 
contained within the MTFS and Financial Governance Framework. 
 

3.4.11. Limits on longer term investments are proposed to be reduced, in line with the Council’s 
forecast of reducing cash balances due to an ambitious capital programme use of both 
internal and external borrowing.  
 

3.4.12. The Strategy takes into account the all of the Council’s capital and revenue forecasts, 
and reserve balances as set out in this report. It seeks to protect the balances held by 
the Council whilst generating a return, minimise borrowing costs where possible, and 
determines the borrowing and lending strategies. 

 
3.5. Special Expenses 

 
3.5.1 In 1994/95, the Council, in agreement with Town and Parish Councils, introduced a 

scheme of Special Expenses, whereby some of the expenses of the Council, are 
charged specially to certain parts of the Borough. These areas of expenditure include 
open spaces, playing fields, community centres, allotments and public conveniences. 

 
3.5.2 The calculation takes the cost of providing these items of expenditure, and apportions 

the costs to the specific areas where the expenditure is incurred.  
 
3.5.3 The recommendation is to continue with this scheme, and the methodology previously 

agreed for the calculation of the Special Expenses. 
 
3.5.4 The proposed amount included in the budget for special expenses is £578,059.69. 

Details of this expenditure, and an apportionment to the specific areas, is included in 
appendix M for approval. 

 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1. Financial implications are contained in the recommendations and explanations to this 

report. 
 
5. Link to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1. The Council’s budget proposals directly support all of the Council’s Corporate Priorities. 
 
6. Legal Implication(s) 

 
6.1. The Council is required by the Local Government Finance Act 1992 to make estimates 

of gross revenue expenditure and anticipated income, leading to a calculation of a budget 
requirement and the setting of an overall budget and Council Tax.  The amount of the 
budget requirement must be sufficient to meet the Council’s legal and financial 
obligations, ensure the proper discharge of its statutory duties, and lead to a balanced 

Page 17



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

budget.  The Council should be satisfied that the proposals put forward are a reasonably 
prudent use of resources in both the short and long term, and that the interests of both 
Council Tax payers and ratepayers on the one hand and the users of Council services 
on the other are both taken into account. 
 

6.2. Sub-section (1) provides that authorities may “…make such reasonable charges…. as 
they may determine”. This section should be considered with regard to section 76 of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989. This act put a duty on local housing authorities 
to prevent a debit balance arising in their HRA and also imposed ring-fence restrictions 
on the use of the account. It is not possible for a local housing authority to subsidise 
rents from its general fund, or use HRA resources for non-specified activities. 
 

6.3. The MTFS sets out the framework for setting future budgets and levels of Council Tax. 
Members are reminded that Council must take into account the advice of the Corporate 
Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) (Chief Finance Officer) on the 
robustness of future budget proposals and the adequacy of the proposals for reserves. 
The Council has a legal duty to set a lawfully balanced budget. 
 

6.4. The MTFS sets out how the Council will fulfil its Best Value Duty to make arrangements 
to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  In doing so the MTFS 
also acknowledges the Duty to Consult representatives of a wide range of local persons.  

  
6.5. The Treasury Management Strategy and prudential indictors have been produced in line 

with the Local Government Act 2003, and with regards to Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 which states that “every local authority shall make arrangements 
for the proper administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their 
officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs.” 

 
6.6. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Financial Officer to 

make a formal report to the Council on the robustness of the budget and the adequacy 
of reserves (Appendix N). 

 
7. Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 
 
7.1. There are no implications for security and terrorism arising from this report.   
 
8. Procurement Implication(s) 
 
8.1. There are no direct procurement implications arising from this report. 
 
9. Climate Change Implication(s) 
 
9.1. The additional contribution to reserve proposed will help the Council to deliver climate 

change strategic actions. 
 

10.  Human Resources Implication(s) 
 
10.1. There are no direct Human Resources arising from this report. 
 
11. Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 
 

Page 18



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

11.1. A press release and TeamTalk Budget special is being prepared and will be published 
along side the budget report. 

 
12. Risk Management Implications 
 
12.1. The budget is an important part of the Council’s risk management process. There are 

always considerable risks to the council’s short and medium-term budget strategies 
including inflation, changes in the national economy, expenditure exceeding budgets, 
operational pressures on existing budgets, reductions in grant and legislative changes 
that require new spend. The budget setting process includes the recognition of these 
risks in determining the 2020/21 budget and relevant risk provisions are set out in the 
body of the report. 
 

12.2. A working balance is maintained for both revenue accounts to cushion against known 
and unknown financial risks. Risk management in the financial context is set out in the 
Medium-Term Financial Strategy set out in appendix L. 

 
 
 
13. Equality and Diversity 
 
13.1. In developing individual budget proposals officers have, in line with the Equality Act 2010, 

completed assessments on any proposals which are likely to affect some groups with 
protected characteristics more than others. 

 
 
Name of author Ka Ng and Richard Baker 
Title Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 

and Head of Resources 
Date 23 January 2020 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A Summary

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL

General Fund Proposed Budget 2020/21

Description

Original 

Budget 

2019/20

Period 6

Forecast 

Outturn

2019/20

Proposed 

Budget 

2020/21

Year on 

year  

variance

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Head of Resources 2,172 1,954 2,210 38 
Head of Environment 6,456 6,464 6,468 13 
Head of Policy and Culture 1,808 1,879 1,568 (239)

Subtotal - Corporate Director

(Resources, Environment & Cultural Services) 10,435 10,297 10,247 (188)

Head of Law and Administration 2,054 2,155 2,042 (12)
Head of Planning 1,817 2,052 1,830 12 
Head of Public Health and Protection 1,183 1,136 1,165 (18)

Subtotal - Corporate Director 

(Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 5,054 5,342 5,037 (17)

Head of Community & Housing Strategy 2,089 2,185 2,199 110 
Subtotal - Corporate Director 

(Housing and Communities) 2,089 2,185 2,199 110 
Corporate Management Team Budgets 1,737 1,522 1,668 (69)
Net Controllable Income and Expenditure 19,315 19,347 19,150 (165)

Net Recharge to the Housing Revenue Account (5,316) (5,322) (5,285) 31 
Net General Fund Expenditure 14,000 14,025 13,865 (134)

Taxation and non-specific grant income

Income from Council Tax (10,498) (10,498) (10,855) (357)
Business Rates Income (4,628) (4,628) (4,908) (280)
Collection fund deficit/(surplus) 2,792 1,686 1,472 (1,320)
New Homes Bonus Grant (1,319) (1,319) (1,028) 291 
Other Operating Income and Expenditure

Less Interest & Investment Income 0 0 (30) (30)
Minimum Revenue Provision and finance leases 814 814 1,131 317 
Borrowing Interest 0 0 378 378 
Revenue Contribution to Capital 324 717 0 (324)
Parish Precepts 1,627 1,627 1,701 74 
Net Total before movements in reserves 3,112 2,424 1,728 (1,384)

Other Movements in reserves

Contribution (from) / to Earmarked Reserves in 

relation to Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit (2,720) (1,613) (1,465) 1,255 
Other Contributions (from) / to Earmarked Reserves (297) (711) 37 334 
Contribution from GF Balances Before Pensions 

and Climate Change Contributions (95) (100) (299) (204)

Contribution to Pension Fund Earmarked Reserve 0 0 1,200 1,200 

Contribution to Youth Service Reserve 0 0 25 25 
Contribution to Climate Change Reserve 0 50 100 100 
Total Contribution from GF Balances (95) (150) (1,624) (1,529)

Key of variance column = (Decrease in expenditure/increase in income), Increase in 

expenditure/reduction in income

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Director and Head of Service Summaries - Budget 2020/21 Appendix B
Corporate Director (Resources, Environment & Cultural Services)

Head of Resources

Description

Original 

Budget 

2019/20

Period 6

Forecast 

Outturn

2019/20

Original 

Budget 

2020/21

Year on 

Year 

Variance

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 3,638 3,529 3,823 184 
Premises Related 1,830 1,917 1,867 37 

Transport Related 42 33 39 (3)
Supplies and Services 1,149 1,283 1,140 (9)
Third Party Payments 4,388 4,353 4,982 594 
Transfer Payments 36,270 28,362 28,323 (7,947)
Income (45,145) (37,524) (37,965) 7,180 
Controllable Costs 2,172 1,954 2,210 38 

Analysis of Controllable Costs
£ '000

2,172 

100 

31 

(20)
(288)

166 
36 
(1)
13 

2,210 

Salary changes (including pay awards, increments and superannuation)
Contract inflation
Budget virements
Capital salaries

Original Budget 2020/21

Original Budget 2019/20

Add 2020/21 fixed term Growth

Inflation and other changes

Conditions Survey (year 1 of 1)

Housing Benefit Grant reductions

Estates Income
Budget reset following Peer Challenge

Add 2020/21  Growth

Less 2020/21  Efficiencies/savings

Page 23



Director and Head of Service Summaries - Budget 2020/21 Appendix B
Corporate Director (Resources, Environment & Cultural Services)

Head of Environment

Description

Original 

Budget 

2019/20

Period 6

Forecast 

Outturn

2019/20

Original 

Budget 

2020/21

Year on 

Year 

Variance

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,105 1,142 1,220 115 
Premises Related 501 477 510 9 

Transport Related 26 20 20 (6)
Supplies and Services 392 479 792 399 
Third Party Payments 8,131 8,172 7,788 (343)
Income (3,699) (3,826) (3,861) (161)
Controllable Costs 6,456 6,464 6,468 13 

Analysis of Controllable Costs
£ '000

6,456 

50 
50 

(206)
(8)

(35)

25 
144 

(1)
(7)

6,468 

Original Budget 2019/20

Add 2020/21  Growth

Salary changes (including pay awards, increments and superannuation)
Contract inflation

Parking Services Officer
Reduction in Alternative Financial Model (Landfill reduction) funding

Budget reset following Peer Challenge
Street Naming and Numbering - increase in fees
Car park & season ticket fees - increase in fees

Budget virements
Capital salaries

Original Budget 2020/21

Less 2020/21  Efficiencies/savings

Inflation and other changes

Page 24



Director and Head of Service Summaries - Budget 2020/21 Appendix B
Corporate Director (Resources, Environment & Cultural Services)

Head of Policy and Culture

Description

Original 

Budget 

2019/20

Period 6

Forecast 

Outturn

2019/20

Original 

Budget 

2020/21

Year on 

Year 

Variance

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,663 1,687 1,692 30 
Premises Related 930 916 972 42 

Transport Related 2 2 2 (0)
Supplies and Services 1,414 1,512 1,331 (83)
Third Party Payments 311 311 136 (174)
Income (2,512) (2,548) (2,565) (53)
Controllable Costs 1,808 1,879 1,568 (239)

Analysis of Controllable Costs

£ '000

1,808 

(50)

54
6 

(245)
(87)

6 
52 
24 

1,568 

Original Budget 2019/20

Less 2019/20 fixed term Growth
Welwyn Garden City Centenary - 2020 (year 1 of 1)

Add 2020/21  Growth

Less 2020/21  Efficiencies/savings

Inflation and other changes

Splashlands - Maintenance/running costs for new facility
Stanborough Park - Contribution to a Regeneration of the Local Nature Reserve

Original Budget 2020/21

Reduction in GLL Management Fee
Budget reset following Peer Challenge

Salary changes (including pay awards, increments and superannuation)
Contract inflation
Budget virements

Page 25



Director and Head of Service Summaries - Budget 2020/21 Appendix B
Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)

Head of Law and Administration

Description

Original 

Budget 

2019/20

Period 6

Forecast 

Outturn

2019/20

Original 

Budget 

2020/21

Year on 

Year 

Variance

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,482 1,595 1,497 14 
Premises Related 5 3 3 (2)

Transport Related 32 24 22 (10)
Supplies and Services 708 674 678 (29)
Third Party Payments 60 69 65 5 
Income (233) (210) (223) 10 
Controllable Costs 2,054 2,155 2,042 (12)

Analysis of Controllable Costs

£ '000

2,054 

(41)

8 
6 

19 
(4)

2,042 

Capital salaries

Original Budget 2020/21

Original Budget 2019/20

Less 2020/21  Efficiencies/savings

Inflation and other changes

Budget reset following Peer Challenge

Salary changes (including pay awards, increments and superannuation)
Contract inflation
Budget virements

Page 26



Director and Head of Service Summaries - Budget 2020/21 Appendix B
Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)

Head of Planning

Description

Original 

Budget 

2019/20

Period 6

Forecast 

Outturn

2019/20

Original 

Budget 

2020/21

Year on 

Year 

Variance

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,877 2,115 1,919 42 
Premises Related 80 82 85 5 

Transport Related 20 15 14 (6)
Supplies and Services 348 730 349 1 
Third Party Payments 423 481 446 23 
Income (931) (1,371) (983) (52)
Controllable Costs 1,817 2,052 1,830 12 

Analysis of Controllable Costs
£ '000

1,817 

(81)

(8)
33 
49 
20 

1,830 

Original Budget 2019/20

Budget virements
Capital salaries

Original Budget 2020/21

Less 2020/21  Efficiencies/savings

Inflation and other changes

Budget reset following Peer Challenge

Salary changes (including pay awards, increments and superannuation)
Contract inflation

Page 27



Director and Head of Service Summaries - Budget 2020/21 Appendix B
Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)

Head of Public Health and Protection

Description

Original 

Budget 

2019/20

Period 6

Forecast 

Outturn

2019/20

Original 

Budget 

2020/21

Year on 

Year 

Variance

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,234 1,232 1,265 31 
Premises Related 2 2 2 (0)

Transport Related 22 18 16 (5)
Supplies and Services 144 119 113 (30)
Third Party Payments 79 77 81 1 
Income (298) (311) (312) (14)
Controllable Costs 1,183 1,136 1,165 (18)

Analysis of Controllable Costs
£ '000

1,183 

(12)
(8)

8
6

(47)

33 
4 

(2)
1,165 

Salary changes (including pay awards, increments and superannuation)
Contract inflation
Budget virements

Original Budget 2020/21

Software licence and maintenance for Northgate Management system

Less 2020/21  Efficiencies/savings

Inflation and other changes

Public Health Walks

Budget reset following Peer Challenge

Original Budget 2019/20

Less 2019/20 fixed term Growth

Add 2020/21  Growth

Health Walks (year 1 of 1)
Noise monitoring equipment replacement (year 1 of 1)

Page 28



Director and Head of Service Summaries - Budget 2020/21 Appendix B
Corporate Director (Housing and Communities)

Head of Community & Housing Strategy

Description

Original 

Budget 

2019/20

Period 6

Forecast 

Outturn

2019/20

Original 

Budget 

2020/21

Year on 

Year 

Variance

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,654 1,686 1,802 149 
Premises Related 33 28 26 (7)

Transport Related 11 9 13 2 
Supplies and Services 289 580 250 (39)
Third Party Payments 325 343 333 7 
Income (224) (461) (226) (3)
Controllable Costs 2,089 2,185 2,199 110 

Analysis of Controllable Costs
£ '000

2,089 

50 

(47)

99 
(6)
14 

2,199 

Contract inflation
Budget virements

Original Budget 2020/21

Original Budget 2019/20

Less 2020/21  Efficiencies/savings

Inflation and other changes

Budget reset following Peer Challenge

Salary changes (including pay awards, increments and superannuation)

Add 2020/21  Growth
Housing development manager - Funded from capital/ HRA

Page 29



Director and Head of Service Summaries - Budget 2020/21 Appendix B
Corporate Management Team

Description

Original 

Budget 

2019/20

Period 6

Forecast 

Outturn

2019/20

Original 

Budget 

2020/21

Year on 

year 

change 

(Proposed 

20/21 - 

Original 

19/20)

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000

Employees 1,404 1,340 1,373 (31)
Transport Related 6 6 6 1 
Supplies and Services 328 253 288 (40)
Income 0 (76) 0 0 
Controllable Costs 1,737 1,522 1,668 (69)

Analysis of Controllable Costs

£ '000

1,737 

34 
(103)

1,668 

Original Budget 2019/20

Inflation and other changes

Salary changes (including pay awards, increments and superannuation)
Budget virements

Original Budget 2020/21

Page 30



Classification: Unrestricted

Budget Efficiency Savings 2020/21 - 2022/23 Appendix C

Head of 

Service

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal 2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

Head of 

Resources

Rental Income Rental Income following development of 1 and 3-9 Town 

Centre Hatfield. This is directly linked to the delivery of the 

capital scheme

0 (80) (160)

Head of 

Resources

Highview rental 

income

Highview rents. This is directly linked to the delivery of the 

capital scheme

0 (20) (20)

Head of 

Resources

Estates Income Review of estate income budgets following strategic 

purchases, ongoing rent reviews and lease renewals

(20) (40) (40)

Head of 

Resources

Budget reset 

following Peer 

Challenge

In January 2019 the Council undertook a Local 

Government Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge 

review. This involves a small team of local government 

officers and councillors spending time at the council as 

peers to provide challenge and share learning. The team 

recognised the Councils strong financial position but 

advised a review of base budget was required. This 

exercise has taken place with £804k of savings identified 

to re-baseline the budget for 2020/21.

(288) (288) (288)

(308) (428) (508)

Head of 

Environment

Budget reset 

following Peer 

Challenge

In January 2019 the Council undertook a Local 

Government Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge 

review. This involves a small team of local government 

officers and councillors spending time at the council as 

peers to provide challenge and share learning. The team 

recognised the Councils strong financial position but 

advised a review of base budget was required. This 

exercise has taken place with £804k of savings identified 

to re-baseline the budget for 2020/21.

(206) (206) (206)

Head of Resources

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 31



Classification: Unrestricted

Budget Efficiency Savings 2020/21 - 2022/23 Appendix C

Head of 

Service

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal 2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

Head of 

Environment

Naming and 

Numbering

The Council  has the responsibility of  naming and 

numbering new roads, which are developed within the 

borough. Most of the developments are buillt by housing 

companies. A fee is levied for the administrative work to 

formally adopt a named road. An uplift in the fees for this 

service is required to meet the work and demand. 

(8) (8) (8)

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 32



Classification: Unrestricted

Budget Efficiency Savings 2020/21 - 2022/23 Appendix C

Head of 

Service

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal 2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

Head of 

Environment

Car park & 

season ticket 

fees

An increase in fees and charges after 7 years. Will  

support maintenance, cleansing and enforcement.

(35) (35) (35)

(249) (249) (249)

Head of Policy 

and Culture

Reduction in GLL 

Management Fee

Phased and agreed reductions in the management fee 

payable to GLL following their merger with Finesse Leisure 

in May 2018.

(245) (317) (357)

Head of Policy 

and Culture

Budget reset 

following Peer 

Challenge

In January 2019 the Council undertook a Local 

Government Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge 

review. This involves a small team of local government 

officers and councillors spending time at the council as 

peers to provide challenge and share learning. The team 

recognised the Councils strong financial position but 

advised a review of base budget was required. This 

exercise has taken place with £804k of savings identified 

to re-baseline the budget for 2020/21.

(87) (87) (87)

(332) (404) (444)

(888) (1,080) (1,200)

Head of Environment

Head of Policy and Culture

Total Corporate Director - Resources, Environment and Cultural Services

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 33



Classification: Unrestricted

Budget Efficiency Savings 2020/21 - 2022/23 Appendix C

Head of 

Service

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal 2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

Head of Law 

and 

Administration

Budget reset 

following Peer 

Challenge

In January 2019 the Council undertook a Local 

Government Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge 

review. This involves a small team of local government 

officers and councillors spending time at the council as 

peers to provide challenge and share learning. The team 

recognised the Councils strong financial position but 

advised a review of base budget was required. This 

exercise has taken place with £804k of savings identified 

to re-baseline the budget for 2020/21.

(41) (41) (41)

(41) (41) (41)

Head of 

Planning

Budget reset 

following Peer 

Challenge

In January 2019 the Council undertook a Local 

Government Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge 

review. This involves a small team of local government 

officers and councillors spending time at the council as 

peers to provide challenge and share learning. The team 

recognised the Councils strong financial position but 

advised a review of base budget was required. This 

exercise has taken place with £804k of savings identified 

to re-baseline the budget for 2020/21.

(81) (81) (81)

(81) (81) (81)

Head of Law and Administration

Head of Planning

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 34



Classification: Unrestricted

Budget Efficiency Savings 2020/21 - 2022/23 Appendix C

Head of 

Service

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal 2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

Head of Public 

Health and 

Protection

Budget reset 

following Peer 

Challenge

In January 2019 the Council undertook a Local 

Government Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge 

review. This involves a small team of local government 

officers and councillors spending time at the council as 

peers to provide challenge and share learning. The team 

recognised the Councils strong financial position but 

advised a review of base budget was required. This 

exercise has taken place with £804k of savings identified 

to re-baseline the budget for 2020/21.

(47) (47) (47)

(47) (47) (47)

(169) (169) (169)

Head of 

Community & 

Housing 

Strategy

Budget reset 

following Peer 

Challenge

In January 2019 the Council undertook a Local 

Government Association (LGA) Corporate Peer Challenge 

review. This involves a small team of local government 

officers and councillors spending time at the council as 

peers to provide challenge and share learning. The team 

recognised the Councils strong financial position but 

advised a review of base budget was required. This 

exercise has taken place with £804k of savings identified 

to re-baseline the budget for 2020/21.

(47) (47) (47)

(47) (47) (47)

(47) (47) (47)

(1,104) (1,296) (1,416)Grand Total

Head of Public Health and Protection

Total Corporate Director - Public Protection, Planning and Governance

Head of Community & Housing Strategy

Total Corporate Director - Housing and Communities

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted

Budget Growth 2020/21 - 2022/23 Appendix D

Head of 

Service

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal Ongoing / 

Fixed term

2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

Head of 

Resources

Housing Benefit 

Grant

Estimated reduction in administration grant 

reduction from DWP

Ongoing 31 60 85 

Head of 

Resources and 

Head of Legal

Voluntary First 

Registration

The process of registering the Council's 

ownership was not completed and part of the 

Borough's ownership is still waiting to be 

registered.  The process will require title 

identification and preparation by Legal Services 

before the information is recorded on K2, 

Cartology and ePIMS.  This will enable the 

public to access to a layer on Community Maps 

that will allow them to identify council owned 

land.  This will lead to improved customer 

service and reduce the number of ownership 

enquiries received.

This will enable the Council to comply with the 

transparency act in relation to publication of 

Council owned land. It is expected that 

employee costs would be spread over two 

years, details to be finalised. The estimate 

would be two legal FTEs for one year and 1 

FTE for property for one year.

Fixed Term 75 0 0 

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 37



Classification: Unrestricted

Budget Growth 2020/21 - 2022/23 Appendix D

Head of 

Service

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal Ongoing / 

Fixed term

2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

Head of 

Resources

Conditions 

Survey

A new asset management strategy is being 

drafted. Early works have identified the need to 

undertake a conditions survey on the Councils 

asset base to understand future investment 

required to maintain stock and income streams. 

This information will also be used to assist in the 

identification of low quality sites for future 

redevelopment or disposal. 

Fixed Term 100 0 0 

206 60 85 

Head of 

Environment

Parking Services 

Officer

Appropriate and convenient parking in all areas 

of the borough is a continued concern of 

residents and businesses within the borough. 

The current parking programme is demanding 

with many required projects. A full time 

permanent post will provide an additional 

resource to support the implemention of these 

large schemes.

Ongoing 50 50 50 

Head of 

Environment

Reduction in 

AFM funding

Hertfordshire County Council has reduced the 

size of their AFM budget by £500k. Each of the 

ten authorities within the county will see their 

grant reduced by £50k.

Ongoing 50 50 50 

100 100 100 

Head of Resources

Head of Environment

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 38



Classification: Unrestricted

Budget Growth 2020/21 - 2022/23 Appendix D

Head of 

Service

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal Ongoing / 

Fixed term

2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

Head of Policy 

and Culture

Museum 

Apprentice 

(Grade C)

To recruit a new Museum Apprentice to work 

across the Museum Service but with a specific 

responsibility for enhancing community 

engagement, customer feedback and the 

service's digital presence as a means of 

increasing overall footfall to both of the 

managed sites.

Fixed Term 24 0 0 

Head of Policy 

and Culture

Digital 

Transformation

To create a new budget to support our ongoing 

digital transformation programme across all of 

the council's services. 

Fixed Term 15 15 15 

Head of Policy 

and Culture

Splashlands The new splashlands facility will be opening in 

2020. there will be ongoing maintenance costs 

for this facility, which were considered as part of 

the decision to proceed with the development of 

the site. Following a tender process, the costs 

have come in lower than originally anticipated. 

Ongoing 54 54 54 

Head of Policy 

and Culture

Stanborough 

Park - 

Contribution to a 

Regeneration of 

the Local Nature 

Reserve

A phased contribution of £6k pa over 10 years 

in partnership with the Herts & Middx Wildlife 

Trust to regenerate and preserve a bio-diverse 

natural habitat in this Park.

Long term failure to regenerate this LNR will 

lead to the loss of the water reed bed. The 

HMWT will contribute a further £50k from their 

own resources to support this project.

Ongoing 6 6 6 

99 75 75 Head of Policy and Culture

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 39



Classification: Unrestricted

Budget Growth 2020/21 - 2022/23 Appendix D

Head of 

Service

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal Ongoing / 

Fixed term

2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

405 235 260 

Head of Public 

Health and 

Protection 

Software licence 

and maintenance 

for 18/19 

Northgate 

Management 

system. 

(rephasing into 

19/20)

Software licence/maintenance support for 

mobile working, LAGAN interface and self 

service web interface

Fixed Term 8 8 8 

Head of Public 

Health and 

Protection 

Public Health 

Walks

Public Health project to encourage opportunities 

for exercise within the community. Health walks 

provide to opportunity to break down social 

iscolation and improve mental health.

Ongoing 6 6 6 

14 14 14 

Head of 

Planning

GIS Apprentice The appointment of a GIS Apprentice to assist 

the GIS Manager in the delivery of a GIS 

service to the Council and the implementation of 

a new GIS Community Map.  2 year apprentice 

fixed term contract.

Fixed Term 25 0 0 

Head of 

Planning

Economic 

Development 

Apprentice

The appointment of an Economic Development 

Apprentice, to assist the Economic 

Development Officer in the delivery of the 

Council's Strategy and Action Plan, the 

administration of the Business Forum, the 

administration of the Better Business for All 

initiative and other activities. 2 year apprentice 

fixed term contract

Fixed Term 25 0 0 

Head of Public Health and Protection 

Corporate Director - Resources, Environment and Cultural Services

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 40



Classification: Unrestricted

Budget Growth 2020/21 - 2022/23 Appendix D

Head of 

Service

Title of the 

proposal

Full Description of the proposal Ongoing / 

Fixed term

2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

51 0 0 

65 14 14 

Head of 

Community & 

Housing 

Strategy

Housing 

development 

manager

New permanent post within the Housing 

Development Team. This team deals with the 

affordable housing programme, which is 

expanding. The post is funded from capital and 

HRA recharges

Ongoing 50 50 50 

Head of 

Community & 

Housing 

Strategy

Private Sector 

Housing stock 

condition survey

The Council has a statutory requirement under 

the Housing Act 2004 to carry out a stock 

condition survey of its private sector housing on 

a regular basis. Although the official guidance 

does not specify a frequency, the Council and 

its peers carry this out once every 5 years.

Fixed Term 0 50 0 

50 100 50 

50 100 50 

520 349 324

Corporate Director - Housing and Communities

Grand Total

Head of Planning

Corporate Director - Public Protection, Planning and Governance

Head of Community and Housing Strategy

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Environmental Services

Cemeteries

Burial Fees

Private Grave

Coffin <=30" Wide and 78" Long* 750.00 - 750.00 750.00 - 750.00 0.0%

Large Coffin/ Casket >30" Wide and 78" Long* 1,100.00 - 1,100.00 1,100.00 - 1,100.00 0.0%

Burial in Timber Shored Grave* 1,100.00 - 1,100.00 1,100.00 - 1,100.00 0.0%

Public Grave 550.00 - 550.00 550.00 - 550.00 0.0%

Children's Grave 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 - 0.00

Shallow Grave* 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 0.0%

Mausoleum Chamber* 400.00 - 400.00 400.00 - 400.00 0.0%

Grant of Exclusive Right Fees

Lawn Graves

Coffin <=30" Wide and 78" Long* 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 0.0%

Large Coffin/ Casket >30" Wide and 78" Long* 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 0.0%

Premium Graves (Chosen by family - Additional Fee)* 250.00 - 250.00 250.00 - 250.00 0.0%

Reservation of Grant of Exclusive Right (10 Year Period)* 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 0.0%

550.00 - 550.00 550.00 - 550.00 0.0%

Mausoleum Crypt (top and bottom vault Lawn Cemetery) 7,000.00 - 7,000.00 7,000.00 - 7,000.00 0.0%

Mausoleum Crypt (top and bottom vault Lawn Cemetery) 

Non Resident 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%

Premium Mausoleum Crypt ( middle vault Lawn 

Cemetery) Non Resident 7,500.00 - 7,500.00 7,500.00 - 7,500.00 0.0%

Premium Mausoleum Crypt ( middle vault Lawn 

Cemetery) 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%

Includes marble tablet with initial inscription. Bespoke artwork, photographs and vases will incur an additional charge - 75 years

Transfer Ownership of Grant of Exclusive Right* 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

Official Copy of Grant of Exclusive Right/Search Fee* 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

Cremated Remains and Burial Fees

Interment of Cremated Remains* 250.00 - 250.00 250.00 - 250.00 0.0%

Eco Interment of Cremated Remains* 150.00 - 150.00 150.00 - 150.00 0.0%

Strewing of Cremated Remains* 150.00 - 150.00 150.00 - 150.00 0.0%

Immurement of cremated remains* 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Second set of cremated remains - same time* 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Cremated Remains within Coffin* 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Cremated Remains License Fees

Cremated Remains Memorial Plot* 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00 0.0%

Commemorative Garden Tablet* 400.00 - 400.00 400.00 - 400.00 0.0%

Half Size Lawn Grave* 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00 0.0%

Commemorative Rose Bushes* 450.00 - 450.00 450.00 - 450.00 0.0%

Sanctum 2000 Vault (Hyde Cemetery)* 750.00 - 750.00 750.00 - 750.00 0.0%

Sanctum Family Vault (Hyde Cemetery)* 1,600.00 - 1,600.00 1,600.00 - 1,600.00 0.0%

Memorial Garden Kerb (Hyde Cemetery)* 300.00 - 300.00 300.00 - 300.00 0.0%

Reservation for Cremated Remains Plot (10 years)* 750.00 - 750.00 750.00 - 750.00 0.0%

Additional 10 Year Licence Period* 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

2019-20 2020-21

Extension of Grant of Exclusive Right (Lawn Cemetery 10 

Year Period)*

Page 43



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase
Memorial Permit Fees

Headstones - new and replacement memorials* 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

Tablet* 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Vase* 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Engrave an additional Subscription* 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Kerb Setting (Hatfield Hyde)* 250.00 - 250.00 250.00 - 250.00 0.0%

Fine for any convention to memorial regulation 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00 0.0%

Repair or cleaning of a memorial Free Free Free Free Free Free
Miscellaneous Fees

Memorial Plaque 350.00 - 350.00 350.00 - 350.00 0.0%

Inclusion of small photo/bespoke artwork 90.00 - 90.00 90.00 - 90.00 0.0%

Inclusion of large photo/bespoke artwork 120.00 - 120.00 120.00 - 120.00 0.0%

New plaque for Memorial Garden Kerb (Hyde Only) 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

New tablet for Commemorative Garden Plot (Lawn Only) 350.00 - 350.00 350.00 - 350.00 0.0%

Plaque on Wooden Memorial Bench 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 0.0%

Second Plaque on Existing Wooden Bench 300.00 - 300.00 300.00 - 300.00 0.0%

Plaque on Granite Memorial Bench 850.00 - 850.00 850.00 - 850.00 0.0%

Second Plaque on Existing Granite Bench 300.00 - 300.00 300.00 - 300.00 0.0%

Permission to vault a grave space* 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00 0.0%

The Lodge Chapel* 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Hourly rate for exhumations 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

Late fee - per half hour 150.00 - 150.00 150.00 - 150.00 0.0%

Turf Grave 60.00 - 60.00 60.00 - 60.00 0.0%

*Non Residential fees - all of the above fees are trebled for a person who at the time of death resides outside the borough of 

Welwyn Hatfield. Any fees relating to the grave afterwards will also be trebled. The only exceptions to the trebling of fees are 

as follows:

2019-20 2020-21

- If a grave for more than one person is purchased at the standard rate for the first internment for a Resident of the borough, 

any future fees will remain as standard

- If a resident is required to move out of the area for medical care or to any nursing home within the last 2 years due to ill-

health, a standard fee would apply

Page 44



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Environmental Services

Abandoned Vehicles

Abandoned Vehicles - off private property 42.71 8.54 51.25 43.75 8.75 52.50 2.4%
Abandoned Vehicles - Return of vehicle 106.77 21.35 128.13 109.17 21.83 131.00 2.2%
Abandoned Vehicles - Storage rate per day 11.10 2.22 13.32 11.33 2.27 13.60 2.1%

General

Benches (refurbished) 307.50 61.50 369.00 313.75 62.75 376.50 2.0%
Benches  (new) 615.00 123.00 738.00 627.50 125.50 753.00 2.0%

Waste Collection Services

Bulky Household Collections 35.70 - 35.70 36.50 - 36.50 2.2%
Bulky Household Collections - OAP`s 18.19 - 18.19 18.55 - 18.55 2.0%
Bulky Household Collections - Benefits 18.19 - 18.19 18.55 - 18.55 2.0%

Insurance charge for collections within homes 15.44 3.09 18.53 15.83 3.17 19.00 2.5%

Collection of Hazardous Electrical items 32.62 - 32.62 33.33 - 33.33 2.2%

Clinical Waste collections ( 5 sacks/resident) 5.10 1.02 6.12 5.21 1.04 6.25 2.1%
Kitchen Caddie delivery charge 4.72 0.94 5.66 4.83 0.97 5.80 2.5%
Emptying of a contaminated wheeled bin 15.84 - 15.84 16.15 - 16.15 2.0%

21.11 - 21.11 21.55 - 21.55 2.1%
Cost of a first standard replacement (180/240L) bin 12.04 2.41 14.45 12.29 2.46 14.75 2.1%
Cost of a subsequent standard (180/240L) bin 24.86 4.97 29.83 25.33 5.07 30.40 1.9%
Cost of a first standard replacement (360L) bin 21.27 4.25 25.52 21.67 4.33 26.00 1.9%
Cost of a subsequent standard (360L) bin 35.36 7.07 42.44 36.08 7.22 43.30 2.0%
Cost of a mini-bank unit 574.00 114.80 688.80 585.42 117.08 702.50 2.0%

Garden Waste Collection

First bin per property per annum 35.00 0.00 35.00 35.00 0.00 35.00 0.0%
Second bin per property per annum 60.00 0.00 60.00 60.00 0.00 60.00 0.0%

Dog Warden Services

Collection / release fee for dog with collar & tag 25.00 - 25.00 25.50 - 25.50 2.0%
Collection / release fee for dog without collar & tag 35.00 - 35.00 35.70 - 35.70 2.0%
Dog collected by Warden and Transported to Kennels 75.00 - 75.00 76.50 - 76.50 2.0%
Kennel Fee per night 15.00 - 15.00 15.50 - 15.50 3.3%

2019-20 2020-21

Emptying of 2 contaminated wheeled bins (at same 

Page 45



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Schedule of Offences

Nuisance Parking  - paid within 10 days 60.00 - 60.00 60.00 - 60.00 0.0%
    - full amount of penalty 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
Abandoning a vehicle - paid within 10 days 120.00 - 120.00 120.00 - 120.00 0.0%
       - full amount of penalty 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%
Depositing Litter - paid within 10 days 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
- full amount of penalty 75.00 - 75.00 75.00 - 75.00 0.0%
Failure to comply with a street litter control
notice    - paid within 10 days 60.00 - 60.00 60.00 - 60.00 0.0%
     - full amount of penalty 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
Failure to comply with a litter clearing notice
     - paid within 10 days 60.00 - 60.00 60.00 - 60.00 0.0%
     - full amount of penalty 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
Unauthorised distribution of free printed matter
     - paid within 10 days 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
     - full amount of penalty 75.00 - 75.00 75.00 - 75.00 0.0%
Defacement by graffiti and flyposting
     - paid within 10 days 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
     - full amount of penalty 75.00 - 75.00 75.00 - 75.00 0.0%
Duty of Care
     - paid within 10 days 200.00 - 200.00 N/A
     - full amount of penalty 300.00 - 300.00 N/A

Failure to comply with a dog control order
     - paid within 10 days 51.25 - 51.25 50.00 - 50.00 -2.4%
     - full amount of penalty 76.88 - 76.88 75.00 - 75.00 -2.4%

Failure to produce authority ( waste carriers
licence )  - paid within 10 days 184.50 - 184.50 200.00 - 200.00 8.4%
      - full amount of penalty 300.00 - 300.00 300.00 - 300.00 0.0%
Failure to furnish documentation ( waste 
transfer notes) - paid within 10 days 184.50 - 184.50 200.00 - 200.00 8.4%
      - full amount of penalty 300.00 - 300.00 300.00 - 300.00 0.0%
Offences relating to waste receptables ( e.g.
General Fund Fees and Charges 40.00 - 40.00 40.00 - 40.00 0.0%
 - full amount of penalty 80.00 - 80.00 80.00 - 80.00 0.0%

Roundabout Sponsorship

High Profile

1 year sponsorship 2,562.50 512.50    3,075.00 2,612.50 522.50 3,135.00 2.0%
3 year sponsorship 5,381.25 1,076.25 6,457.50 5,491.67 1,098.33 6,590.00 2.1%
5 year sponsorship 7,687.50 1,537.50 9,225.00 7,841.67 1,568.33 9,410.00 2.0%

Medium Profile (main road)

1 year sponsorship 2,050.00 410.00    2,460.00 2,091.67 418.33 2,510.00 2.0%
3 year sponsorship 4,305.00 861.00    5,166.00 4,391.67 878.33 5,270.00 2.0%
5 year sponsorship 6,150.00 1,230.00 7,380.00 6,275.00 1,255.00 7,530.00 2.0%

Medium Profile (residential road)

1 year sponsorship 1,537.50 307.50    1,845.00 1,566.67 313.33 1,880.00 1.9%
3 year sponsorship 3,228.75 645.75    3,874.50 3,291.67 658.33 3,950.00 1.9%
5 year sponsorship 4,612.50 922.50    5,535.00 4,708.33 941.67 5,650.00 2.1%

Low Profile

1 year sponsorship 768.75    153.75    922.50    783.33    156.67 940.00    1.9%
3 year sponsorship 1,609.25 321.85    1,931.10 1,641.67 328.33 1,970.00 2.0%
5 year sponsorship 2,306.25 461.25    2,767.50 2,350.00 470.00 2,820.00 1.9%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 46



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Northaw Great Wood

Annual car parking permit 15.00 3.00 18.00 15.00 3.00 18.00 0.0%

Visitors parking fee ( honesty box) 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 0.0%

Parking Permits

Resident motorcycle ( per annum) 10.00 - 10.00 10.20 - 10.20 2.0%

Green Vehicle Permit N/A N/A N/A 20.00 - 20.00 N/A

Resident first vehicle ( per annum) 25.00 - 25.00 25.00 - 25.00 0.0%
Resident second vehicle ( per annum) 40.00 - 40.00 45.00 - 45.00 12.5%
Resident third vehicle (per annum) 60.00 - 60.00 65.00 - 65.00 8.3%
HTC Permit (per annum) 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
Carers permit ( per annum) 20.00 - 20.00 20.00 - 20.00 0.0%

Business Vehicle ( per annum) 225.00 - 225.00 230.00 - 230.00 2.2%

Pack of 20 daily visitor vouchers 10.00 - 10.00 10.20 - 10.20 2.0%

Refund request ( admin fee) 5.00 - 5.00 5.10 - 5.10 2.0%

Change of address/vehicle ( admin fee) 5.00 - 5.00 5.10 - 5.10 2.0%

Car Parking

Hunters Bridge  ( Monday - Sunday)

0 - 30 minutes Free Free Free Free Free Free
30 minutes - 2 hours 1.25 0.25 1.50 1.25 0.25 1.50 0.0%
2 - 3 hours 2.08 0.42 2.50 2.08 0.42 2.50 0.0%
3 - 4 hours 2.92 0.58 3.50 2.92 0.58 3.50 0.0%
Daily tickets 4 + hrs ( Mon - Sat) 4.17 0.83 5.00 5.00 1.00 6.00 19.9%
Sunday  (daily) 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.4%

Campus West ( Monday - Sunday)

0 - 30 minutes Free Free Free Free Free Free
30 minutes - 2 hours 1.25 0.25 1.50 1.25 0.25 1.50 0.0%
2 - 3 hours 2.08 0.42 2.50 2.08 0.42 2.50 0.0%
3 - 4 hours 2.92 0.58 3.50 2.92 0.58 3.50 0.0%
Daily tickets 4 + hrs ( Mon - Sat) 4.17 0.83 5.00 5.00 1.00 6.00 19.9%
Sunday ( daily) 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.4%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 47



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Car Parking

Cherry Tree (parking available Saturday

and Sunday)

Saturday:

0 - 1 hours 0.42 0.08 0.50 0.42 0.08 0.50 0.0%
1 - 2 hours 1.25 0.25 1.50 1.25 0.25 1.50 0.0%
2 - 3 hours 2.08 0.42 2.50 2.08 0.42 2.50 0.0%
3 - 4 hours 2.92 0.58 3.50 2.92 0.58 3.50 0.0%
Daily tickets 4 + hrs 4.17 0.83 5.00 5.00 1.00 6.00 19.9%
Sunday (all day) 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.4%

Campus East ( Monday - Sunday)

Campus East Lower - Mon-Fri (entry before 11am) 4.17 0.83 5.00 5.00 1.00 6.00 19.9%
Campus East Lower - Mon-Fri (entry from 11am) 2.50 0.50 3.00 2.92 0.58 3.50 16.7%
Campus East Lower - Saturday 2.50 0.50 3.00 2.92 0.58 3.50 16.7%
Campus East Lower - Sunday 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.4%

Campus East Upper - Saturday 2.50 0.50 3.00 2.92 0.58 3.50 16.7%
Campus East Upper - Sunday 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.4%

Season Tickets:

Campus West:

3 month season ticket - standard 211.25 42.25 253.50 237.50 47.50 285.00 12.4%
3 month season ticket - worker / student 183.33 36.67 220.00 212.50 42.50 255.00 15.9%

Campus East Lower

3 month season ticket - standard 202.50 40.50 243.00 216.67 43.33 260.00 7.0%
3 month season ticket - worker / student 175.00 35.00 210.00 191.67 38.33 230.00 9.5%

Hunters Bridge

3 month season ticket - standard 211.25 42.25 253.50 237.50 47.50 285.00 12.4%
3 month season ticket - worker / student 183.33 36.67 220.00 212.50 42.50 255.00 15.9%

Cancellation Fees relating to Season Tickets given
up before their expiry date 10.00 - 10.00 12.50 2.50 15.00 50.0%

Civil Parking Enforcement :  Dispensations 12.50 2.50 15.00 12.50 2.50 15.00 0.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 48



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Street Naming & Numbering 

New development build

1 - 5 plots 125.00 25.00 150.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A
6 - 25 plots 250.00 50.00 300.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A
26 - 75 plots 500.00 100.00 600.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A
76+ plots 666.67 133.33 800.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A

New development build 

or Conversion of 

existing property (price per plot)

1st plot N/A N/A N/A 62.50 12.50 75.00 N/A
2nd - 24th plots N/A N/A N/A 41.67 8.33 50.00 N/A

25th - 49th plots N/A N/A N/A 33.33 6.67 40.00 N/A
50th - 74th plots N/A N/A N/A 25.00 5.00 30.00 N/A
75th – 99th plots N/A N/A N/A 20.83 4.17 25.00 N/A
Plots 100 and above N/A N/A N/A 12.50 2.50 15.00 N/A
                                     
Naming of block or building name 83.33 16.67 100.00 166.67 33.33 200.00 100.0%

Street Name for new development 83.33 16.67 100.00 166.67 33.33 200.00 100.0%

Street name 83.33 16.67 100.00 166.67 33.33 200.00 100.0%

Changes to 

Development/Layout after notification 

20.83 4.17 25.00 41.67 8.33 50.00 100.0%

Re-Naming/ReNumbering Building 

(existing premises) 

41.67 8.33 50.00 62.50 12.50 75.00 50.0%

Addition of name to numbered property (alias) 41.67 8.33 50.00 62.50 12.50 75.00 50.0%

Change of name to named only property 41.67 8.33 50.00 62.50 12.50 75.00 50.0%

Re-Naming Street or re- postcoding (at residents request) 166.67 33.33 200.00 166.67 33.33 200.00 0.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 49



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase
Estates Management £ £ £ £ £ £

Freehold Reversions - 999 year lease 435.00 87.00 522.00 443.33 88.67 532.00 1.9%
Freehold Reversions - 999 year lease - valuation 110.00 22.00 132.00 112.50 22.50 135.00 2.3%
Freehold Reversions - 99 year lease 435.00 87.00 522.00 443.33 88.67 532.00 1.9%
Freehold Reversions - 99 year lease - valuation 110.00 22.00 132.00 112.50 22.50 135.00 2.3%
Residential Long Lease Extensions - Houses 435.00 87.00 522.00 443.33 88.67 532.00 1.9%
Residential Long Lease Extension Valuations - Houses 110.00 22.00 132.00 112.50 22.50 135.00 2.3%
Residential Long Lease Extensions - Flats 870.00 174.00 1,044.00 887.50 177.50 1,065.00 2.0%
Residential Long Lease Extension Valuations - Flats 160.00 32.00 192.00 163.33 32.67 196.00 2.1%
Document copying - If from paper copy 50.00 10.00 60.00 50.83 10.17 61.00 1.7%

45.00 9.00 54.00 45.83 9.17 55.00 1.8%
Local Searches  - with Inspection 67.00 13.40 80.40 68.33 13.67 82.00 2.0%
Land Sale Request 100.00 20.00 120.00 101.67 20.33 122.00 1.7%

Assignments or Change of use or deed 860.00 172.00 1,032.00 877.50 175.50 1,053.00 2.0%
of Variation.
Grant of licences / land sales - HRA and GF 860.00 172.00 1,032.00 877.50 175.50 1,053.00 2.0%
New Letting Fee 260.00 52.00 312.00 265.00 53.00 318.00 1.9%

Housing Garage Valuations 185.00 37.00 222.00 188.33 37.67 226.00 1.8%

Restrictive Covenant Releases - RTB's 5,500.00 1,100.00 6,600.00 5,610.00 1,122.00 6,732.00 2.0%
Restrictive Covenant Releases - Non - RTB 860.00 172.00 1,032.00 877.50 175.50 1,053.00 2.0%
Valuation for non-Ex right to Buy covenant release 860.00 172.00 1,032.00 877.50 175.50 1,053.00 2.0%
Former Landowners Consent - minor works 62.50 12.50 75.00 64.17 12.83 77.00 2.7%
Former Landowners Consent - major works + Deed of 

covenant 850.00 170.00 1,020.00 866.67 173.33 1,040.00 2.0%
Event Consent Request 50.00 10.00 60.00 50.83 10.17 61.00 1.7%

Garage Rents

Owner occupier en bloc garage charges (52 week 

charge) -
popular sites per week 10.62 2.12 12.74 10.83 2.17 13.00 2.0%
unpopular sites per week 8.69 1.74 10.43 8.83 1.77 10.60 1.6%
Campus East Lower Car Park Garages Rents per 15.58 3.12 18.70 15.92 3.18 19.10 2.2%
week

Residential Leasehold Information + Ground Rent queries

2019-20 2020-21

Page 50



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Campus West

Garden City Cinema - Monday to Thursday 

    - Full Price 6.67 1.33 8.00 6.83 1.37 8.20 2.4%
    - U16 / Seniors / Student 5.83 1.17 7.00 5.96 1.19 7.15 2.2%
    - Full Price 3D Films 8.33 1.67 10.00 8.50 1.70 10.20 2.0%
    - U16 / Seniors / Student 7.50 1.50 9.00 7.67 1.53 9.20 2.2%

    - Friday to Sunday 

    - Full Price 7.50 1.50 9.00 7.67 1.53 9.20 2.2%
    - U16 / Seniors / Student 6.67 1.33 8.00 6.83 1.37 8.20 2.4%
    - Full Price 3D Films 9.17 1.83 11.00 9.38 1.87 11.25 2.2%
    - U16 / Seniors / Student 8.33 1.67 10.00 8.50 1.70 10.20 2.0%

Family Films - Monday to Thursday

    - All Tickets 3.33 0.67 4.00 3.42 0.68 4.10 2.6%
    - All Tickets 3D Films 3.33 0.67 4.00 3.42 0.68 4.10 2.6%

Family Films - Friday to Sunday

    - All Tickets 4.17 0.83 5.00 4.25 0.85 5.10 1.9%
    - All Tickets 3D Films 4.17 0.83 5.00 4.25 0.85 5.10 1.9%

Hawthorne Theatre - Theatrical Hire Fee

Monday to Wednesday
                                            8am to 4pm 968.00 193.60 1,161.60 987.50 197.50 1,185.00 2.0%
                                           4pm to midnight 1,089.00 217.80 1,306.80 1,108.33 221.67 1,330.00 1.8%
Thursday to Sunday
                                            8am to 4pm 1,210.00 242.00 1,452.00 1,233.33 246.67 1,480.00 1.9%
                                           4pm to midnight 1,452.00 290.40 1,742.40 1,481.04 296.21 1,777.25 2.0%

Screen Hire

Screen 1

               8am to 1pm 380.00 76.00 456.00 387.63 77.52 465.15 2.0%
               1pm - 4pm 380.00 76.00 456.00 387.63 77.52 465.15 2.0%
              4pm - 11pm 380.00 76.00 456.00 387.63 77.52 465.15 2.0%
Screen 2

               8am to 1pm 580.00 116.00 696.00 591.67 118.33 710.00 2.0%
               1pm - 4pm 580.00 116.00 696.00 591.67 118.33 710.00 2.0%
              4pm - 11pm 580.00 116.00 696.00 591.67 118.33 710.00 2.0%

Roller City

    - Skate Admission Only 5.21 1.04 6.25 5.33 1.07 6.40 2.4%
    - Skate Hire 2.00 0.40 2.40 2.04 0.41 2.45 2.1%
    - Spectator Charge 2.92 0.58 3.50 3.00 0.60 3.60 2.7%
Session Party (per skater incl skates) 8.61 1.72 10.33 8.83 1.77 10.60 2.6%
Private Party (per skater - minimum 30 skaters incl 

skates) 9.17 1.83 11.00 9.42 1.88 11.30 2.7%

Soft Play City 

Children 12 month or under Free Free Free Free Free Free
Children 1 Year to 3 years 3.13 0.63 3.75 3.21 0.64 3.85 2.7%
Children 4 to 9 years 4.46 0.89 5.35 4.54 0.91 5.45 1.9%
Accompanying Adults 2.92 0.58 3.50 3.00 0.60 3.60 2.7%
Registered Child Minder (Mon to Fri only) Free Free Free Free Free Free
Session Party (per child) 6.96 1.39 8.35 7.08 1.42 8.50 1.8%
Private Party (per child - minimum 30 children) 7.08 1.42 8.50 7.25 1.45 8.70 2.4%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 51



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

Campus West / Vineyard Barn / Hazel Grove / 

Panshanger

    - Carpet Bowls (per session) 4.58 0.92 5.50 4.67 0.93 5.60 1.9%
    - Table Tennis (per session) 4.58 0.92 5.50 4.67 0.93 5.60 1.9%
    - Keep Fit (per session) 4.58 0.92 5.50 4.67 0.93 5.60 1.9%
    - Medau (per session) 4.58 0.92 5.50 4.67 0.93 5.60 1.9%
    - Bridge & scrabble ( per session) 4.58 0.92 5.50 4.67 0.93 5.60 1.9%
    - Art Basics & Beyond (per class) 10.00 2.00 12.00 10.21 2.04 12.25 2.1%
    - Line Dancing (1 hour) 4.58 0.92 5.50 4.67 0.93 5.60 1.9%
    - Line Dancing (1.5 hours) 6.25 1.25 7.50 6.42 1.28 7.70 2.7%
    - Children's Parties 95.00 19.00 114.00 96.92 19.38 116.30 2.0%

Community Centres - Room Hires (Hazel Grove, 

Vineyard Barn, Panshanger, Hilltop)

Large Rooms (per hour) 16.00 - 16.00 16.35 - 16.35 2.2%
Small Rooms (per hour) 14.00 - 14.00 14.30 - 14.30 2.1%
Sheridan Studio At Campus West (per hour) 16.00 3.20 19.20 16.33 3.27 19.60 2.1%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 52



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Mill Green Museum & Welwyn Roman Baths

      - Adult entry fee - single 3.50 - 3.50 3.50 - 3.50 0.0%

     - Child entry fee - single 0.50 - 0.50 1.00 - 1.00 100.0%
      - Special Events for Children (max. charge) 5.00 - 5.00 5.00 - 5.00 0.0%

      - Children's drop-in activity (min. charge) 3.50 - 3.50 4.00 - 4.00 14.3%

      - General School visit (informal session) 2.00 - 2.00 3.50 - 3.50 75.0%
      - Extra Charge for Miller (on non milling days) 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

      - Adult Group visit - out of opening hours - both sites 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
       Plus Adult admission fee (min. 20 adults)

      - Children's Group visit - out of opening hours 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
      Plus £2 per child Plus £3.50 each Adult (2 Free)
      - Children's Group visit - out of opening hours 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
      Plus Taught Session (standard rates apply - see below)

    - Illustrated talk by Curator (off site) 60.00 - 60.00 60.00 - 60.00 0.0%

      - Taught lesson (standard) per child 4.00 - 4.00 7.00 - 7.00 75.0%
     - minimum charge (up to 28 children) 112.00 - 112.00 196.00 - 196.00 75.0%
      - Additional children added to standard  lesson 4.00 - 4.00 7.00 - 7.00 75.0%

      - Combined visit to Museum and Roman Bath House 

per child 7.00 - 7.00 9.00 - 9.00 28.6%

      - Combined visit to Museum and Roman Bath House
minimum charge upto 28 children 196.00 - 196.00 252.00 - 252.00 28.6%
      - Additional children added to combined visit 7.00 - 7.00 9.00 - 9.00 28.6%

     - STEM workshops at MGM 8.00 - 8.00 8.50 - 8.50 6.3%
      - Private Hire of Study Area (1/2 day) 90.00 - 90.00 95.00 - 95.00 5.6%
      - Private Hire of Study Area (full day) 175.00 - 175.00 180.00 - 180.00 2.9%
with free delegate access to Mill and Museum
      - loan boxes per 2 week period 20.00 - 20.00 20.00 - 20.00 0.0%
discounted if combined with visits 5.00 - 5.00 5.00 - 5.00 0.0%

    - Photocopying - single sheet 0.42 0.08 0.50 0.42 0.08 0.50 0.0%
    - Photocopying - double sided 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.83 0.17 1.00 0.4%
    - Digital Capture (by Staff) up to 5 images 20.00 4.00 24.00 20.42 4.08 24.50 2.1%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 53



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

Reproduction Rights 
Works by national / non-Herts Museums - one country 33.33 6.67 40.00 34.00 6.80 40.80 2.0%
Works by national / non-Herts Museums - worldwide 66.67 13.33 80.00 68.00 13.60 81.60 2.0%
Self publishing: local history (print run <10) 4.17 0.83 5.00 4.25 0.85 5.10 2.0%
Self publishing: local history (print run >10 <500) 8.33 1.67 10.00 8.50 1.70 10.20 2.0%
Academic / local history (print run < 2,000)* 25.00 5.00 30.00 25.50 5.10 30.60 2.0%
Academic / local history (print run > 2,000)* 41.67 8.33 50.00 42.50 8.50 51.00 2.0%
Commercial / non-academic (print run < 500)* 25.00 5.00 30.00 25.50 5.10 30.60 2.0%
Commercial / non-academic (print run > 500 < 2,000)* 41.67 8.33 50.00 42.50 8.50 51.00 2.0%
Commercial / non-academic (print run > 2,000)* 62.50 12.50 75.00 63.75 12.75 76.50 2.0%
Newspapers / magazines - National* 125.00 25.00 150.00 127.50 25.50 153.00 2.0%
Newspapers / magazines - Local* 62.50 12.50 75.00 63.75 12.75 76.50 2.0%
Internet / Website - commercial / individual* 16.67 3.33 20.00 17.00 3.40 20.40 2.0%
Internet / Website - academic* 4.17 0.83 5.00 4.25 0.85 5.10 2.0%
External exhibition loans - national / commercial 66.67 13.33 80.00 68.00 13.60 81.60 2.0%
Public / educational talks - national / commercial 33.33 6.67 40.00 34.00 6.80 40.80 2.0%
Email of each Digital Image 2.00 0.40 2.40 2.04 0.41 2.45 2.1%
Commercial Requests upon application
Archaeology Deposits (single item / box) *POA *POA *POA *POA *POA *POA
*Fees doubled for worldwide usage

Welwyn Roman Baths

      - Adult entry fee - single 3.50 - 3.50 3.50 - 3.50 0.0%
      - Child entry fee - single 0.50 - 0.50 1.00 - 1.00 100.0%
      - Adult Group visits (minimum of 14) 49.00 - 49.00 50.00 - 50.00 2.0%
both inside or outside the borough
     - School Visits - per child 4.00 - 4.00 5.00 - 5.00 25.0%
(minimum of 14 children both inside / outside borough) 56.00 - 56.00 70.00 - 70.00 25.0%
* Price on application

Page 54



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase
Housing and Community Services £ £ £ £ £ £

Immigration Inspection 277 - 277 283 - 283 2.1%

Housing Act Notice *1 318 - 318 325 - 325 2.2%

*1 A fixed charge of £325 will be applied for any single 

notice served. In addition, an hourly rate of £45 will be 

added where multiple notices are served and for the total 

amount of time taken to produce the single notice when it 

HMO Application *2

Application for basic 5 person HMO *2 954 - 954 974 - 974 2.1%

Application for an HMO between 6 - 10 persons *2 1066 - 1066 1088 - 1088 2.0%

Application for an HMO with 11 or more persons *2 1174 - 1174 1198 - 1198 2.0%

*2 A discount of £200 will be applied for those applications 

which are valid for licenses that are received without a 

request from the Local Authority. This will also apply for 

licence renewals received within a specified time given by 

the Local Authority. Also, a discount of 10% will apply to 

accredited landlords. This will be applied following any 

other discount that is agreed.        

        

Officer time for work in default *3 

Officer time for work in default - Head of Service 70.05 14.01 84.06 71.45 14.29 85.74 2.0%

Officer time for work in default - Private Sector Housing 

Manager 49.1 9.82 58.92 50.08 10.02 60.10 2.0%

Officer time for work in default - Senior Housing 

Technician 44.95 8.99 53.94 45.85 9.17 55.02 2.0%

Officer time for work in default - Housing Technician 31.48 6.296 37.776 32.11 6.42 38.53 2.0%

Officer time for work in default - Support Officer 21.71 4.342 26.052 22.14 4.43 26.57 2.0%

*3 Charges for works carried out during the following 

Allotments *4

Plot with water per 25 sqm 11.37 - 11.37 11.6 - 11.6 2.0%

Plot without water per 25sqm 6.92 - 6.92 7.06 - 7.06 2.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 55



Appendix E

Plot with water per 25 sqm - OAP`s 5.69 - 5.69 5.8 - 5.8 2.0%

Plot without water per 25sqm - OAP`s 3.46 - 3.46 3.53 - 3.53 2.0%

Landscape & Ecology

High Hedge Enforcement Fee 525 - 525 535.5 - 535.5 2.0%

*4 Allotment fees for 2021/2022 will be increased by 

inflation with a years notice provided

Community Services

CCTV charge 100 - 100 102 - 102 2.0%

Filming charge POA** POA** POA** POA** POA** POA**

Hatfield Stage Hire Fees *5

Charities, voluntary and community organisations/events - 

Organisations that are hosting events outside of postcode 

AL9 & AL10 but within Welwyn Hatfield 225 45 270 230 46 276 2.1%Charities or voluntary organisations/events - 

Organisations hosting events outside of the borough (but 

within 12miles radius) 375 75 450 383 76.6 459.6 2.1%

Page 56



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%
Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase
Commercial (with the aim of the organisation or event to 

make a profit for private gain) - 

Organisations that are hosting events outside of postcode 

AL9 & AL10 but within Welwyn Hatfield 525 105 630 536 107.2 643.2 2.1%
Commercial (with the aim of the organisation or event to 

make a profit for private gain) - 

Organisations that are hosting events outside of postcode 

AL9 & AL10 but within Welwyn Hatfield 750 150 900 765 153 918 2.1%

*5 Organisations hosting events in AL9 & AL10 for the 

benefit of the community will not be charged beyond the 

actual costs of transporting the stage and putting the 

stage up and taking it down
**  Price on application

2019-20 2020-21

Page 57



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

Local land searches £ £ £ £ £ £

LLC1 & Con29 

(residential, commercial & land) *part VATable 75.00 11.60 86.60 76.00 11.60 87.60 1.2%
Con29R only 58.00 11.60 69.60 59.00 11.80 70.80 1.7%
Con 29O questions 8.00 1.60 9.60 8.00 1.60 9.60 0.0%
Extra Parcels of Land 8.00 1.60 9.60 8.00 1.60 9.60 0.0%
Con 29O question 22 15.00 3.00 18.00 16.00 3.20 19.20 6.7%
LLC1 search only 17.00 - 17.00 17.00 0.00 17.00 0.0%

Legal

Certificate of Compliance 80.00 0.00 80.00 81.60 - 81.60 2.0%
DS1 or DS2 Land Registry Forms 80.00 0.00 80.00 81.60 - 81.60 2.0%
Postponement of Discount 80.00 0.00 80.00 81.60 - 81.60 2.0%
Legal Photocopying Charges 45.00 0.00 45.00 45.90 - 45.90 2.0%
Reports on Title 130.00 26.00 156.00 132.60 26.52 159.12 2.0%
Boundary enquires 80.00 0.00 80.00 81.60 - 81.60 2.0%

Electoral Services

Sale of electoral  registers ( data) 20.00 - 20.00 20.00 - 20.00 0.0%
plus per 1000 entries 1.50 - 1.50 1.50 - 1.50 0.0%
Sale of electoral registers ( printed) 10.00 - 10.00 10.00 - 10.00 0.0%
plus per 1000 entries 5.00 - 5.00 5.00 - 5.00 0.0%

Democratic Services

Freedom of Information requests

Photocopying of information per A4 sheet 0.10 0.02 0.12 0.10 0.02 0.12 0.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 58



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Licensing

Animal Activities

Home Dog boarding or Day Care/ Commercial up to ten 

dogs 1 year
 - On Application 267.00 - 267.00 267.00 - 267.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 31.00 - 31.00 31.00 - 31.00 0.0%
Home Dog boarding or Day Care/ Commercial up to ten 

dogs 2 year
 - On Application 267.00 - 267.00 267.00 - 267.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 74.00 - 74.00 74.00 - 74.00 0.0%
Renewal 1 year
 - On Application 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 36.00 - 36.00 36.00 - 36.00 0.0%
Renewal 2 year
 - On Application 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 99.00 - 99.00 99.00 - 99.00 0.0%
Renewal 3 year
 - On Application 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 119.00 - 119.00 119.00 - 119.00 0.0%
Dog/Cat commercial over ten dogs - 1 Year
 - On Application 286.00 - 286.00 286.00 - 286.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 38.00 - 38.00 38.00 - 38.00 0.0%
Dog/Cat commercial over ten dogs -2 year
 - On Application 286.00 - 286.00 286.00 - 286.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 90.00 - 90.00 90.00 - 90.00 0.0%
Renewal 1 Year
 - On Application 262.00 - 262.00 262.00 - 262.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 31.00 - 31.00 31.00 - 31.00 0.0%
Renewal 2 year
 - On Application 279.00 - 279.00 279.00 - 279.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 89.00 - 89.00 89.00 - 89.00 0.0%
Renewal 3 year
 - On Application 286.00 - 286.00 286.00 - 286.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 139.00 - 139.00 139.00 - 139.00 0.0%

Arranging boarding/franchise  No dogs New and renewal
 - On Application 239.00 - 239.00 239.00 - 239.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 31.00 - 31.00 31.00 - 31.00 0.0%
Variation franchise 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

Inspection of new franchisee no licence 1 year
 - On Application 222.00 - 222.00 222.00 - 222.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 16.00 - 16.00 16.00 - 16.00 0.0%
Inspection of new franchisee no licence 2 year
 - On Application 224.00 - 224.00 224.00 - 224.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 41.00 - 41.00 41.00 - 41.00 0.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 59



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Licensing

Inspection of new franchisee no licence 3 year
 - On Application 219.00 - 219.00 219.00 - 219.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 79.00 - 79.00 79.00 - 79.00 0.0%
Renewal 1 year
 - On Application 216.00 - 216.00 216.00 - 216.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 16.00 - 16.00 16.00 - 16.00 0.0%
Renewal 2 year
 - On Application 209.00 - 209.00 209.00 - 209.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 41.00 - 41.00 41.00 - 41.00 0.0%
Renewal 3 year
 - On Application 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 79.00 - 79.00 79.00 - 79.00 0.0%
Dog Breeding New 1 year
 - On Application 273.00 - 273.00 273.00 - 273.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 30.00 - 30.00 30.00 - 30.00 0.0%
Dog Breeding new 2 years
 - On Application 273.00 - 273.00 273.00 - 273.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 77.00 - 77.00 77.00 - 77.00 0.0%
Dog breeding Renewal 1 year
 - On Application 252.00 - 252.00 252.00 - 252.00 0.0%

 - On Issue 30.00 - 30.00 30.00 - 30.00 0.0%
Dog breeding renewal 2 year
 - On Application 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 80.00 - 80.00 80.00 - 80.00 0.0%
Dog breeding renewal 3 year
 - On Application 251.00 - 251.00 251.00 - 251.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 129.00 - 129.00 129.00 - 129.00 0.0%

Selling animals as Pets New 1 year
 - On Application 267.00 - 267.00 267.00 - 267.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 31.00 - 31.00 31.00 - 31.00 0.0%
Selling animals as pets New 2 year
 - On Application 264.00 - 264.00 264.00 - 264.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 93.00 - 93.00 93.00 - 93.00 0.0%

Selling animals as pets
Renewal 1 year
 - On Application 256.00 - 256.00 256.00 - 256.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 31.00 - 31.00 31.00 - 31.00 0.0%
Renewal 2 year
 - On Application 258.00 - 258.00 258.00 - 258.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 83.00 - 83.00 83.00 - 83.00 0.0%
Renewal 3 year
 - On Application 265.00 - 265.00 265.00 - 265.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 139.00 - 139.00 139.00 - 139.00 0.0%
Riding Establishments - New 1 Year
 - On Application 285.00 - 285.00 285.00 - 285.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 31.00 - 31.00 31.00 - 31.00 0.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 60



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Licensing

Riding Establishments - New 2 years
 - On Application 286.00 - 286.00 286.00 - 286.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 93.00 - 93.00 93.00 - 93.00 0.0%
Renewal 1 year
 - On Application 276.00 - 276.00 276.00 - 276.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 31.00 - 31.00 31.00 - 31.00 0.0%
Renewal 2 year
 - On Application 276.00 - 276.00 276.00 - 276.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 93.00 - 93.00 93.00 - 93.00 0.0%
Renewal 3 year
 - On Application 276.00 - 276.00 276.00 - 276.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 148.00 - 148.00 148.00 - 148.00 0.0%
Keeping or training animals for exhibition - 3 years
 - On Application 258.00 - 258.00 258.00 - 258.00 0.0%
 - On Issue 31.00 - 31.00 31.00 - 31.00 0.0%
Combination of activities equal to highest fee plus 50% of 

each additional licensable activity

Re evaluation of inspection rating 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Re visit- appeals fee applies unless higher rating 

achieved 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

Variation all types except franchises 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%

Transfer due to death of licensee 20.00 - 20.00 20.00 - 20.00 0.0%

Copy of licence 12.00 - 12.00 12.00 - 12.00 0.0%

Ear Piercing 211.15 - 211.15 215.37 - 215.37 2.0%
Tattooing/Other 264.45 - 264.45 269.74 - 269.74 2.0%
Change of details on registration certificate 26.65 - 26.65 27.18 - 27.18 2.0%

Dangerous Wild Animals 306.48 - 306.48 312.61 - 312.61 2.0%
Zoos 490.98 - 490.98 500.80 - 500.80 2.0%

Gaming Machine Permits
    Two machines on licensed premises 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
    Grant 150.00 - 150.00 150.00 - 150.00 0.0%
    More than two machines existing 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
    More than two machines other cases 150.00 - 150.00 150.00 - 150.00 0.0%
    More than two machines variation 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
    More than two machines transferred 25.00 - 25.00 25.00 - 25.00 0.0%
    Annual Fees 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
    Substitute Name 25.00 - 25.00 25.00 - 25.00 0.0%
    Copy of Permit 15.00 - 15.00 15.00 - 15.00 0.0%

2020-212019-20

Page 61



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Licensing

Club Gaming Permits Club machine permits

    Two machines on licensed premises 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
    Grant 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%
    Grant (Club premises certificate holder) 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
    More than two machines variation 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
    Renewal 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%
    Renewal (Club premises certificate holder) 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
    Annual Fees 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
    Substitute Name 25.00 - 25.00 25.00 - 25.00 0.0%
    Copy of Permit 15.00 - 15.00 15.00 - 15.00 0.0%

Gambling Premises new application

New Small Casino 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%
New Large Casino 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 0.0%
Regional Casino 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 0.0%
Bingo Club 1,689.20 - 1,689.20 1,722.98 - 1,722.98 2.0%
Betting premises ( excluding tracks) 1,583.63 - 1,583.63 1,615.30 - 1,615.30 2.0%
Tracks 2,500.00 - 2,500.00 2,500.00 - 2,500.00 0.0%
Family Entertainment Centre 1,266.90 - 1,266.90 1,292.24 - 1,292.24 2.0%
Adult Gaming Centre 1,266.90 - 1,266.90 1,292.24 - 1,292.24 2.0%

Gambling Premises annual fee

New Small Casino 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 0.0%
New Large Casino 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 0.0%
Regional Casino 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 0.0%
Bingo Club 527.88 - 527.88 538.43 - 538.43 2.0%
Betting premises ( excluding tracks) 316.73 - 316.73 323.06 - 323.06 2.0%
Tracks 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 0.0%
Family Entertainment Centre 316.73 - 316.73 323.06 - 323.06 2.0%
Adult Gaming Centre 527.88 - 527.88 538.43 - 538.43 2.0%

Gambling Premises application for a provisional

statement

New Small Casino 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%
New Large Casino 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 0.0%
Regional Casino 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 15,000.00 - 15,000.00 0.0%
Bingo Club 1,689.20 - 1,689.20 1,722.98 - 1,722.98 2.0%
Betting premises ( excluding tracks) 1,372.48 - 1,372.48 1,399.92 - 1,399.92 2.0%
Tracks 2,500.00 - 2,500.00 2,500.00 - 2,500.00 0.0%
Family Entertainment Centre 1,372.48 - 1,372.48 1,399.92 - 1,399.92 2.0%
Adult Gaming Centre 1,200.00 - 1,200.00 1,224.00 - 1,224.00 2.0%

Gambling Premises application for transfer

New Small Casino 1,800.00 - 1,800.00 1,800.00 - 1,800.00 0.0%
New Large Casino 2,150.00 - 2,150.00 2,150.00 - 2,150.00 0.0%
Regional Casino 6,500.00 - 6,500.00 6,500.00 - 6,500.00 0.0%
Bingo Club 721.00 - 721.00 735.42 - 735.42 2.0%
Betting premises ( excluding tracks) 721.00 - 721.00 735.42 - 735.42 2.0%
Tracks 950.00 - 950.00 950.00 - 950.00 0.0%
Family Entertainment Centre 515.00 - 515.00 525.30 - 525.30 2.0%
Adult Gaming Centre 618.00 - 618.00 630.36 - 630.36 2.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 62



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Gambling Premises application to vary

New Small Casino 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 0.0%
New Large Casino 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 0.0%
Regional Casino 7,500.00 - 7,500.00 7,500.00 - 7,500.00 0.0%
Bingo Club 1,545.00 - 1,545.00 1,575.90 - 1,575.90 2.0%
Betting premises ( excluding tracks) 1,372.48 - 1,372.48 1,399.92 - 1,399.92 2.0%
Tracks 1,250.00 - 1,250.00 1,250.00 - 1,250.00 0.0%
Family Entertainment Centre 633.45 - 633.45 646.12 - 646.12 2.0%
Adult Gaming Centre 633.45 - 633.45 646.12 - 646.12 2.0%

Gambling Premises application for reinstatement

New Small Casino 1,800.00 - 1,800.00 1,800.00 - 1,800.00 0.0%
New Large Casino 2,150.00 - 2,150.00 2,150.00 - 2,150.00 0.0%
Regional Casino 6,500.00 - 6,500.00 6,500.00 - 6,500.00 0.0%
Bingo Club 721.00 - 721.00 735.42 - 735.42 2.0%
Betting premises ( excluding tracks) 721.00 - 721.00 735.42 - 735.42 2.0%
Tracks 950.00 - 950.00 950.00 - 950.00 0.0%
Family Entertainment Centre 515.00 - 515.00 525.30 - 525.30 2.0%
Adult Gaming Centre 721.00 - 721.00 735.42 - 735.42 2.0%

Gambling Premises provisional statement holders

New Small Casino 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 3,000.00 - 3,000.00 0.0%
New Large Casino 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 5,000.00 - 5,000.00 0.0%
Regional Casino 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%
Bingo Club 721.00 - 721.00 735.42 - 735.42 2.0%
Betting premises ( excluding tracks) 721.00 - 721.00 735.42 - 735.42 2.0%
Tracks 950.00 - 950.00 950.00 950.00 0.0%
Family Entertainment Centre 773.00 - 773.00 788.46 - 788.46 2.0%
Adult Gaming Centre 773.00 - 773.00 788.46 - 788.46 2.0%

Sex Shop or Sex Cinema 649.00 - 649.00 661.98 - 661.98 2.0%
Sexual Entertainment Venue 649.00 - 649.00 661.98 - 661.98 2.0%

Hypnotism application 160.00 - 160.00 163.20 - 163.20 2.0%

Gambling Premises notification of change 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%

Gambling Premises copy of Licence 25.00 - 25.00 25.00 - 25.00 0.0%

Lottery Registration 40.00 - 40.00 40.00 - 40.00 0.0%
Lottery Renewal 20.00 - 20.00 20.00 - 20.00 0.0%

Scrap Metal 
Site Licence Application 770.80 - 770.80 786.22 - 786.22 2.0%
Collectors Licence Application 644.73 - 644.73 657.62 - 657.62 2.0%
Site Licence Renewal 522.75 - 522.75 533.21 - 533.21 2.0%
Collectors Licence Renewal 497.13 - 497.13 507.07 - 507.07 2.0%
Variation (site licence to collectors licence) 85.08 - 85.08 86.78 - 86.78 2.0%
Variation (collectors licence to site licence) 153.75 - 153.75 156.83 - 156.83 2.0%
Change of site 85.08 - 85.08 86.78 - 86.78 2.0%
Change of site manager 68.68 - 68.68 70.05 - 70.05 2.0%
Change of name or address 48.18 - 48.18 49.14 - 49.14 2.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 63



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Licensing

Premises & Clubs - new applications

Rateable value :- Band A 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
      :- Band B 190.00 - 190.00 190.00 - 190.00 0.0%
      :- Band C 315.00 - 315.00 315.00 - 315.00 0.0%
      :- Band D 450.00 - 450.00 450.00 - 450.00 0.0%
      :- Band E 635.00 - 635.00 635.00 - 635.00 0.0%
      :- Minor variations 89.00 - 89.00 89.00 - 89.00 0.0%

Additional fees for premises holding more 

than 5000 persons
5,000 - 9,999 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 0.0%
10,000 - 14,999 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 0.0%
15,000 - 19,999 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 0.0%
20,000 - 29,999 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%
30,000 - 39,999 16,000.00 - 16,000.00 16,000.00 - 16,000.00 0.0%
40,000 - 49,999 24,000.00 - 24,000.00 24,000.00 - 24,000.00 0.0%
50,000 - 59,999 32,000.00 - 32,000.00 32,000.00 - 32,000.00 0.0%
60,000 - 69,999 40,000.00 - 40,000.00 40,000.00 - 40,000.00 0.0%
70,000 - 79,999 48,000.00 - 48,000.00 48,000.00 - 48,000.00 0.0%
80,000 - 89,999 56,000.00 - 56,000.00 56,000.00 - 56,000.00 0.0%
90,000 and over 64,000.00 - 64,000.00 64,000.00 - 64,000.00 0.0%

Premises & Clubs - Annual Fee (Renewals)

Rateable value :- Band A 70.00 - 70.00 70.00 - 70.00 0.0%
 :- Band B 180.00 - 180.00 180.00 - 180.00 0.0%
 :- Band C 295.00 - 295.00 295.00 - 295.00 0.0%
 :- Band D 320.00 - 320.00 320.00 - 320.00 0.0%
 :- Band E 350.00 - 350.00 350.00 - 350.00 0.0%

Additional fees for premises holding more 

than 5000 persons
5,000 - 9,999 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00 0.0%
10,000 - 14,999 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 0.0%
15,000 - 19,999 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 0.0%
20,000 - 29,999 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 4,000.00 - 4,000.00 0.0%
30,000 - 39,999 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 8,000.00 - 8,000.00 0.0%
40,000 - 49,999 12,000.00 - 12,000.00 12,000.00 - 12,000.00 0.0%
50,000 - 59,999 16,000.00 - 16,000.00 16,000.00 - 16,000.00 0.0%
60,000 - 69,999 20,000.00 - 20,000.00 20,000.00 - 20,000.00 0.0%
70,000 - 79,999 24,000.00 - 24,000.00 24,000.00 - 24,000.00 0.0%
80,000 - 89,999 28,000.00 - 28,000.00 28,000.00 - 28,000.00 0.0%
90,000 and over 32,000.00 - 32,000.00 32,000.00 - 32,000.00 0.0%

Personal Licence 37.00 - 37.00 37.00 - 37.00 0.0%

Application for the grant or renewal of a personal license 37.00 - 37.00 37.00 - 37.00 0.0%

Temporary Event Notice 21.00 - 21.00 21.00 - 21.00 0.0%

Replacement of premises licence or summary 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%
80,000 - 89,999

2020-212019-20

Page 64



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Licensing

Premises & Clubs - new applications for
primarily for selling alcohol for consumption
on the premises
Rateable value :- Band D 900.00 - 900.00 900.00 - 900.00 0.0%
      :- Band E 1,905.00 - 1,905.00 1,905.00 - 1,905.00 0.0%
Premises & Clubs - Annual Fee for
primarily for selling alcohol for consumption
on the premises
Rateable value :- Band D 640.00 - 640.00 640.00 - 640.00 0.0%
      :- Band E 1,050.00 - 1,050.00 1,050.00 - 1,050.00 0.0%
Application for the mandatory condition 23.00 - 23.00 23.00 - 23.00 0.0%
requiring DPS in respect of a premises licence
to be disapplied

Street Trading consents
Per trading per day of the week 170.00 - 170.00 173.40 - 173.40 2.0%

Application for a provisional statement where 315.00 - 315.00 315.00 - 315.00 0.0%
premises are being built etc
Notification of change of address 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%
Application to vary a licence to specify an 23.00 - 23.00 23.00 - 23.00 0.0%
individual as premises supervisor
Application for transfer of premises Licence 23.00 - 23.00 23.00 - 23.00 0.0%
Interim Authority Notice following death of 23.00 - 23.00 23.00 - 23.00 0.0%
Licence holder
Replacement of certificate or summary 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%
Notification of change of name or alteration of 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%
rules of club
Change of relevant registered address of club 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%
Replacement of temporary event notice 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%
Replacement of personal licence 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%
Duty to notify change of name & address 10.50 - 10.50 10.50 - 10.50 0.0%
Right of freeholder to be notified of licensing 21.00 - 21.00 21.00 - 21.00 0.0%
matters.
Copy of document on public register 0.12 0.02 0.14 0.12 0.02 0.14 0.0%

Mobile Homes Act

Initial Site Licence Fee 141.45 28.29 169.74 144.28 28.86 173.13 2.0%
    - and in addition for each pitch 14.35 2.87 17.22 14.64 2.93 17.56 2.0%
Transfer or Standard amendment fee 182.45 36.49 218.94 186.10 37.22 223.32 2.0%
Site expansion amendment fee 141.45 28.29 169.74 144.28 28.86 173.13 2.0%
    - and in addition for each pitch 14.35 2.87 17.22 14.64 2.93 17.56 2.0%
Annual Fee per pitch 11.28 2.26 13.53 11.50 2.30 13.80 2.0%
Site Rules Regulation Deposit 35.88 7.18 43.05 36.59 7.32 43.91 2.0%
Fit and Proper Persons Check 169.13 33.83 202.95 172.51 34.50 207.01 2.0%
Enforcement Notice 291.10 58.22 349.32 296.92 59.38 356.31 2.0%

Works in default - As displayed in the current budget 

book and vary between the officer involved and the time 

of day the works are executed

2019-20 2020-21

Page 65



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Hackney Carriages

Hackney Carriage Driver/Private hire driver Licence - 3 

Years 450.00 - 450.00 450.00 - 450.00 0.0%
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence/Private Hire Vehicle - 

1 Year 290.00 - 290.00 290.00 - 290.00 0.0%
Private Hire Operator Licence :-
1 Year 330.00 - 330.00 330.00 - 330.00 0.0%
3 Years 762.00 - 762.00 762.00 - 762.00 0.0%
5 Years 1,194.00 - 1,194.00 1,194.00 - 1,194.00 0.0%

DBS check 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
Knowledge test (per attempt) 60.00 - 60.00 60.00 - 60.00 0.0%
Replacement plate 20.00 - 20.00 20.00 - 20.00 0.0%
Replacement bracket 15.00 - 15.00 15.00 - 15.00 0.0%
Replacement driver’s badge 15.00 - 15.00 15.00 - 15.00 0.0%
Extra copy/duplicate of licence 5.00 - 5.00 5.00 - 5.00 0.0%
DVLA 10.00 - 10.00 10.00 - 10.00 0.0%
Vehicle transfers 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 66



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Environmental Health

Training / Courses

Level 2 - Food Safety in Catering  (residents or 

businesses of WH) 65.00 - 65.00 65.00 - 65.00 0.0%
Level 2 - Food Hygiene in Catering (outside of WH) 70.00 - 70.00 70.00 - 70.00 0.0%
Level 2 - Nutrition course (residents or businesses of 

WH) 65.00 65.00 65.00 65.00 0.0%
Level 2 - Nutrition course (outside of WH) 70.00 70.00 70.00 70.00 0.0%
Level 3 - Food safety in Catering (residents/businesses of 

WH) 275.00 - 275.00 275.00 - 275.00 0.0%
Level 3 - Food safety in Catering (outside of WH)) 285.00 - 285.00 285.00 - 285.00 0.0%
Level 3 - Refresher Course 155.00 - 155.00 155.00 - 155.00 0.0%
Level 3 - Refresher Course (outside WH) 165.00 - 165.00 165.00 - 165.00 0.0%
Resilience awareness training (organisation) 500.00 - 500.00 510.00 - 510.00 2.0%

Small Business Support course ( part day) 65.00 - 65.00 66.30 - 66.30 2.0%
Small Business Support course ( full day) 130.00 - 130.00 132.60 - 132.60 2.0%
Small Food Business workshops 25.00 - 25.00 25.50 - 25.50 2.0%
Replacement food hygiene/safety certificate 40.00 - 40.00 40.00 - 40.00 0.0%
Cancellation of attendance at courses listed above: 

Cancellation within 1 month of course : 75% refund 75% refund
Cancellation within 1 week of course: No Refund No Refund
Failure to attend without notification: Course Fees PayableCourse Fees PayableCourse fees payableCourse Fees PayableCourse Fees PayableCourse fees payable

EPA prescribed processes - application fees

these fees are subject to change by statute

EPA part B installation 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 0.0%
Additional fee for operating without a permit 1,188.00 - 1,188.00 1,188.00 - 1,188.00 0.0%
Reduced Fee activities 155.00 - 155.00 155.00 - 155.00 0.0%
PVR I & II 257.00 - 257.00 257.00 - 257.00 0.0%
Vehicle Refinishers 362.00 - 362.00 362.00 - 362.00 0.0%
Reduced Fee activities : Additional fee for
operating without a permit. 71.00 - 71.00 71.00 - 71.00 0.0%
Mobile screening & crushing plant 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 0.0%
for the 3rd to 7th applications 985.00 - 985.00 985.00 - 985.00 0.0%
for the 8th & subsequent applications 498.00 - 498.00 498.00 - 498.00 0.0%

Where an application for any of the above is for a 

combined Part B and waste application, add an extra 

£104, (low risk)  £156 (medium risk) or £207 (high 

risk) to above amounts

2019-20 2020-21

Page 67



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Annual Subsistence Charges

Annual Subsistence Charge - low risk * 772.00 - 772.00 772.00 - 772.00 0.0%
Annual Subsistence Charge - medium risk * 1,161.00 - 1,161.00 1,161.00 - 1,161.00 0.0%
Annual subsistence Charge - high risk * 1,747.00 - 1,747.00 1,747.00 - 1,747.00 0.0%
Annual Subsistence Charge - petrol stations,
Reduced fee activities - low 79.00 - 79.00 79.00 - 79.00 0.0%
Reduced fee activities - medium 158.00 - 158.00 158.00 - 158.00 0.0%
Reduced fee activities - high 237.00 - 237.00 237.00 - 237.00 0.0%
PVR I & II - low 113.00 - 113.00 113.00 - 113.00 0.0%
PVR I & II - medium 226.00 - 226.00 226.00 - 226.00 0.0%
PVR I & II - high 341.00 - 341.00 341.00 - 341.00 0.0%
Vehicle Refinishers - low 228.00 - 228.00 228.00 - 228.00 0.0%
Vehicle Refinishers - medium 365.00 - 365.00 365.00 - 365.00 0.0%
Vehicle Refinishers - high 548.00 - 548.00 548.00 - 548.00 0.0%
Mobile screening & crushing plant - low 626.00 - 626.00 626.00 - 626.00 0.0%
Mobile screening & crushing plant - medium 1,034.00 - 1,034.00 1,034.00 - 1,034.00 0.0%
Mobile screening & crushing plant - high 1,551.00 - 1,551.00 1,551.00 - 1,551.00 0.0%
for the 3rd to 7th applications - low 385.00 - 385.00 385.00 - 385.00 0.0%
for the 3rd to 7th applications - medium 617.00 - 617.00 617.00 - 617.00 0.0%
for the 3rd to 7th applications - high 924.00 - 924.00 924.00 - 924.00 0.0%
for the 8th & subsequent applications - low 198.00 - 198.00 198.00 - 198.00 0.0%
for the 8th & subsequent applications - medium 314.00 - 314.00 314.00 - 314.00 0.0%
for the 8th & subsequent applications - high 473.00 - 473.00 473.00 - 473.00 0.0%

If subsistence charge is paid in instalments the total 

amount of subsistence charge payable in that financial 

year is increased by £38.

An extra £104 is required where the operator carries on 

an operation that falls within the reporting obligations of 

the EC Regulation

* these additional amounts must be charged where a 

permit is for a combined Part B and waste installation
Low Risk 104.00 - 104.00 104.00 - 104.00 0.0%
Medium risk 156.00 - 156.00 156.00 - 156.00 0.0%
High Risk 207.00 - 207.00 207.00 - 207.00 0.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 68



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Environmental Health

Transfer & Surrender

Standard process transfer 169.00 - 169.00 169.00 - 169.00 0.0%
Standard process partial transfer 497.00 - 497.00 497.00 - 497.00 0.0%
Surrender : all Part B activities
Reduced fee activities : transfer
Reduced fee activities : partial transfer 47.00 - 47.00 47.00 - 47.00 0.0%

Substantial change S10 & S11

Standard process 1,050.00 - 1,050.00 1,050.00 - 1,050.00 0.0%
Standard process where the substantial change
results in a new PPC activity. 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 1,650.00 - 1,650.00 0.0%
Change due to implementing an upgrading plan
(applies to LAPC only) 147.00 - 147.00 147.00 - 147.00 0.0%
Reduced fee activities 102.00 - 102.00 102.00 - 102.00 0.0%

Application fee for grant of A2 permit 3,363.00 - 3,363.00 3,363.00 - 3,363.00 0.0%
Application fee for transfer of A2 permit full 235.00 - 235.00 235.00 - 235.00 0.0%
Partial transfer 698.00 - 698.00 698.00 - 698.00 0.0%
Surrender of permit 698.00 - 698.00 698.00 - 698.00 0.0%
Application for Variation 1,368.00 - 1,368.00 1,368.00 - 1,368.00 0.0%
Variation for Small Waste Incineration plant 3,363.00 - 3,363.00 3,363.00 - 3,363.00 0.0%
Late Application fee for A2 1,188.00 - 1,188.00 1,188.00 - 1,188.00 0.0%

Subsistence Charges A2

Low Risk 1,343.00 - 1,343.00 1,343.00 - 1,343.00 0.0%
Medium Risk 1,507.00 - 1,507.00 1,507.00 - 1,507.00 0.0%
High Risk 2,230.00 - 2,230.00 2,230.00 - 2,230.00 0.0%

Certificate of Voluntary Surrender of Food (plus officer & 

disposal costs) per hour - - - 55.00 - 55.00
Sale of Food Safety Act Register 235.00 - 235.00 239.70 - 239.70 2.0%
Food Safety Export check 60.00 - 60.00 61.20 - 61.20 2.0%
Food FHRS Revisit 180.00 - 180.00 183.60 - 180.00 0.0%

Storage of noise making equipment following seizure ( 

plus officer cost) 555.00 - 555.00 566.10 - 566.10 2.0%

Fixed penalty notice for smoking in a smoke free place 50.00 - 50.00 50.00 - 50.00 0.0%
Discounted to if paid within 30 days 30.00 - 30.00 30.00 - 30.00 0.0%
Failure to display smoking signs 200.00 - 200.00 200.00 - 200.00 0.0%
Discounted to if paid within 30 days 150.00 - 150.00 150.00 - 150.00 0.0%

Private Water Supplies & Distribution Systems

Risk Assessment 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00 0.0%
Sampling - each visit ( maximum fee) 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
Investigation ( each investigation) 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%
Granting an Authorisation 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 0.0%

An extra £103 is required where the operator carries on an operation that falls within the reporting obligations of the EC Regulation

2019-20 2020-21

If subsistence charge is paid in instalments the total amount of subsistence charge payable in that financial year is increased by £38.

Page 69



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Environmental Health

Analysing a sample

taken under regulation 10 25.00 - 25.00 30.00 6.00 36.00 44.0%
taken during check monitoring POA* POA* POA* POA* POA* POA*
taken during audit monitoring 500.00 - 500.00 500.00 - 500.00 0.0%

Environmental Search for Contaminated Land 90.00 - 90.00 91.80 - 91.80 2.0%

Officer time for work in default - Head of Service 59.19 11.84 71.03 60.37 12.07 72.45 2.0%
Officer time for work in default - Team Leader 43.57 8.71 52.28 44.44 8.89 53.33 2.0%
Officer time for work in default - EHO 36.98 7.40 44.38 37.72 7.54 45.26 2.0%
Officer time for work in default - EHTO 29.41 5.88 35.29 30.00 6.00 36.00 2.0%
Officer time for work in default - EHTSO 19.87 3.97 23.84 20.27 4.05 24.32 2.0%

charges for works carried out during the following times 
Monday - Friday 7pm - 8am  time and a half
Saturday - time and a half
Sunday & Bank Holidays - time and half

Provision of a factual statement to the victim of an 

accident POA* POA* POA* POA* POA* POA*

*Price on application

2019-20 2020-21

Page 70



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Planning

Residential properties enlargement, 206.00 - 206.00 206.00 - 206.00 0.0%
improvement/alteration of dwellings for
domestic purposes - 1 dwelling

Residential properties enlargement, 407.00 - 407.00 407.00 - 407.00 0.0%
improvement/alteration of dwellings for
domestic purposes - 2 or more dwellings

Operations with residential curtilage for 206.00 - 206.00 206.00 - 206.00 0.0%
domestic purposes ( including buildings,
gates & fences etc.)

Car park, road & access to serve single 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%
undertaking where associated with existing
use.

New dwellings outline permission :-

Site less than 2.5ha - price per 0.1ha 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%
Site greater than 2.5ha - 11,432.00 - 11,432.00 11,432.00 - 11,432.00 0.0%
plus price per 0.1ha above 2.5ha 138.00 - 138.00 138.00 - 138.00 0.0%
(maximum £125,000)

Up to 50 new dwellings - price per dwelling 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%

51 or more new dwellings - 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 0.0%
plus fee per additional dwelling above 50 138.00 - 138.00 138.00 - 138.00 0.0%
(maximum £250,000)

Buildings outline permission ( other

dwellings, agricultural buildings or plant &

glass houses etc) :-

Site less than 2.5ha - price per 0.1ha 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%
Site greater than 2.5ha - 11,432.00 - 11,432.00 11,432.00 - 11,432.00 0.0%
plus fee per additional 0.1ha above 2.5ha 138.00 - 138.00 138.00 - 138.00 0.0%
(maximum £125,000)

Commercial Planning fees - other cases :-
No floor space created 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%

If less than 40sqm 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%

If between 40sqm - 75sqm gross floor space 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%

If between 75sqm - 3750sqm, price per each 75sqm 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%
of gross floor space created

If greater than 3750sqm gross floor space 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 0.0%
plus additional fee per each 75sqm over 3750sqm 138.00 - 138.00 138.00 - 138.00 0.0%
(maximum £50,000)

Prior approval applications comprising of a material 96.00 - 96.00 96.00 - 96.00 0.0%
change of use of any buildings or other land 

Prior approval applications comprising of  associated 206.00 - 206.00 206.00 - 206.00 0.0%
operational development

2020-212019-20

Page 71



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

Planning £ £ £ £ £ £

Commercial outline planning fees - Agricultural
buildings on agricultural land ( other than
glasshouses) :-
Site less than 2.5ha - price per 0.1ha 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%
Site greater than 2.5ha - 11,432.00 - 11,432.00 11,432.00 - 11,432.00 0.0%
plus fee per additional 0.1ha  138.00 - 138.00 138.00 - 138.00 0.0%
(maximum £25,000)

Commercial planning fees - Other Agricultural  

Cases :-

If less than 465sqm gross floor space created 96.00 - 96.00 96.00 - 96.00 0.0%

If between 465sqm - 540sqm gross floor 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%
space created 

If between 540sqm - 4215sqm gross floor 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%
space created 
plus fee per additional 75sqm above 540sqm 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%

If over 4215sqm floor space created 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 0.0%
plus fee per additional 75sqm above 4215sqm 138.00 - 138.00 138.00 - 138.00 0.0%
(maximum £250,000)

Commercial planning fees - Glasshouses &

poly tunnels agricultural land :-

up to 465sqm 96.00 - 96.00 96.00 - 96.00 0.0%
exceeding 465sqm 2,580.00 - 2,580.00 2,580.00 - 2,580.00 0.0%

Commercial planning fees - Erection,

alteration or replacement of plant & machinery

where site area does not exceed 5ha - fee per 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%
0.1ha
where site area exceeds 5ha - 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 0.0%
plus fee per additional 0.1 ha 138.00 - 138.00 138.00 - 138.00 0.0%
( maximum £250,000)

Commercial planning fees - Operations

connected with exploratory drilling for oil 

and gas :-

Where site area does not exceed 7.5ha - fee 508.00 - 508.00 508.00 - 508.00 0.0%
for each 0.1 ha
Where site area exceeds 7.5ha 38,070.00 - 38,070.00 38,070.00 - 38,070.00 0.0%
plus additional fee for each 0.1ha above 7.5ha 151.00 - 151.00 151.00 - 151.00 0.0%
(maximum £250,000 )

Commercial planning fees - operations not

within the above categories :-

Where site area does not exceed 15ha - fee 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%
per 0.1ha
Where site area exceeds 15ha - 29,112.00 - 29,112.00 29,112.00 - 29,112.00 0.0%
plus additional fee per 0.1ha above 15ha 115.00 - 115.00 115.00 - 115.00 0.0%
(maximum £250,000 )

Change of use of a building to one or more

dwellings :-

Where change is from a single dwelling
to 50 or fewer dwellings - fee per dwelling 385.00 - 385.00 385.00 - 385.00 0.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 72



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £
Planning

51 or more dwellings - 19,049.00 - 19,049.00 19,049.00 - 19,049.00 0.0%
plus additional fee per dwelling over 50 115.00 - 115.00 115.00 - 115.00 0.0%

Other cases :-

To 50 or fewer dwellings - fee per dwelling 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%

51 or more dwellings - 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 22,859.00 - 22,859.00 0.0%
plus additional fee per dwelling over 50 138.00 - 138.00 138.00 - 138.00 0.0%
( maximum £250,000)

Use of disposal of refuse or waste materials

and open mineral storage :-

Where site area does not exceed 15ha - fee 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%
for each 0.1ha
Where site area exceeds 15ha - 34,934.00 - 34,934.00 34,934.00 - 34,934.00 0.0%
plus additional fee per 0.1ha above 15ha 138.00 - 138.00 138.00 - 138.00 0.0%
( maximum £78,000)

Other operations ( not coming within any of the
above categories) any site area each 0.1 hectare 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%
(or part there of) up to a maximum of £1,690.

Material change of use in land or buildings 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%
other than above
Advertisements :-

A1 - Business premises or other land within 132.00 - 132.00 132.00 - 132.00 0.0%
business curtilage relating to nature of 
business goods sold, services provided or
name of persons undertaking business.
A2 - Sign relating to business in the same locality 132.00 - 132.00 132.00 - 132.00 0.0%
as the site but not visible from that site
A3 - All other advertisements 462.00 - 462.00 462.00 - 462.00 0.0%

Variation of a Condition 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%

Discharge of a Condition (for each request)

Householder 34.00 - 34.00 34.00 - 34.00 0.0%
Other 116.00 - 116.00 116.00 - 116.00 0.0%

Non-material changes to Planning Permission

Householder 34.00 - 34.00 34.00 - 34.00 0.0%
Other 234.00 - 234.00 234.00 - 234.00 0.0%
Retrospective Estate Management Consent 242.00 - 242.00 242.00 - 242.00 0.0%

S106/legal agreements / obligations (excludes
any legal costs incurred by the Council which are
paid by the applicant).

2019-20 2020-21

Page 73



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

Planning £ £ £ £ £ £

Confirmation of compliance with clause(s) 257.14 51.43 308.57 257.14 51.43 308.57 0.0%
Discharge or modification of obligation to
householder 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Discharge or modification of obligation (all
except householder) 482.32 96.46 578.78 482.32 96.46 578.78 0.0%
New householder related with associated
planning application 172.00 34.40 206.40 172.00 34.40 206.40 0.0%
New for housing developments between 10 - 24
houses 618.46 123.69 742.15 618.46 123.69 742.15 0.0%
New for housing developments between 25 - 100
houses 699.46 139.89 839.35 699.46 139.89 839.35 0.0%
New for housing developments between 
101 - 300 houses 957.56 191.51 1,149.07 957.56 191.51 1,149.07 0.0%

Monitoring and Administration of s106 planning  
obligations  - 5% of the total value of the contributions 
up to a maximum of £5000

Pre-application advice
Householder
Level 1 advice 42.71 8.54 51.25 43.56 8.71 52.28 2.0%
Level 2 advice 64.06 12.81 76.88 65.34 13.07 78.41 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 42.71 8.54 51.25 43.56 8.71 52.28 2.0%
Level 3 advice 85.42 17.08 102.50 87.13 17.43 104.55 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 64.06 12.81 76.88 65.34 13.07 78.41 2.0%
Single dwelling
Level 1 advice 85.42 17.08 102.50 87.13 17.43 104.55 2.0%
Level 2 advice 128.13 25.63 153.75 130.69 26.14 156.83 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 85.42 17.08 102.50 87.13 17.43 104.55 2.0%
Level 3 advice 256.25 51.25 307.50 261.38 52.28 313.65 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 149.48 29.90 179.38 152.47 30.49 182.96 2.0%
2- 5 dwellings
Level 1 advice 234.90 46.98 281.88 239.59 47.92 287.51 2.0%
Level 2 advice 427.08 85.42 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 213.54 42.71 256.25 217.81 43.56 261.38 2.0%
Level 3 advice 597.92 119.58 717.50 609.88 121.98 731.85 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 341.67 68.33 410.00 348.50 69.70 418.20 2.0%
6-9 dwellings
Level 1 advice 341.67 68.33 410.00 348.50 69.70 418.20 2.0%
Level 2 advice 555.21 111.04 666.25 566.31 113.26 679.58 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 256.25 51.25 307.50 261.38 52.28 313.65 2.0%
Level 3 advice 726.04 145.21 871.25 740.56 148.11 888.68 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 512.50 102.50 615.00 522.75 104.55 627.30 2.0%
10 – 24 dwellings
Level 1 advice 469.79 93.96 563.75 479.19 95.84 575.03 2.0%
Level 2 advice 768.75 153.75 922.50 784.13 156.83 940.95 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 341.67 68.33 410.00 348.50 69.70 418.20 2.0%
Level 3 advice 1,025.00 205.00 1,230.00 1,045.50 209.10 1,254.60 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 597.92 119.58 717.50 609.88 121.98 731.85 2.0%

(All legal costs for Section 106 Agreements and Unilateral Undertakings will be paid for by the Applicant. The Applicant will be provided 

with an hourly rate and an estimate of the total legal costs when Legal is first instructed. The Applicant is responsible for paying any 

abortive legal costs even if the matter is not proceeded with or if planning permission is ultimately refused)

2019-20 2020-21

Page 74



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

Planning £ £ £ £ £ £

25 – 50 dwellings
Level 1 advice 726.04 145.21 871.25 740.56 148.11 888.68 2.0%
Level 2 advice for 25 dwellings 854.17 170.83 1,025.00 871.25 174.25 1,045.50 2.0%
    + for each additional 5 dwellings or part thereof 85.42 17.08 102.50 87.13 17.43 104.55 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 683.33 136.67 820.00 697.00 139.40 836.40 2.0%
Level 3 advice for 25 dwellings 1,281.25 256.25 1,537.50 1,306.88 261.38 1,568.25 2.0%
    + for each additional 5 dwellings or part thereof 85.42 17.08 102.50 87.13 17.43 104.55 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 854.16 170.83 1,025.00 871.25 174.25 1,045.50 2.0%
51 + dwellings *POA *POA *POA *POA *POA *POA
Walls, fences (boundaries) (not householder)
Level 1 advice 85.42 17.08 102.50 87.13 17.43 104.55 2.0%
Level 2 advice 128.13 25.63 153.75 130.69 26.14 156.83 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 64.06 12.81 76.88 65.34 13.07 78.41 2.0%
Level 3 advice 213.54 42.71 256.25 217.81 43.56 261.38 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 128.13 25.63 153.75 130.69 26.14 156.83 2.0%
Listed buildings (householders) where planning 

permission is not required
Level 2 advice 85.42 17.08 102.50 87.13 17.43 104.55 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 42.71 8.54 51.25 43.56 8.71 52.28 2.0%
Level 3 advice 128.13 25.63 153.75 130.69 26.14 156.83 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 85.42 17.08 102.50 87.13 17.43 104.55 2.0%
Listed buildings (commercial) where planning permission 

is not required
Level 2 advice 213.54 42.71 256.25 217.81 43.56 261.38 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 128.13 25.63 153.75 130.69 26.14 156.83 2.0%
Level 3 advice 256.25 51.25 307.50 261.38 52.28 313.65 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 170.83 34.17 205.00 174.25 34.85 209.10 2.0%

* Price on Application

2019-20 2020-21

Page 75



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

Planning £ £ £ £ £ £
Proposed Floor Areas (m²)

Up to 100

Level 1 advice 85.42 17.08 102.50 87.13 17.43 104.55 2.0%
Level 2 advice 128.13 25.63 153.75 130.69 26.14 156.83 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 85.42 17.08 102.50 87.13 17.43 104.55 2.0%
Level 3 advice 256.25 51.25 307.50 261.38 52.28 313.65 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 170.83 34.17 205.00 174.25 34.85 209.10 2.0%
101-500

Level 1 advice 170.83
Level 2 advice 427.08 85.42 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 213.54 42.71 256.25 217.81 43.56 261.38 2.0%
Level 3 advice 597.92 119.58 717.50 609.88 121.98 731.85 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 298.96 59.79 358.75 304.94 60.99 365.93 2.0%
501-1000

Level 1 advice 256.25 51.25 307.50 261.38 52.28 313.65 2.0%
Level 2 advice 683.33 136.67 820.00 697.00 139.40 836.40 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 298.96 59.79 358.75 304.94 60.99 365.93 2.0%
Level 3 advice 939.58 187.92 1,127.50 958.38 191.68 1,150.05 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 427.08 85.42 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%
1001 – 5000

Level 1 advice 427.08 85.42 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%
Level 2 advice 1,281.25 256.25 1,537.50 1,306.88 261.38 1,568.25 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 341.67 68.33 410.00 348.50 69.70 418.20 2.0%
Level 3 advice 2,135.42 427.08 2,562.50 2,178.13 435.63 2,613.75 2.0%
Level 3 follow-up advice 640.63 128.13 768.75 653.44 130.69 784.13 2.0%
5000+ individually calculated based on the proposal
Change of Use (not for the creation of dwelling houses)
Level 1 advice 128.13 25.63 153.75 130.69 26.14 156.83 2.0%
Level 2 advice 256.25 51.25 307.50 261.38 52.28 313.65 2.0%
Level 2 follow-up advice 341.67 68.33 410.00 348.50 69.70 418.20 2.0%
Level 3 advice 384.38 76.88 461.25 392.06 78.41 470.48 2.0%

Officer Time

Principal Development Management Officer* 4,270.83 854.17 5,125.00 4,356.25 871.25 5,227.50 2.0%
Senior Development Management Officer * 12,812.50 2,562.50 15,375.00 13,068.75 2,613.75 15,682.50 2.0%

Assessments

Viability assessment 17,083.34 3,416.67 20,500.00 17,425.00 3,485.00 20,910.00 2.0%
Legal – re obligations/ advice 4,270.84 854.17 5,125.00 4,356.25 871.25 5,227.50 2.0%
Marketing assessment 8,541.66 1,708.33 10,250.00 8,712.50 1,742.50 10,455.00 2.0%
Daylight / Sunlight assessment 6,406.25 1,281.25 7,687.50 6,534.38 1,306.88 7,841.25 2.0%
Economic / Employment Statement 8,541.66 1,708.33 10,250.00 8,712.50 1,742.50 10,455.00 2.0%

The following would be in addition to the cost for drawing up and agreeing the Planning Performance Agreements.   The list is indicative 

and some developments may require an assessment which is not listed below.  This will not prevent the local planning authority from 

seeking to recover its costs in these areas.

The Local Planning Authority will, for each development, keep a record of the costs and/or hours worked for each issue and will either 

refund to the developer any amount overpaid, or will require further funds should the sum paid not cover the costs.The following charges are given for a development of 100 houses and is indicative of the level and type of charges that could be 

incurred.

2019-20 2020-21

*These charges are on the basis of a Senior Planning Officer leading the discussions for WHBC and upon four meetings.  Different 

officers / number of meetings might result in a different charge.  The appropriate officer to deal with a scheme will be determined by the 

Development Management Department.

Page 76



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

£ £ £ £ £ £

Consultees
Environmental Health –
-      Contaminated Land 854.17 170.83 1,025.00 871.25 174.25 1,045.50 2.0%
-      Air Quality 427.08 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%
-      Noise 341.67 68.33 410.00 348.50 69.70 418.20 2.0%
-      Vibration 341.67 68.33 410.00 348.50 69.70 418.20 2.0%
-      Odour 640.63 128.13 768.75 653.44 130.69 784.13 2.0%
-      Lighting 427.08 85.42 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%
-      Health Impact Assessments 427.08 85.42 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%
Landscaping (arboricultural implications) 427.08 85.42 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%
Conservation – Heritage 640.63 128.13 768.75 653.44 130.69 784.13 2.0%
Conservation – Biodiversity 427.08 85.42 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%
Archaeology 427.08 85.42 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%
Client Services 213.54 42.71 256.25 217.81 43.56 261.38 2.0%
Policy 854.17 170.83 1,025.00 871.25 174.25 1,045.50 2.0%
Housing Department (Affordable Housing) 854.17 170.83 1,025.00 871.25 174.25 1,045.50 2.0%
Amenity, Playspace, Open Space 854.17 170.83 1,025.00 871.25 174.25 1,045.50 2.0%
Structural Assessment of Building 427.08 85.42 512.50 435.63 87.13 522.75 2.0%

Planning  Policy Documents
Local Plan Consultation Document 2015 15.00 - 15.00 15.30 - 15.30 2.0%
postage and packing 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.06 0.61 3.67 2.0%
Local Plan Consultation Document Statement 29.00 - 29.00 29.58 - 29.58 2.0%
postage & packing 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.06 0.61 3.67 2.0%
Sustainability Appraisal Report and Appendices 45.00 - 45.00 45.90 - 45.90 2.0%
postage & packing 4.00 0.80 4.80 4.08 0.82 4.90 2.0%
Draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan 2015 15.00 - 15.00 15.30 - 15.30 2.0%
postage & packing 1.24 0.25 1.49 1.26 0.25 1.52 2.0%
District Plan Written Statement & Proposal Maps 55.00 - 55.00 56.10 - 56.10 2.0%
postage & packing 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.06 0.61 3.67 2.0%
Written Statement only 35.00 - 35.00 35.70 - 35.70 2.0%
postage & packing 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.06 0.61 3.67 2.0%
Proposal Maps only 20.00 - 20.00 20.40 - 20.40 2.0%
postage & packing 1.24 0.25 1.49 1.26 0.25 1.52 2.0%
Parking Standards adopted January 2004 20.00 - 20.00 20.40 - 20.40 2.0%
postage & packing 1.04 0.21 1.25 1.06 0.21 1.27 2.0%
Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission document August 

2016 15.00 - 15.00 15.30 - 15.30 2.0%
postage & packing 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.06 0.61 3.67 2.0%
Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission Policies Maps 

August 2016 30.00 - 30.00 30.60 - 30.60 2.0%
postage & packing 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.06 0.61 3.67 2.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 77



Appendix E

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

General Fund Fees and Charges

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase

Summary and Guide Free Free Free Free Free Free
postage & packing 1.20 0.24 1.44 1.22 0.24 1.47 2.0%
Sustainability Appraisal Non Technical Summary 2016 17.00 - 17.00 17.34 - 17.34 2.0%
postage & packing 1.40 0.28 1.68 1.43 0.29 1.71 2.0%
Sustainability Appraisal Report 2016 35.00 - 35.00 35.70 - 35.70 2.0%
postage & packing 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.06 0.61 3.67 2.0%
Sustainability Appraisal Appendices 1-5 2016 32.00 - 32.00 32.64 - 32.64 2.0%
postage & packing 3.00 0.60 3.60 3.06 0.61 3.67 2.0%
Sustainability Appraisal Annex 2016 40.00 - 40.00 40.80 - 40.80 2.0%
postage & packing 14.00 2.80 16.80 14.28 2.86 17.14 2.0%
Habitats Regulatory Assessment 2016 17.00 - 17.00 17.34 - 17.34 2.0%
postage & packing 1.40 0.28 1.68 1.43 0.29 1.71 2.0%
Green Corridor Strategic Framework Plan 2016 9.00 - 9.00 9.18 - 9.18 2.0%
postage & packing 1.61 0.32 1.93 1.64 0.33 1.97 2.0%
British Aerospace Supplementary Planning Guidance 10.00 - 10.00 10.20 - 10.20 2.0%
postage & packing 1.25 0.25 1.50 1.28 0.26 1.53 2.0%
Broadwater Road Supplementary Planning Document 15.00 - 15.00 15.30 - 15.30 2.0%
postage & packing 1.00 0.20 1.20 1.02 0.20 1.22 2.0%
Digswell Character Appraisal 2004 25.00 - 25.00 25.50 - 25.50 2.0%
postage & packing 1.00 0.20 1.20 1.02 0.20 1.22 2.0%
Welwyn Garden City Conservation Area Appraisal 15.00 - 15.00 15.30 - 15.30 2.0%
postage & packing 1.00 0.20 1.20 1.02 0.20 1.22 2.0%
High View Supplementary Planning Document 15.00 - 15.00 15.30 - 15.30 2.0%
postage & packing 1.00 0.20 1.20 1.02 0.20 1.22 2.0%

Welwyn Hatfield Green Belt Study Stage 3 August 2018 75.00 - 75.00 76.50 - 76.50 2.0%
postage & packing 14.00 2.80 16.80 14.28 2.86 17.14 2.0%
Supplementary Design Guidance 20.00 - 20.00 20.40 - 20.40 2.0%
postage & packing 1.04 0.21 1.25 1.06 0.21 1.27 2.0%
Consultation on sites promoted through the Call for Sites 

2019 14.00 - 14.00 14.28 - 14.28 2.0%
postage & packing 2.00 0.40 2.40 2.04 0.41 2.45 2.0%

2019-20 2020-21

Page 78



Classification: Unrestricted
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix F

Housing Revenue Account - Proposed Budget 2020/21

Description Original 

Budget 

2019/20

Forecast 

Outturn at 

Period 6 

Proposed 

Budget 

2020/21

Year-on-

Year 

variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Dwelling rents  (48,644)  (48,644)  (49,175)  (531)

Non-dwelling rents  (541)  (541)  (551)  (10)

Tenant charges for services & facilities  (1,905)  (1,831)  (1,807) 98

Leaseholder charges for services & facilities  (651)  (672)  (855)  (204)

Contributions towards expenditure  (252)  (280)  (413)  (161)

De minimis receipts  (8)  (8) - 8

Total Income  (52,000)  (51,976)  (52,801)  (801)

Repairs and maintenance 9,474 9,482 9,688 214

Supervision and management 8,123 8,042 8,395 272

Special services 3,703 3,713 3,764 61

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 945 945 956 12

Increase doubtful debts provision 500 500 490  (10)

Depreciation 14,777 14,777 15,440 663

Debt management costs 39 39 28  (11)

Sums directed by Secretary of State 50 50 50 -

Total Expenditure 37,611 37,547 38,811 1,200

Corporate and Democratic Core 730 730 705  (25)

Net Cost of Services  (13,659)  (13,699)  (13,285) 374

Less Interest and Non-Statutory Items: 

Interest payable and similar charges 6,492 6,492 6,373  (119)

Financing and investment income  (94)  (120)  (163)  (69)

Revenue Contribution to Capital 7,068 7,303 7,224 156

Total Adjustments 13,466 13,675 13,434  (32)

(Surplus) / Deficit  (193)  (24) 149 342

Opening HRA Operating Balance  (2,597)  (2,597)  (2,789) -

In-year (Surplus) / Deficit  (193)  (24) 149 342

Closing HRA Operating Balance  (2,789)  (2,621)  (2,640) 342

Classification: Unrestricted
Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council                            Appendix G 
Housing Revenue Account – Budget Changes 2020/21  

 
Dwelling rents - Increased income of (£531k) 

 
£900k decrease in rental income - The 2019/20 financial year was a 53 week year for rental 
purposes, so included a one year increase in the income generated. This income has been removed 
for 2020/21. 
 
(£1.431m) increase in rental income - For the financial year 2020/21, rents will increase by 
September’s CPI + 1% and as a result this increases the income on dwelling rents. This equates to 
2.7% and gives a forecast average rent of £106.16. This figure variance also includes the net 
adjustments to the base stock position, including reductions due to right to buy and redevelopments, 
and increases due to new properties.  
 

Tenants charges for services and facilities – Decreased income of £98k 

 
There are a number of small variances within the charges for services and facilities. The key 
contributor to the reduced level of budgeted income is: 
 
£67k decrease in service charge income - Due to planned redevelopments at Minister House and 
Howlands House, properties will be vacant and service charges will not be charged. 
 

Leaseholders charges for services and facilities – Increased income of (£204k) 

 
There are a number of small variances within the charges to leaseholders. The key contributor to the 
increased level of income is: 
 
(£183k) for leasehold service charges – This is due to uplifting each charge by 2% and based on the 
current Section 20 consultation estimates for major works. These major works charges will vary 
each year dependant on the proportion of leaseholders within blocks where works are undertaken. 
 

Contribution towards expenditure – Increased income of £161k 

 
There are a number of small variances within the charges to leaseholders. The key contributor to 
variance is: 
 
(£200k) Budget virement – Previously, the Council budgeted for some contributions made towards 
expenditure within the supervision and management line, leaving net expenditure on this line.  To 
increase transparency between income and expenditure, the income budgeted has been moved to 
this line on HRA statement.  
 

Repairs and maintenance – Increased expenditure of £214k 

 
£214k Mears Increased expenditure due to contract inflation which is uplifted annually by 
September’s inflationary figures. 
  

Supervision and management – Increased expenditure of £272k 

 
There are a number of minor variances within supervision and management. The key contributors to 
this variance are: 
 
£200k Budget virement – Previously, the Council budgeted for some income contributions made 
towards expenditure within the supervision and management line, leaving net expenditure on this 
line.  To increase transparency between income and expenditure, the income budgeted has been 
moved to the “Contributions towards Expenditure” line on HRA statement.  

Page 81



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 
£88k increase in salary costs – In line with general assumptions on pay growth, salaries have been 
uplifted by inflation and incremental progression.  
 

Special services – Increased expenditure of £61k 

 
There are a number of minor variances within special services. The key contributor to this variance 
is: 
 
£56k increase in salary costs – In line with general assumptions on pay growth, salaries have been 
uplifted by inflation and incremental progression.  
 

Depreciation – Increased expenditure of £663k 

 
£663k increased depreciation charge - The depreciation charge to the HRA is a statutory charge 
based on the value of the Council’s dwelling stock and it increases in line with its stock value. This 
charge is credited to the capital account (ie Major repairs reserve) and used towards funding the 
HRA capital programme and repayment of borrowing.  
 

Interest payable and similar charges – Decreased expenditure of £119k 

 
£119k reduction to interest payable – The Councils capital programme, includes financing and 
borrowing forecasts. These forecasts show a net reduction to the HRA borrowing requirement. This, 
alongside the slight reduction in interest rates between loans being repaid and new loans, led to a 
reduction in the budget required for interest charges.  
 

Financing and investment income – Increased income of £69k 

 
£69k increase in interest receivable – The interest income was prudently set for 2019/20, and actual 
interest received, along with cash balances, have been higher than budgeted. The budget has been 
revised on this basis, and has been based upon anticipated balances. 
 

Revenue Contribution to Capital – Increased expenditure of £156k 

 
£156k increase in contribution to capital - The balance on the HRA each year is contributed to 
support the capital expenditure programme, specifically the Affordable Housing Programme and 
repayment of existing borrowing. This is done to make best use of funds, minimise the borrowing 
requirement and associated costs. This amount will vary each year dependent on rent policy, 
scheduled loan repayments, depreciation charges and other factors.  
 
The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy sets medium term minimum working balance on the 
HRA at 5% of turnover. The revenue contribution is therefore calculated as the difference between 
5% of total income and all other items of income and expenditure.  
 

 

Page 82



Classification: Unrestricted
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Appendix H

%

Description Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Fee Vat 20% Total Fee Increase
£ £ £ £ £ £

Community Bus Hire - Commercial 
 25.00  5.00  30.00  37.50  7.50  45.00 50%
 0.83  0.17  1.00  1.04  0.21  1.25 25%

Community Bus Hire - Community Services
Community Bus Hire - Community Services  33.33  6.67  40.00  37.50 7.50  45.00 13%

Fares
 2.00 -  2.00  2.00 -  2.00 0%
 4.00 -  4.00  4.00 -  4.00 0%

Jim McDonald Centre - Venue Hire (Hourly Rate)
Jim McDonald Centre - Sports Hall  20.83  4.17  25.00  25.00  5.00  30.00 20%
Jim McDonald Centre - Sports Hall Charity/Local Authority Rate  16.67  3.33  20.00  20.83  4.17  25.00 25%
Jim McDonald Centre - Dining Room  25.00 -  25.00  25.00 -  25.00 0%
Jim McDonald Centre - Dining Room (after 6pm on Saturdays)  35.00 -  35.00  40.00 -  40.00 14%
Jim McDonald Centre - Dining Room Charity/Local Authority Rate  20.00 -  20.00  25.00 -  25.00 25%
Jim McDonald Centre - Games Room  15.00 -  15.00  20.00 -  20.00 33%
Jim McDonald Centre - Games Room Charity/Local Authority Rate  10.00 -  10.00  15.00 -  15.00 50%
Jim McDonald Centre - Meeting Room  10.00 -  10.00  15.00 -  15.00 50%
Jim McDonald Centre - Meeting Room Charity/Local Authority Rate  8.00 -  8.00  10.00 -  10.00 25%

Jim McDonald Centre - Freddie’s Den
Child Entry  2.50  0.50  3.00  2.92  0.58  3.50 17%
Bronze Party  82.50  16.50  99.00  87.50  17.50  105.00 6%
Silver Party  132.50  26.50  159.00  137.50  27.50  165.00 4%
Gold Party  170.00  34.00  204.00  175.00  35.00  210.00 3%

Other (52 week charge)
Council Tenants Lifeline Charge  3.37 -  3.37  3.46 -  3.46 3%
Non-Council Tenants Lifeline Charge  4.00 -  4.00  4.20 -  4.20 5%
Communal Facilities Charge Neighbourhood Schemes  10.43 -  10.43  10.72 -  10.72 3%
Communal Facilities Charge Communal Schemes  10.96 -  10.96  11.25 -  11.25 3%
Communal Heating  7.00 -  7.00  7.21 -  7.21 3%
Garage Rent Integral  10.62 -  10.62  10.83 -  10.83 2%
Garage Rent en bloc (incl VAT)  10.62  2.12  12.74  10.83  2.17  13.00 2%
Howlands House - Bedsit Running Cost  60.54 -  60.54  61.75 -  61.75 2%
Howlands House - Bedsit Utilities  15.50 -  15.50  15.81 -  15.81 2%
Howlands House - 1 Bed Running Cost  60.54 -  60.54  61.75 -  61.75 2%
Howlands House - 1 Bed Utilities  15.50 -  15.50  15.81 -  15.81 2%
Howlands House - 2 Bed Running Cost  65.42 -  65.42  66.73 -  66.73 2%
Howlands House - 2 Bed Utilities  17.47 -  17.47  17.82 -  17.82 2%
Howlands House - 3 Bed Running Cost  71.47 -  71.47  72.90 -  72.90 2%
Howlands House - 3 Bed Utilities  19.40 -  19.40  19.79 -  19.79 2%
Hazel Grove House - Bedsit Running Cost  41.15 -  41.15  41.97 -  41.97 2%
Hazel Grove House - Bedsit Utilities  15.50 -  15.50  15.81 -  15.81 2%
Hazel Grove House - 1 Bedroom Flat Running Cost  41.15 -  41.15  41.97 -  41.97 2%
Hazel Grove House - 1 Bedroom Flat Utilities  17.47 -  17.47  17.82 -  17.82 2%
Hazel Grove House - 2 Bedroom Flat Running Cost  41.15 -  41.15  41.97 -  41.97 2%
Hazel Grove House - 2 Bedroom Flat Utilities  19.40 -  19.40  19.79 -  19.79 2%
Inspira House - Bedsit Running Cost  39.01 -  39.01  39.79 -  39.79 2%
Inspira House - Bedsit Utilities  17.44 -  17.44  17.79 -  17.79 2%
Inspira House - 1 Bedroom Flat Running Cost  39.01 -  39.01  39.79 -  39.79 2%
Inspira House - 1 Bedroom Flat Utilities  17.44 -  17.44  17.79 -  17.79 2%

Other (single use charge)
Hostel Washing Machine Use  2.50  0.50  3.00  2.58  0.52  3.10 3%
Hostel Tumble Dryer Use  1.25  0.25  1.50  1.29  0.26  1.55 3%
Replacement Key Fob  15.00 -  15.00  15.00 -  15.00 0%

Fuel cost per mile

Lunch club
Shopper Hopper

HRA Fees and Charges

2019-20 2020-21

Community Bus Hire - Commercial 

Classification: Unrestricted

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted

Proposed Capital Expenditure Programme 2019/20 - 2024/25 Appendix I

Ref Project Title

 Forecast 

Spend 

2019/20           

£'000 

 Forecast 

Reprofiling     

from           

2019/20 

£'000 

 2020/21          

£'000 

 2021/22

£'000 

 2022/23

£'000 

 2023/24

£'000 

 2024/25

£'000 

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME

1 Highview Shops            1,199                  -                  85            535              85              -                 -   

2 HTC Acquisitions                 17                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

3 Hatfield Town Centre Public Realm               874                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

4 Campus East Offices                 11                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

5 Splashlands Development            1,189            1,058           1,058              -                -                -                 -   

6 Financial Management System Upgrade                   2                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

7 Huntersbridge Car Park Lighting                 40                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

8 Flat Refurbishments, Town Centre Hatfield                 40                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

9 Redevelopment of of 1 and 3-9, Town Centre Hatfield               957            1,303           3,103              -                -                -                 -   

10 Garages Re-roofing                   9                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

11 Welwyn Garden City Town Centre North            1,729            1,339           3,709              -                -                -                 -   

12 Strategic Property Investment            1,500            3,252           5,000              -                -                -                 -   

13 Huntersbridge Car Park Concrete Waterproofing               727                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

14 Campus East Chillers to Swegon System                   5                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

15 Campus East Fire Compartmentalisation               146                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

16 Litteridge Industrial Area Resurfacing                 85                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

17 Stanborough Lakes Public Changing Block                 22                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

18 Campus West Toilet Refurbishment               112                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

19 Culpit House - Roof works               156                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

20 Hatfield Town Centre Multi Storey Car Park            1,880            3,863           3,863              -                -                -                 -   

21 Lemsford Road car park - new level build                 60                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

22 Rolling IT projects               222                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

23 Garage Renovations               230                  -                230            230            230           230             230 

24 Garage Forecourt Resurfacing                 88                  -                  85              85              85             85               85 

25 Redevelopment -  Link Drive               691                  -                325              -                -                -                 -   

26 Hatfield pop up Market Stalls                 57                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

27 Campus East kitchen refurbishments                   1                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

28 Mill Green Museum Window Replacement                 50                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 85



Classification: Unrestricted

Proposed Capital Expenditure Programme 2019/20 - 2024/25 Appendix I

Ref Project Title

 Forecast 

Spend 

2019/20           

£'000 

 Forecast 

Reprofiling     

from           

2019/20 

£'000 

 2020/21          

£'000 

 2021/22

£'000 

 2022/23

£'000 

 2023/24

£'000 

 2024/25

£'000 

29 Coronation Fountain refurbishment                 11                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

30 Commercial Property (Minimum EPC Requirements)                  -                    -                100              -                -                -                 -   

31 Multi Functional Devices - Replacement programme                 16                  -                  17              17              18             18               18 

32 ICT Rolling Programme / Refresh                 21                  -                137            491            151           126             126 

33 SQL 2008 Server Upgrade                 35                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

34 Income Management System Upgrade and Licences                 13                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

35 Hatfield Town Centre Market Place               100                  -                200            100              -                -                 -   

36 Commercial Property - Energy efficiency                 50                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

37 Campus West Drainage                 75                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

38 Salisbury Square                   5                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

39 Hatfield Swim Centre Cathodic Protection                 25                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

40 Rollercity Lighting (Foyer) upgrade                  -                  12              -                -                -                 -   

41 Cloud based email and Active Directory                  -                120              -                -                -                 -   

42 Capita Upgrade                  -                  -                30              -                -                 30 

43 Museum Service - Refit and stabilisation of the Stable Block at Mill Green                  -                  25              -                -                -                 -   

Sub-total - Head of Resources          12,449          10,815         18,069         1,488            569           459             489 

44 Litter and dog bin replacement programme                 20                  -                  20              25              25             25               25 

45 Parking Programme               237                  -                250            250            260           260             260 

46 Play Area Replacement Scheme               180                  -                  50              50              55             55               55 

47 Refuse and Recycling improvement programe                 15                  -                  15              15              20             20               20 

48 Replacement of sports equipment                   8                  -                  -                15              -                -                 -   

49 Vehicle permit online payment system                 15                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

50 PLAN Off Street Parking                 24                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

51 Bereavement Services               498            3,552           3,552              -                -                -                 -   

52 Waste Contract Renewal - VPE            3,000                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

53 Campus West Car Park Improvements                 14                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

54 Street Warden Replacement Vehicles                 10                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

55 Construction of memorial plynths                 40                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 86



Classification: Unrestricted

Proposed Capital Expenditure Programme 2019/20 - 2024/25 Appendix I

Ref Project Title

 Forecast 

Spend 

2019/20           

£'000 

 Forecast 

Reprofiling     

from           

2019/20 

£'000 

 2020/21          

£'000 

 2021/22

£'000 

 2022/23

£'000 

 2023/24

£'000 

 2024/25

£'000 

56 Tewin Road Depot Upgrade               500               700           3,300            700              -                -                 -   

57 Household Waste and Recycling Centre (funded by HCC)                  -             3,800            700              -                -                 -   

58 Food Caddies - weekly food waste collections                  -                200              -                -                -                 -   

59 Car park management system               220                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

Sub-total - Head of Environment            4,780            4,252         11,187         1,755            360           360             360 

60 Replacement of the Council's Intranet                 75                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

61 Development of Mobile Website and Systems Integration                   4                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

62 Campus West Replacement of Elavator                 50                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

63 Brickwork and Masonery at Mill Green                 40                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

64 Museum Service - Refit of Pumping Station                 50                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

65 King George V Refurbishment                   6                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

66 Museum Service - WHBC Contribution                  -                  -              200              -                -                 -   

67 Campus West - Partial Refit of Soft Play City                  -                  25              -                -                -                 -   

68 Campus West - Change of Flooring in Screen 3 (Hawthorne Theatre)                  -                  17              -                -                -                 -   

69 Leisure Capital Programme                 20                  -                  30              -                -                -                 -   

Sub-total - Head of Policy & Culture               245                  -                  72            200              -                -                 -   

Sub-total - Corporate Director (Resources Environment and Cultural 

Service)
         17,474          15,067         29,328         3,443            929           819             849 

70 Community Infrastructure Levy Software                 26                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

71 Replacement of Fastplanning                 84                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

72 GIS Community Map                 30                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

73 Angerland Football Improvement Schemes - Hatfield               800                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

74 Angerland Rugby Improvement Schemes - Hatfield               200                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

Sub-total - Head of Planning            1,140                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

75 Northgate case management system                 65                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

76 Purchase of Air Quality Monitoring Equipment                 46                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

Sub-total - Head of Public Health and Protection               111                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 87



Classification: Unrestricted

Proposed Capital Expenditure Programme 2019/20 - 2024/25 Appendix I

Ref Project Title

 Forecast 

Spend 

2019/20           

£'000 

 Forecast 

Reprofiling     

from           

2019/20 

£'000 

 2020/21          

£'000 

 2021/22

£'000 

 2022/23

£'000 

 2023/24

£'000 

 2024/25

£'000 

Sub-total - Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and 

Governance)
           1,251                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

77 Decent Homes Private Sector                 71                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

78 WGC Football Development Scheme                 53                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

79 PRG Health                   6                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

80 PRG Sunflower                 20                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

81 PRG Community Inclusion                 22                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

82 CCTV upgrades (WGC, Urban and Hatfield)                 53                  -                100              -                40              -                 60 

83 Disabled Facilities Grant               767                  -                592            592            592           592             592 

Sub-total - Head of Community and Housing Strategy               992                  -                692            592            632           592             652 

Sub-total - Corporate Director (Housing and Communities)               992                  -                692            592            632           592             652 

Sub-total - General Fund (Excluding Service Loans)          19,717          15,067         30,020         4,035         1,561        1,411          1,501 

Loans to Now Housing

1 Loans to Now Housing (for provision of affordable housing)                  -                    -           25,418       17,072       12,770      18,595          3,603 

Sub-total - General Fund (Including Service Loans)          19,717          15,067         55,438       21,107       14,331      20,006          5,104 

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 88



Classification: Unrestricted

Proposed Capital Expenditure Programme 2019/20 - 2024/25 Appendix I

Ref Project Title

 Forecast 

Spend 

2019/20           

£'000 

 Forecast 

Reprofiling     

from           

2019/20 

£'000 

 2020/21          

£'000 

 2021/22

£'000 

 2022/23

£'000 

 2023/24

£'000 

 2024/25

£'000 

HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME

84 Electronic Document Management System                   6                  -                  45              -                -                -                 -   

85 Community buses replacement programme                  -                320            320            320              -                 -   

86 Emergency alarms replacement programme                  -                125            125            125           125             125 

87 Shop mobility scooter replacement programme                  -                  10                5              -                -                 -   

Sub-total - Head of Housing Operations                   6                  -                500            450            445           125             125 

88 Affordable Housing Programme - General               543                  -           13,500         9,500         8,000        5,000          5,000 

89 Affordable Housing Programme - Little Mead               770                  -                505              -                -                -                 -   

90 Affordable Housing Programme - Northdown Road               790                  -                238              -                -                -                 -   

91 Affordable Housing Programme - The Commons               100               150              900              -                -                -                 -   

92 Affordable Housing Programme -  Ludwick Way               125               250           1,375              -                -                -                 -   

93 Burfield Close, Hatfield                  -                500         4,000         1,500              -                 -   

94 Affordable Housing Programme - Chequersfield            2,400               500           1,000 

95 Open Market Purchases            6,051                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

96 Affordable Housing Programme - Grants to Registered Providers               486                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

97 Howlands House Redevelopment and Additional Units               120            1,653           1,653         5,500         4,000        1,000               -   

98 Minster House Redevelopment and Additional Units            1,128                  -             3,500       13,000         3,500              -                 -   

Sub-total - Head of Community and Housing Strategy          12,513            2,553         23,171       32,000       17,000        6,000          5,000 

99 Better Care Fund  - Sheltered Housing Modernisation                  -                 672              672              -                -                -                 -   

100 Queensway House Refurbishment/Fire Works                 72               275              275              -                -                -                 -   

101 Sheltered Refurbishment                 90            1,166           1,166              -                -                -                 -   

102 Major Repairs            6,630               931           7,263         6,522         6,717        6,919          7,127 

103 Aids and Adaptations               920                  -                876            894            912           930             948 

104 Insulation Improvements                 37                  -                  32              33              33             34               34 

105 Carbon Monoxide                 91                  -                  72              73              74             76               78 

106 Gas Central Heating Replacement Program            1,799                  -             1,794         1,830         1,867        1,904          1,942 

107 Property Services - Other Capital Works               349               425              715            296            302           308             314 

108 Door entry systems               497                  -                507            516            527           538             549 

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 89



Classification: Unrestricted

Proposed Capital Expenditure Programme 2019/20 - 2024/25 Appendix I

Ref Project Title

 Forecast 

Spend 

2019/20           

£'000 

 Forecast 

Reprofiling     

from           

2019/20 

£'000 

 2020/21          

£'000 

 2021/22

£'000 

 2022/23

£'000 

 2023/24

£'000 

 2024/25

£'000 

109 Electricity mains               165                  -                136            138            141           144             147 

110 DFG additional scheme                 13                  -                  -                -                -                -                 -   

111 Lift replacement               181                  -                  79              80              82             83               85 

Sub-total -  Head of Housing Property Services          10,844            3,469         13,586       10,382       10,656      10,936        11,224 

Sub-total - Corporate Director (Housing and Communities)          23,363            6,022         37,257       42,832       28,101      17,061        16,349 

Sub-total - Housing Account          23,363            6,022         37,257       42,832       28,101      17,061        16,349 

               -   

Total - Capital Programme 43,081         21,089        92,695       63,939     42,432     37,067    21,453      

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 90



Classification: Unrestricted

Capital Financing Summary Appendix J

2019/20

£'000

2020/21

£'000

2021/22

£'000

2022/23

£'000

2023/24

£'000

2024/25

£'000

Expenditure (excluding Service Loans) 19,717 30,020 4,035 1,561 1,411 1,501

Capital Receipts and Reserves (2,260) (4,015) (1,508) (884) (819) (909)

Capital Grants and Contributions (9,544) (13,009) (1,292) (592) (592) (592)

Revenue Contribution to Capital (778) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Borrowing Requirement before MRP and Loans 7,136 12,996 1,235 85 0 (0)

Service Loan Expenditure (Now Housing) 0 25,418 17,072 12,770 18,595 3,603

Minimum Revenue Provision (628) (976) (1,209) (1,299) (1,337) (1,337)

Loan Repayments 0 0 (10) (54) (99) (149)

Net Change in Borrowing Requirement for Year (inc loans) 6,507 37,437 17,088 11,502 17,159 2,117

Cumulative Borrowing Requirement (exc Loans) 40,121 52,140 52,166 50,953 49,616 48,279

Cumulative Borrowing Requirement (inc Loans) 40,121 77,558 94,646 106,149 123,308 125,425

Capital Reserves and Grants Balance at year end 9,401 6,013 5,142 4,368 3,549 2,640

Total Expenditure 23,363 37,257 42,832 28,101 17,061 16,349

Loan Repayment 18,800 20,000 21,400 22,700 24,200 25,800

Capital Receipts and Reserves (15,389) (25,891) (16,199) (17,518) (17,787) (18,138)

Restricted 141 Capital Receipts (4,094) (6,951) (9,600) (5,100) (1,800) (1,500)

Capital Grants and Contributions -                   (672) -                   -                   -                   -                   

Revenue Contribution to Capital (7,383) (7,230) (7,383) (8,474) (9,937) (11,283)

Borrowing Requirement for Year 15,297 16,513 31,050 19,709 11,737 11,228

Cumulative Borrowing Requirement at year end 238,078 234,590 244,241 241,250 228,787 214,215

Capital Reserves and Grants Balance at year end 14,547 11,290 6,132 4,068 5,332 6,848

GENERAL FUND

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted

Statement of Capital Reserves and Grant Balances Appendix K

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve 

(General 

Revenue 

Fund)

Capital 

Grants 

and 

Contrib's

Total GRF 

Capital 

Reserves

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve 

(Housing 

Revenue 

Account)

141 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

and 

Contrib's

Total HRA 

Capital 

Reserves

Total 

Capital 

Reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Opening Balance April 2018 11,009 1,986 12,995 0               16,957 -               -               16,957 29,952 
Receipts 803 2,027 2,830 917 4,486 14,006 75 19,484 22,314 

Use of reserves (2,089) (1,464) (3,553) (917) (7,836) (14,006) (75) (22,834) (26,387)
Closing Balance March 2019 9,722 1,938 11,660 -               13,606 -               672 14,278 25,938 
Receipts 1,369 8,175 9,544 612 4,363 14,777 -               19,752 29,297 
Use of reserves (2,260) (9,544) (11,804) (612) (4,094) (14,777) -               (19,483) (31,287)
Closing Balance March 2020 8,831 569 9,401 - 13,875 -               672 14,547 23,948 
Receipts 628 13,009 13,637 10,452 4,366 15,439 -               30,257 43,894 
Use of reserves (4,015) (13,009) (17,024) (10,452) (6,951) (15,439) (672) (33,514) (50,539)
Closing Balance March 2021 5,444 569 6,013 - 11,290 -               -               11,290 17,303 
Receipts 637 1,292 1,929 524 4,368 15,749 -               20,641 22,570 
Use of reserves (1,508) (1,292) (2,800) (450) (9,600) (15,749) -               (25,799) (28,599)
Closing Balance March 2022 4,573 569 5,142 75 6,057 -               -               6,132 11,274 
Receipts 110 592 702 1,379 3,111 16,064 -               20,554 21,256 
Use of reserves (884) (592) (1,476) (1,454) (5,100) (16,064) -               (22,618) (24,094)
Closing Balance March 2023 3,799 569 4,368 - 4,069 -               -               4,068 8,437 
Receipts -               592 592 1,402 3,064 16,385 -               20,851 21,443 
Use of reserves (819) (592) (1,411) (1,402) (1,800) (16,385) -               (19,587) (20,998)
Closing Balance March 2024 2,980 569 3,549 - 5,333 -               -               5,332 8,881 
Receipts -               592 592 1,425 3,016 16,713 -               21,154 21,746 
Use of reserves (909) (592) (1,501) (1,425) (1,500) (16,713) -               (19,638) (21,139)
Closing Balance March 2025 2,071 569 2,640 - 6,848 -               -               6,848 9,488 

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
and Financial Governance Framework 

2020/21 - 2022/23 

Appendix L

Page 95



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

1 
 

CONTENTS 
 
Section 
 

 
Page 

 

 

1. Introduction 2  

2. Revenue Forecasts and Strategies (General Fund) 
 
2.1 Local and economic context 
2.2 Forecasts and Assumptions – General Fund 

Forecasts and Assumptions – Housing Revenue Account 
2.3 Revenue Strategies and Efficiency Programmes 

 
3. Capital Forecasts and Strategies 

 
3.1 Summary and Approach 
3.2 Capital Forecasts and Assumptions 
3.3 Strategies & Indicators 

  
4. Professional Advice, Skills, Training and Capacity 
 

Annexes 
 
Annex A - Reserves Policy  
Annex B - Fees and Charges Strategy 
Annex C - Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Annex D - Financial Planning Framework 
Annex E - Investment Strategy 
Annex F - Treasury Management Strategy 
Annex G - Summary of key financial indicators  
 

 
 

3 
8 
9 

12 
 
 
 

16 
17 
19 

 
22 

 
 
 

23 
26 
27 
28 
29 
32 
41 

 
 
 

 

   
   

   

   

   
   
   

Page 96



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

2 
 

1 Introduction 
 
 Welcome to our Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and Financial Governance 

Framework. This document sets out our financial forecasts, risks, challenges and 
strategies for the period 2020 to 2023. It also provides the detail behind our financial 
governance framework including our strategies and policies. 

 
1.1 This strategy has been prepared in unprecedented times of economic uncertainty and a 

decline in public sector funding. It is also prepared at a time where pressures and expectations 
on local government continue to rise. 

 
1.2 We have already set our business plan and priorities for the period of 2018 to 2021, and we 

set an annual action plan in line with these targets: 
 
 https://www.welhat.gov.uk/businessplan 
 
1.3 This strategy, which is reviewed annually, supports our overall direction and provides details 

of the financial strategies in place to deliver our objectives. It is a crucial component of the 
Council’s strategic planning framework. Our key decisions need to be made with consideration 
to a financial plan that looks beyond the short term.  

 
1.4 Whilst there are many challenges ahead, we start the next three years in a reasonably strong 

financial position with healthy reserves and clear strategies in place to support the delivery of 
the efficiency savings required to deliver a balanced budget. 

 
1.5 We have an ambitious investment programme, specifically on Housing and Regeneration 

within the Borough.  Although part of this programme is partly grant funded, there will be 
borrowing requirements, and these will need to be carefully managed along with the ongoing 
cost implications.  

 
1.6 Our priority has always been to safeguard frontline services where possible, but inevitably 

there have been, and will continue to be, some difficult decisions that result in changes to 
services for our residents, customers and businesses. Meeting savings requirements will 
require an increasingly commercial and innovative approach with new ways of working.  

 
1.7 We have a strong and successful record of delivering the efficiency savings required, and 

since the start of austerity measures in 2010, we have successfully delivered nearly £15m of 
efficiency savings.  

 
1.8 As we move forward we are determined to continue with our successes and the MTFS sets 

out how we will ensure we have the resources we need to achieve the ambitions set out in the 
Council’s Business Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 

Duncan Bell     Ka Ng 

     
Executive Member for Resources         Corporate Director  (Resources,     

        Environment and Cultural Services)

Page 97

https://www.welhat.gov.uk/businessplan
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/businessplan


Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

3 
 

 
2 Revenue Forecasts and Strategy  

 
 We maintain two revenue accounts. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which is solely 

for the day to day activities of or Social Housing Landlord function (our tenants), and the 
General Fund Revenue Account (GF) which is for or day to day activities for all other 
services.  

 

2.1)  Local, National and Economic Context 
 
2.1.1 The following section sets out some of the key considerations we have to be conscious of 

when we set our budgets and review our medium to longer-term forecasts.  
 

2.1.2 There are a significant number of uncertainties and risks, and because of this, we undertake 
sensitivity analysis to understand the potential impact of material changes and ensure our 
reserves are adequate to deal with any such impacts (Annex A).  

 
Grant Funding and Business Rates (General Fund) 

 
2.1.3 Grant funding for local government continues to be extremely uncertain as we move into the 

next three-year period. Most recently, the Government announced a one-year finance 
settlement, meaning there is only a single year of certainty in the level of funding that will be 
provided. This makes medium to longer-term planning extremely difficult and increases risk.   

 
2.1.4 Revenue Support Grant (RSG), previously provided by the Government was removed from 

2019/20, meaning we have become increasingly reliant on the more volatile income sources 
such as business rates. It was also previously proposed that a negative RSG would be in place 
from 2018/19, although the Government has moved away from this direction in the short-term.  
 

2.1.5 The Business Rates system has seen significant changes including changes to the appeals 
process, additional reliefs being granted by Government and proposals for a more regular 
revaluation cycle. These make the income stream extremely volatile and difficult to predict in 
the medium term. Historic appeals data is used for our forecasting, along with any known 
factors from Government announcements.  

 
2.1.6 The government also piloted a 75% business rates retention scheme, and Hertfordshire’s was 

in this scheme for 2019/20, but this has been removed for 2020/21. Some Hertfordshire 
Councils have been accepted into a pooling arrangement for 2020/21, of which we are one, 
and this will see a greater share of income retained than if we acted on our own. This cannot 
be guaranteed in future years and may be affected by the governments planned business rates 
retention review.  

 
2.1.7 Numerous consultations and announcements have set the national direction for a review of 

Local Government Finance, but the outcome of these and the impacts on our finances are 
uncertain. These include a fair funding review, a reset of the business rates baseline, a revised 
business rates retention scheme, a spending review and a review of New Homes Bonus. 

 
2.1.8 The New Homes Bonus Scheme was introduced to encourage councils to facilitate greater 

housing growth. However, over time, the benefits of the grant have been reduced, including 
the term over which the grant is paid, and the introduction of a baseline level of growth for 
which no grant is paid. The Government is consulting on their proposals for the 2020/21 
allocation, which will not come with future allocations. This further increases the medium-term 
financial uncertainties.  

 

Page 98



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

4 
 

2.1.9 No long-term certainty has been provided over whether the previously proposed grant 
reductions (through negative RSG), will be taken into account in the various funding reviews, 
and adversely impact future income for us.  

 
2.1.10 These reviews are being undertaken at a time where Central Governments focus is on services 

such as housing, social care, education, policing and health. Many of these services are 
provided by other authorities such as the police and county council, and this increases the 
uncertainty around the funding that may be provided to us in future.  
 
Economic and Market Conditions 

 
2.1.11 There continues to be extreme uncertainty in economic and market conditions, and it is unclear 

how the UKs exit from the EU will impact the country’s economy.  
 

2.1.12 Sudden economic changes could have material impacts on our finances, as service demand 
would be impacted by such changes. This could include an increased housing demand, 
increased welfare support, adverse impacts on out interest income and borrowing costs, 
increased fuel and utility costs and impacts on our commercial property and other income.  

 
2.1.13 Credit conditions for larger UK banks have remained relatively stable over the past year. The 

UK’s departure from the European Union was delayed three times in 2019 and while there 
remains some concern over a global economic slowdown, this has not manifested in any credit 
issues for banks. 
 

2.1.14 We will take a balanced approach to our forecasts, using national and professionally derived 
forecasts for the economy. This is a key area in our sensitivity analysis and reserves strategy. 

 
2.1.15 Rates which have been used to inform our strategies and forecasts, along with the sources for 

this information, are shown in the table below: 
 

Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Source 

     

GDP 1.0% Not avail. Not avail. MHCLG Average Market Forecasts 

CPI 1.9% 2% 2% Office for Budget Responsibility 

RPI 2.8% 3.1% 3.1% Office for Budget Responsibility 

RPIX 2.7% 3.0% 3.0% Office for Budget Responsibility 

10 Year Borrowing 2.5% 2.6% 2.6% Arlingclose Treasury Advisors 

20 Year Borrowing 3.0% 3.1% 3.1% Arlingclose Treasury Advisors 

Bank of England 
Base Rate 

0.75% 0.75% 0.75% Arlingclose Treasury Advisors 

 *all as at 31 October 2019 
 

2.1.16 Fuel continues to be a very volatile cost, and whilst we do enter into longer term arrangements 
for our utilities, these are still subject to market fluctuations, as are vehicle fuel costs. On this 
basis we take a more prudent approach to forecasting fuel increases. 
 

2.1.17 Our ambitious housing and regeneration delivery programmes mean our capital expenditure, 
and income, is directly impacted by changes in market conditions. These changes can impact 
on the resources available to the council, or the cost of investment. In turn, this can directly 
impact on the cost of borrowing, and our revenue forecasts.   

 
2.1.18 The rates provided by Arlingclose is their view of the most likely position. They also believe 

there is a risk rates could be higher or lower than this, depending on economic data.  They 
currently judge that risks are significantly weighted to rates being lower being lower.   

Page 99



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

5 
 

Contracts and Shared Services 
 

2.1.19 We are in contractual arrangements with service providers for some of our services. Many of 
our contracts are directly linked to RPI or RPIX. 
 

2.1.20 A few of these, which have been in long term arrangements, have recently expired and been 
re-tendered, or will be expiring in the coming years and we will need to consider the future 
delivery method for these services. A list of our key contracts, annual values and end dates 
are in the table below: 

 

Service Provider Average Annual 
Value 

End Date 

    

ICT Sopra Steria £0.793m Dec 2022 

Revenues and Benefits Sopra Steria £1.753m Dec 2022 

Customer Services Sopra Steria £0.609m Dec 2022 

Waste Services and Ground  
Maintenance 

Urbaser £4.500m March 2029 

Grounds Maintenance Continental 
Landscapes 

£1.100m March 2029 

Housing Repair and  
Maintenance (HRA) 

Mears £12.000 Sept 2022 

 
2.1.21 We also have some shared service arrangements with other Councils, these deliver efficient 

services and provide economies of scale. Our two key shared services are the Herts Shared 
Internal Audit Service, and Herts Building Control.  
 

2.1.22 Market and inflationary increases may have a direct impact on our finances when existing 
arrangements come to an end, and we put in place new arrangements for service delivery. 

 
Demographics, Business and Local Plan 

 
2.1.23 Demographics of the area have a direct impact on our services and finances. Our Local Plan, 

which is currently under review, sets the direction for the area in terms of housing and 
commercial developments, and general growth in the area.  
 

2.1.24 Increases in the numbers of households and businesses, positively impacts on the council tax, 
business rates and other income that we can raise, but also places more pressure on services 
and can be directly linked to contractual increases. 

 
2.1.25 Other demographic changes can also impact on our services and finances, for example an 

aging population may increase demands on sheltered accommodation, housing benefit and 
council tax support. 

 
2.1.26 Average increases for previous years will be assumed for planning purposes, until a new Local 

Plan has been adopted, at which points forecasts will be reviewed.  
 

Legislative changes  
 

2.1.27 Legislative changes made by Government, often have a direct impact on the services we 
provide and the income we can raise. This can include increased duties, transfer of functions 
and restrictions on income generation.  
 

Page 100



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

6 
 

2.1.28 In recent years, we have been restricted from increasing housing rental income (HRA) in line 
with inflation, and in fact have had to reduce rent by 1% per annum for four consecutive years. 
This had a material effect on the income available to the Council for the development of new 
housing. The Government has announced that we can start to increase rents by CPI +1% from 
2020/21. 

 
2.1.29 Other legislative changes made in recent years include changing planning fees to allow 

additional investment into planning services, increasing our duties on homelessness which in 
turn increased our costs, and changing legislation around houses in multiple occupation, 
expanding the licencing remit of council and allowing charges to be made for these licences.  

 
2.1.30 In 2020/21 it is planned that some of the functions of local land charges will transfer to Her 

Majesty’s Land Registry. This is likely to have an adverse impact on our budget, although at 
this stage it is not anticipated this will be a material impact, as part of the income generation 
function of the work will remain with the council.  

 
2.1.31 Legislative changes rarely come with additional ongoing funding. We will sometimes receive 

a one off grant from the Government which will help support set up costs of new requirements, 
but we generally have to find ways to cover the ongoing costs of these changes.  

 
Pay and Pensions 

 
2.1.32 For the review of pay and employment conditions, we are part of an arrangement with the 

National Joint Council which allows negotiations to take place with the unions at a national 
level.  
 

2.1.33 The most recent agreement was a two year pay settlement which ended in 2019/20, and 
included a review of pay structures, a 2% increase per annum, with higher increases for those 
on the lower pay scales to ensure these met the level of the National Living Wage.  

 
2.1.34 No agreement has been reached for 2020/21 onwards. The Unions have requested some 

large increases, and it is not expected that an outcome will be reached quickly. This is a key 
area for our sensitivity analysis and reserves strategy. 

 
2.1.35 We are also part of a nationally agreed scheme for pensions. In 2016, the valuations of the 

scheme showed that it was 83% funded, meaning there was a historical deficit which would 
need funding from future contributions.  

 
2.1.36 The latest triennial valuation (2019) now shows the fund as 94% funded, and strong 

improvement from the previous valuation.  
 

2.1.37 We have historically opted to make additional one-off payments on triennial valuations, in order 
to maintain our medium-term contribution rates at existing levels.  

 
2.1.38 We will again make a one-off contribution to the pension fund before the end of 2019/20, to 

ensure stabilised rates for the next triennial period. This payment will be for £1.848m, of which 
£1.201m would be attributable to the General Fund, and £0.647m to the Housing Revenue 
Account. We have set aside funds in an earmarked reserve to support with this payment. It is 
proposed that a contribution will be made to replenish this reserve in 2020/21, to fund the 
triennial review due within the period of this MTFS. 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

7 
 

Welfare Support 
 

2.1.39 We provide direct welfare support through the Council Tax Support Scheme, which is funded 
locally as a direct cost to our budget. Other support, such as Housing Benefit, is administered 
by us but is funded by the Government.  
 

2.1.40 Impacts on the wider economy from factors such as Brexit, may have a direct impact on us 
through the level of Council Tax Support that will need to be funded.  
 

2.1.41 In addition, the Government continues to roll out universal credit, which will see Housing 
Benefit removed from our administration, as it will bring Housing Benefit together with other 
welfare support provided by the Government.  
 

2.1.42 At this stage, indications are that we will continue to have responsibility for providing Housing 
Benefit to those of pensionable age for the foreseeable future. 

 
2.1.43 Welfare reforms are expected to have a direct impact on our Housing Revenue Account. As 

additional caps to benefits are made and claimants transition to universal credit, we expect it 
to become more difficult to collect rental income. 

 
Council Tax 
 

2.1.44 The Government remains committed to its manifesto promise of council tax referendum 
principles. These principles aim to strike a balance between giving local authorities the 
flexibility to determine their own level of council tax and ensuring local residents have the final 
say on excessive increases. 
 

2.1.45 Historically, we froze Council Tax for seven consecutive years, followed by two £5 per annum 
increases, and then in 2019/20 a 2.5% increase. 
 

2.1.46 For 2020/21, the government has capped our increase in council tax by a maximum of 2% or 
£5 (whichever is greater). For our budget, we have set a 1.49% increase for 2020/21. 

 
2.1.47 Local government is being driven by central government to become more financially self-

sustainable and it is expected that local tax, fees and charges for services and other locally 
driven income sources will become more important. However, these referendum principles do 
act to restrict the level of self-sustainability we are able to achieve.  

 
Capital, Investments and Borrowing 
 

2.1.48 Our capital plans can have a direct impact on our revenue budget. Through spending reserves 
and capital balances on investment (such as regeneration and housing), we hold less cash, 
and therefore get less interest return.  
 

2.1.49 If we borrow to fund a capital project, we incur interest costs on this borrowing, and also have 
a duty to ensure repayment is affordable in the medium to longer-term. 
 

2.1.50 With capital projects, there may also be ongoing revenue costs (for example as maintenance 
of vehicles), or savings that need to be considered in the medium to longer-term context.  

 
2.1.51 We have previously raised all of our long-term borrowing from the PWLB. However, the 

government recently increased new borrowing rates by 1%, which will have an impact on our 
future borrowing costs. 

Page 102



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

8 
 

2.2)  Revenue Forecasts and Assumptions 
 

General Fund 
 

2.2.1 Starting with our proposed 2020/21 budget, we have undertaken medium-term forecasts for 
our General Fund Revenue budget. We have used the following key assumptions, along with 
other known factors (such as one off items, our reserves strategy and any savings or growth 
already identified in budget reports for future years): 

 

 Assumption 
 

Grant Funding (2.1.3 
onwards) 

No Revenue Support Grant received 
 
Reducing New Home Bonus (no legacy payments from 2020/21, 
no new payments from 2020/21) – No grant from 2023/24 
 

Business Rates (2.1.3 
onwards) 

Reset of Business Rates Baseline – current values assumed 
excluding local (pilot/pool gains) 
 
 

Inflation / Contracts 
(2.1.11 onwards) 

Contracts inflated by RPI 
 
Income and general costs inflated by CPI 
 
Fuel inflated by 5% 
 

Pay and Pensions 
(2.1.31 onwards) 

Pay inflated by 2% per annum 
 
No change to pensions contribution rate 
 
Additional triennial contribution to fund 
 

Welfare Support 
(2.1.38 onwards) 

All costs associated with welfare reform will be met by the 
Government 
 
No material changes to Council Tax Support 
 

Council Tax (2.1.43 
onwards) 
 

Growth in housing numbers by 1% per annum  
 
Increase in charge by 1.5% per annum 
 

Borrowing and 
Investments (2.1.47-
49 and 2.1.11 
onwards) 

Average Investment Income Rate 0.7% (excluding CCLA 
property fund) 
 
Average Borrowing Rate 3% over the three year plan 
 
Housing Company based on company business plan and risk-
based adjustments 

 
2.2.2 The forecasts based on these assumptions, shown in table 2.2a, indicate a savings 

requirement of £1.587m in 2021/22 and a further £0.343m in 2022/23. 
 

Page 103



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

9 
 

2.2.3 We have already embarked on a number of projects and programmes to support the delivery 
of these challenging targets (section 2.3), but additional efficiencies will need to be identified 
in order to continue to deliver a balanced budget.  

 
 

Table 2.2a - General Fund Forecasts 
 

  

2020/21 
Budget 

2021/22 
Forecast 

2022/23 
Forecast 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

    

Cost Of Services    

Employees 14,111 14,386 14,717 

Premises 3,496 3,566 3,637 

Supplies and Services 5,022 4,923 4,932 

Transport 102 103 103 

Third Party Payments 13,831 14,108 14,390 

Transfer Payments 28,323 28,323 28,323 

Income (45,654) (46,215) (46,264) 

Net Recharge to HRA (5,365) (5,473) (5,582) 

Net Cost of Services 13,865 13,720 14,007 

    

Impact of previous savings   (1,587) 

Revised Net Cost of Services 13,865 13,720 12,420 

    

Other Income and Expenditure    

Income from Council Tax (10,781) (11,051) (11,327) 

Business Rates Retention (4,908) (4,070) (4,150) 

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit 1,472 0 0 

New Homes Bonus Grant (1,028) (357) (156) 

Interest Income (30) (157) (242) 

Capital Financing (Leases, contributions to 
capital, interest, minimum revenue provision) 

1,509 1,899 2,104 

Parish Precepts 1,627 1,668 1,709 

Contributions from Earmarked Reserves (1,329) (65) (15) 

Contribution to Pensions Earmarked Reserve 1,200 0 0 

Planned use of Working Balances (1,597) 0 0 

Total Other Income and Expenditure (13,865) (12,133) (12,076) 

    

Savings Target (Single Year) 0 1,587 343 

    

Savings Target (Cumulative) 0 1,587 1,930 

 
 

Page 104



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

10 
 

 
Housing Revenue Account 

  
2.2.4 For the Housing Revenue Account, due to the longer-term basis of investment in housing, we 

undertake 30-year planning and forecasting. This is in line with the wider housing sector, and 
the focus is on the affordability of investment and new build housing rather than meeting 
savings targets. We do however continue to monitor and review the services provided to 
ensure these continue to deliver best value.  
 

2.2.5 Based upon the proposed 2020/21 budget and other known factors (such as one-off items, our 
reserves strategy and any savings or growth already identified in budget reports for future 
years), we have undertaken forecasts for our HRA using the following key assumptions: 

 

 Assumption 
 

Inflation / Contracts Contracts inflated by RPI 
 
Income and general costs inflated by CPI 
 
Fuel inflated by 5% 
 

Pay and Pensions Pay inflated by 2% per annum 
 
No change to pensions contribution rate 
 
Additional triennial contribution to fund 
 

Housing Rent 
 

CPI + 1% for first five years 
 
CPI for all years after this 
 

Borrowing Average borrowing rate of 3.5% over the 30 year plan 
 

Investment 
 

Investing in stock based upon conditions survey and our minimum 
housing standards 
 
Continuing to replace sold Right to Buy properties through new 
development and/or purchase of properties.  
  

 
2.2.6 The main expenditure activities of the HRA are in relation to the management, repairs, 

maintenance and investment into our social housing. 
 

2.2.7 The forecasts based on these assumptions, shown in table 2.2b, demonstrate that we will be 
able to maintain our HRA reserves in line with our reserves policy (Annex A). Based on the 
longer forecasts, debt is expected to be repaid within a 22-year period, well within the remit of 
the 30-year plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

11 
 

 
 
Table 2.2b – Housing Revenue Account Forecasts 
 
 

  

2020/21 
Budget 

2021/22 
Forecast 

2022/23 
Forecast 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

    

Income    

Rental Income (49,175) (50,653) (52,879) 

Non Dwelling Rents (551) (562) (573) 

Charges for Services and Facilities (2,622) (2,674) (2,727) 

Other Income (413) (462) (471) 

Total Income (52,801) (54,351) (56,650) 

    

Expenditure    

Repairs and Maintenance 9,688 9,881 10,079 

Management, Special Service and Rates/Taxes 13,870 14,142 14,424 

Allowance for Doubtful Debt 490 506 529 

Depreciation 15,440 15,749 16,064 

Other Expenditure 28 29 30 

Total Revenue Expenditure 39,516 40,308 41,126 

    

Other Items of Income and Expense    

Interest Payable 6,373 6,745 7,100 

Interest Received (163) (162) (163) 

Revenue Contribution to Capital 7,224 7,383 8,474 

Net (surplus)/deficit 149 (77) (113) 

  
 
 

  

2020/21 
Budget 

2021/22 
Forecast 

2022/23 
Forecast 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

    

HRA Reserves    

Opening HRA Balance 2,789 2,640 2,717 

Net (deficit)/surplus (149) 77 113 

Closing HRA Balance 2,640 2,717 2,830 

Page 106



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

12 
 

 

2.3)  Revenue Strategies and Efficiency Programmes 
 

2.3.1 We have embarked on a range of projects and programmes which will support us to deliver 
our aims and also support the delivery of a balanced budget. Principally these focus on the 
General Fund, although our Modernisation Programme will deliver efficiencies for both 
revenue funds.  

 
2.3.2 In addition to these, there are numerous strategies and policies which are reviewed on an 

annual basis which can be used to help us drive efficiencies. 
 

Modernisation Programme 
 
2.3.3 In 2019, following a very positive Local Government Association Peer Challenge report and 

recommendations, our chief executive set out a vision to all staff on the modernisation and 
transformation of our services. A suite of strategic, medium-term projects are underway to 
change the way we work and deliver services, including our customer services strategy and 
digital strategy. These various streams of work will not only improve the services we deliver 
but also generate efficiencies in the way we deliver them.  

 
Baseline Reset 

 
2.3.4 A baseline budget reset was undertaken for the 2020/21 budget following a historic trend of 

underspends. This review involved reviewing the average spend for the previous three 
years, and resetting budgets based on need. This review will form part of a rolling 
programme of budget reviews in the future, but savings would not be anticipated of the same 
level in future years.  

 
Housing Company 

 
2.3.5 In 2019, we started the process of setting up a wholly owned company, with the ambition to 

meet a housing demand not being met on the open market. The company “Now Housing”, 
will provide an intermediary rental product to residents who do not qualify for social housing, 
but cannot afford market rental. Through sharing of employees, and the financing 
arrangements of the company, efficiencies will also be generated for the Council. 

 
Local Plan 

 
2.3.6 We are in the process of reviewing our local plan, which will identify key sites for future 

housing and employment developments.  The plan will impact on housing numbers in the 
area, therefore affecting council tax and grant income. It will also impact on employment 
developments, affecting business rates.  

 
Asset Management Strategy / Property Development 

 
2.3.7 We will be updating our asset management strategy, which will assist us to drive value from 

our assets, both revenue and capital, which will support in delivering the required 
efficiencies. 
 

2.3.8 In addition, we will be continuing to drive forward with the redevelopment and regeneration 
of council owned sites identified in the asset management strategy and local plan. This will 
in turn increase asset value, revenue/capital returns, and council tax and business rates 
generation. 

 

Page 107



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

13 
 

 
Crematorium 

 
2.3.9 We have embarked on a project to deliver a crematorium with the borough to help meet the 

bereavement demands of the area.  This project continues to progress, and in addition to 
meeting service demands, it will also generate income which will help us meet our efficiency 
targets.  

 
Contracts 

 
2.3.10 As a number of our large contracts come towards an end, we will take the opportunity to 

undertake market testing and analysis to understand if outsourcing these services still offers 
the best value for money. We will consider all options for these services, including delivering 
directly, outsourcing, and shared services.  

 
Financial Planning Framework 
 

3.1.1 Our growth and savings are reviewed and approved in line with our Financial Planning 
Framework (Annex D), which includes reviewing proposals against our corporate objectives. 
 
Fees and Charges 

 
2.3.11 As part of our budget setting process, we maintain a fees and charges strategy which 

provides the key principles behind the setting of fees and charges (Annex B). In general, 
the key principles are: 

 

• We will charge users for services, where we have the power to do so 

• We will aim to recover the cost of services through fees and charges 

• We will be transparent and be able to justify when there is a policy decision not 
charge or fully recover the cost of a service 

 
Risk Management 

 
2.3.12 Risk Management is a key feature of our financial planning process. We are aware of the 

need for effective risk management and consider the assessment and minimisation of risk 
to be vital. We have a Risk Management Strategy in place, and our financial risks are 
assessed in line with our overall approach to risk management. 

 
2.3.13 To mitigate risk we monitor our spend and income against budgets, and use performance 

and risk management software to monitor and report on risks and key indicators which have 
financial implications.  

 
2.3.14 We report quarterly to Cabinet, Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to 

Performance Clinics, which provides the platforms for Members to scrutinise our financial 
and non-financial performance and risks. 

 
2.3.15 As part of determining our minimum reserves (working balances), we undertake a high-level  

assessment on the risks we have identified in our MTFS. This informs our reserves policy. 
A summary showing the potential impact of some of the key risks we have identified is 
shown in the following table: 

 
 
 
 

Page 108



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

14 
 

 

Risk Scenario 
 

Impact 
(£m) 

Business 
Rates 

Significant economic downturn, loss of businesses 
located in the Borough and high level of appeals 
(Maximum impact) 
 

2.20 

Council Tax Economic downturn adversely impacts development of 
new housing and 10% increase in Council Tax Support 
 

0.21 

Inflation Salary and contract inflation greater that budgeted by 
1% 
 

0.26 

Pensions Current service costs increase by 1%  
 

0.10 

Borrowing Changes in economy adversely impact borrowing rates 
by 1% 
 

0.15 

Efficiencies We fail to deliver 10% of our budgeted savings 
 

0.16 

 
Reserves Policy 

 
2.3.16 Our Reserves Policy (Annex A) sets out how we will maintain an adequate level of reserves 

for future risks and uncertainties, and how we will use our earmarked reserves to help us 
achieve our objectives (such as through funding a one off invest to save project).  In 
summary: 
 

• We will report annually on the adequacy of our reserves  

• We will maintain a minimum working balance on the General Fund of 5% of turnover 
(excluding benefit grant income) 

• We will maintain a minimum working balance on the HRA of 5% of turnover 

• We will ensure reserves are monitored and reported on regularly 
 

Capital Costs 
 
2.3.17 Our Capital Forecasts and Strategy (section 3) sets out our approach to how we determine 

what we spend on capital projects, and how these assessed for revenue implications.   
 

2.3.18 Our Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (Annex C) sets out how we determine the most 
efficient and affordable way to repay our borrowing.  

 
2.3.19 Our Treasury Management Strategy (Annex F) and Investment Strategy (Annex E) ensure 

we take a risk based approach to the management of our cash, investments and borrowing, 
balancing risk against return/cost. 

 
Council Tax 

 
2.3.20 We set our council tax increases on an annual basis as part of our budget setting process. 

For the purposes of forecasting, a 1.5% increase has been assumed for future years. 
However, we may decide to increase at a different level when setting the budget, to help 
meet our challenging targets. The table blow shows the impact of an additional 0.5% charge 
on the current assumptions: 

Page 109



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

15 
 

 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

 £000 £000 £000 

Tax-base Assumptions 42,590.0 43,015.9 43,446.0 

    

Current Forecasts    

Previous Years Band D Tax £211.77 £214.92 £218.14 

Council Tax Band D increase   1.49% 1.50% 1.50% 

Increase (£) £3.15 £3.22 £3.27 

Average Band D tax (£) £214.92 £218.14 £221.41 

Council Tax Income (1.5% all years) £9.153m  £9.383m  £9.619m  

        

Additional 0.5%    

Previous Years Band D Tax £211.77 £216.00 £220.32 

Council Tax Band D increase   2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 

Increase (£) £4.23 £4.32 £4.40 

Average Band D tax (£) £216.00 £220.32 £224.72 

Council Tax Income (2% future years) £9.199m  £9.477m  £9.763m  

    

Cumulative Impact of additional 0.5% £46k £94k £144k 

    

 

Page 110



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

16 
 

3 Capital Forecasts and Strategy  
 

Capital expenditure is what we spend on assets, such as property, vehicles, buildings and 
software, which will last more than one year. For local councils, it can also include spend on 
assets owned by others, such as grants to voluntary organisations made for capital 
purposes.  

 

3.1)  Summary and Approach 
 
3.1.1 Our Capital Forecasts and Strategy provide a high-level overview of how our capital 

expenditure, financing and treasury activities contribute to our overall financial position, and 
how they contribute to the delivery of our services.   
 

3.1.2 A key aspect of our capital activities is ensuring we have clear risk management processes 
and indicators in place to inform robust decisions, and to understand the implications of any 
decisions on our longer-term financial sustainability.  

 
3.1.3 We maintain a register of our assets and key components, which along with our asset 

management strategy, helps to inform future capital expenditure requirements and capital 
income opportunities.  

 
3.1.4 Our budgets are set and approved in line with our Financial Planning Framework (Annex D), 

and expenditure is capitalised in line with international accounting standards, the CIPFA code 
of conduct and our own accounting policies (which are published in our annual statement of 
accounts).  

 
3.1.5 As with our revenue accounts, we maintain separate capital records for our General Fund and 

our Housing Revenue Account assets. 
 

Economic and Market Conditions 
 

3.1.6 As outlined in our revenue summary, there continues to be extreme uncertainty in economic 
and market conditions, and it is unclear how the UKs exit from the EU will impact the country’s 
economy.  

 
3.1.7 Sudden and material changes in market and economic conditions can potentially have 

significant impacts on the Councils capital programme.  
 
3.1.8 Increases in inflation can directly impact the cost of delivery of a capital project and increase 

our borrowing requirements. 
 

3.1.9 Such increases, along with changes in the housing market, could make some of our planned 
schemes unviable to deliver.  

 
3.1.10 We mitigate these risks where possible, by taking professional market advice, ensuring 

inflation is applied to future capital schemes in our programme, and build in a risk-based 
contingency to our capital projects.  

 

Page 111



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

17 
 

3.2)  Capital Forecasts and Assumptions 
 

3.2.1 A summary of our capital expenditure forecasts including rephasing in 2019/20 are as follows: 
 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m £’m 

General Fund (GRF) 30.020 4.035 1.561 1.411 1.501 

Housing Revenue Account 37.257 42.832 28.101 17.061 16.349 

Sub-Total 67.277 46.867 29.662 18.472 17.850 

      

Loans to Now Housing (GRF)  25.418 17.072 12.770 18.595 3.603 

Total 92.695 63.939 42.432 37.067 21.453 

 
3.2.2 The majority of spend in our general fund is in relation to regeneration and property projects, 

and for the delivery of new affordable housing in our HRA. A detailed list of our capital projects 
can be found in our budget pack, published on our website by April each year.  
 

3.2.3 We have a range of sources available to us to finance our capital expenditure. These include 
grant receipts, income from the sale of assets, contributions from our revenue balances, and 
borrowing. We determine the financing for expenditure as part of our budget setting process. 

 
3.2.4 A large proportion of the financing for our HRA, comes from a statutory process for the sale of 

our housing to tenants (the Right to Buy scheme). We have assumed 40 sales per year. 
 

3.2.5 The tables below show our forecasts for the financing of our capital expenditure.  
 

General Fund 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m £’m 

Grants and Contributions 13.009 1.292 0.592 0.592 0.592 

Reserves and Revenue 
Contributions 

4.015 1.508 0.884 0.819 0.909 

Borrowing 12.996 1.235 0.085 0.000 0.000 

Sub-Total 30.020 4.035 1.561 1.411 1.501 

      

Borrowing for Now Housing 25.418 17.072 12.770 18.595 3.603 

Total 57.438 21.107 14.331 20.006 5.104 

 

Housing Revenue Account 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m £’m 

Grants and Contributions 0.672 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Reserves and Revenue 
Contributions 

20.072 11.782 8.392 5.324 5.121 

Borrowing 16.513 31.050 19.709 11.737 11.228 

Total 37.257 42.832 28.101 17.061 16.349 

 
3.2.6 As shown in the tables above, we do finance some of our schemes through the use of 

borrowing. We can decide to postpone external borrowing and use our revenue reserves to 
support the cash flows of capital expenditure. This is known as internal borrowing and reduces 
the interest costs we incur on borrowing in the short to medium term. 
 
 
 

Page 112



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

18 
 

3.2.7 The total amount of cash required to fund the schemes we borrow for (whether internally or 
externally) is known as the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). It is important that we 
monitor our requirement, as this will require repayment in the longer term, and we ensure we 
have strategies in place for repayment. Our CFR forecasts are as follows: 

 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m £’m 

General Fund 52.140 52.166 50.953 49.616 48.279 

Loans to Now Housing (GRF)  25.418 42.480 55.196 73.692 77.146 

Housing Revenue Account 234.590 244.241 241.250 228.787 214.215 

Total 312.148 338.887 347.398 352.095 339.64 

Page 113



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

19 
 

3.3)  Capital Strategies and Indicators 
 

3.3.1 In order to ensure our longer-term financial sustainability, and the affordability of our capital 
plans, we maintain numerous strategies and make use of indicators. These also help inform 
our decisions and monitor risk. 
 
Financial Planning Framework 
 

3.3.2 Our schemes are reviewed and approved in line with our Financial Planning Framework 
(appendix D), which includes the calculation and approval of our capital indicators on risk 
exposure and affordability. This ensures sound governance is embedded into our budgetary 
approval process. 
 
Financing Approach 
 

3.3.3 We will always seek to apply for and utilise grant funding, ringfenced funds and contributions 
received before utilising other unrestricted funds. This minimises the ongoing burden of 
borrowing, and maintains capital reserves where possible. 
 

3.3.4 We aim to restrict borrowing to income generating, or long-term assets (40+ years). This is 
also to minimise the ongoing impact of borrowing. 

 
3.3.5 We aim to fund the shorter-term projects, rolling programme and any other schemes from 

capital reserves and balances. We can also make a voluntary revenue contribution to capital, 
to reduce borrowing or to reduce the use of capital balances.  
 
Debt Repayment 
 

3.3.6 We must ensure that we set enough money aside each year, for the repayment of our CFR. 
There are different statutory arrangements that govern the requirements for our General Fund 
and Housing Revenue Account.  
 

3.3.7 For the General Fund, we maintain a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (Annex C). 
This sets out how we will determine over what period we should set aside funds to fully repay 
our CFR.  

 
3.3.8 We will ensure that there is a balance between the cost of MRP and the affordability of debt, 

through the annual review of our MRP policy. Our general approach is to pay for an asset over 
its expected life, subject to the maximum statutory limits. 

 
3.3.9 The Housing Revenue Account makes annual repayments of debt, and the affordability is 

assessed as part of our thirty-year business plan. Our business plan shows debt repayment 
well within the thirty-year period, demonstrating the affordability of our plans. 

 
3.3.10 For the General Fund, in order to ensure affordability, we forecast and monitor the value of the 

minimum revenue provision (MRP). Based on our capital plans, our forecast of total MRP, and 
of the incremental impact of MRP, is shown in the table below: 

 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m £’m 

Previous Years MRP 0.628 0.976 1.209 1.299 1.337 

Increase in MRP 0.348 0.232 0.090 0.038 0.000 

Total MRP  0.976 1.209 1.299 1.337 1.337 

 

Page 114



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

20 
 

3.3.11 Where we borrow to make investments into services, which do not have a direct financial return 
(for example the replacement of our fleet), overall affordability is monitored through the use of 
the following indicators: 

 

• Value: Cost of general fund borrowing in relation to total service income (income 
generating services, excluding community and commercial property)  

• Value: Cost of general fund borrowing in relation to council tax (non-income generating 
services) 

• Term: Years until debt free (Housing Revenue Account)  
 

Investments and Commercial Strategy 
 

3.3.12 We can undertake capital investment activities which will purely or partially generate a profit.  
 

3.3.13 However, we do not generally undertake activities which are purely for profit generation, as 
the main purpose of our capital investment activities are usually to meet our corporate 
objectives, which may or may not have a partial objective of generating profit. 

 
3.3.14 To ensure that we make robust and informed decisions, including a full understanding of risk, 

we will maintain an Investment Strategy (Annex E). 
 

3.3.15 In summary, where we undertake investment activities, we will ensure we maintain a suite of 
indicators to monitor against, ensure professional advice is taken where appropriate and 
ensure officers maintain their professional development.  

 
3.3.16 Our key indicators for investments and commercial activities are as follows: 

 

• Ratio: Loan to value / CFR to asset base (community and commercial property) 

• Ratio: Principal cover / MRP to income stream (community and commercial property) 

• Ratio: Interest Cover / Income to interest cost (community and commercial property) 

• Ratio: Interest Cover / Income to interest cost (Housing Company) 
 

3.3.17 Additional indicators to monitor performance (such as occupancy rates of community and 
commercial assets) are monitored as part of the Councils performance framework and 
reviewed annually.  
 
Treasury Management Strategy 

 
3.3.18 Our Treasury Management Strategy (Annex F) ensures we maintain sufficient and not 

excessive funds to meet our spending needs. It provides the framework for managing the risks 
involved with investing our surplus cash and borrowing for investment in services or for 
cashflow purposes. 
 

3.3.19 Our main priorities for the investment of cash balances are to ensure the security of our cash, 
and to maintain the appropriate level of liquidity to meet our needs. We give these objectives 
priority over the return on investment (interest income). 

 
3.3.20 Our main priorities when undertaking borrowing are to achieve a low but certain cost of finance, 

whilst retaining flexibility should plans change in the future. These objectives can be 
conflicting, and so we seek to strike a balance between short and long term borrowing. 

 
3.3.21 We formally report on our treasury management activities regularly (strategy setting, mid-year, 

and at year-end) and monitor against a set of indicators. These are: 
 

Page 115



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

21 
 

• Borrowing Limit – Operational Boundary 

• Borrowing Limit – Authorised Limit 

• Borrowing Limit – Maturity Structure of Borrowing 

• Investment Limit – Cash invested beyond one year 
 

3.3.22 This strategy also set out how we apportion interest costs and income between our revenue 
accounts, the limits with financial institutions and details our use of specialist advisors. 

 

Page 116



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

22 
 

4 Professional Advice, Skills, Training and Capacity 
 

In order to ensure we can enact our strategy and governance framework; we must ensure we 
have the correct skills and capacity to do so. This section applies to all areas of our medium-
term financial strategy and governance framework, including our policies, strategies and 
frameworks.  

 
4.1.1 We have professionally qualified staff across a range of disciplines, including finance, legal 

and property. 
 

4.1.2 We ensure our staff maintain continual professional development and attend courses to keep 
abreast of new developments and to enhance and develop their skills.  
  

4.1.3 We will ensure we have or procure the right skills and knowledge to support the delivery of our 
all of our financial strategies and governance frameworks. Where specialist or technical 
knowledge is required, we will engage professional external advisors. 

 
4.1.4 We establish project teams from the relevant professional disciplines as required but will also 

utilise external professional advice to support with technical/professional specialisms and/or 
capacity.  

 
4.1.5 External advice will always be sought for significant investments, including treasury 

investments (such as treasury advice), commercial investments (such as property, treasury 
and legal advice), or service investments (such as legal advice, market expert advice and 
treasury advice).  

 
4.1.6 Internal and external training is also available to our Members to ensure they have the up to 

date knowledge and expertise to understand an scrutinise financial decisions.  
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 117



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

23 
 

Annex A – Reserves Policy 
 

A1 This policy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy and is reviewed annually. It sets the 
minimum level of balances required, explains the different types of reserves held, and our 
governance arrangements.  

 
A2 The policy applies to both the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account reserves, both 

revenue and capital. It is important that our Councillors understand the reserves policy and the 
importance of maintaining an adequate level of reserves when reviewing and approving our 
budget, which will be done with the advice of our Chief Financial Officer. 

 
A3 CIPFA guidelines were issued in November 2008 under LAAP Bulletin No. 77. The main areas 

covered in these guidelines are set out in this policy together with our approach to these. 
 

The Existing Legislative/Regulatory Framework  
 

A4 The requirement for financial reserves and safeguards are set out in in statute (Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 and Local Government Act 2003). These requires us to have 
regard to the level of reserves needed for meeting estimated future expenditure when 
calculating the budget requirement, and to ensure safeguards are in place, including:   
 

• Setting a balanced budget  

• Having the view of the Chief Finance Officer on the robustness of estimates and 
adequacy of reserves when considering the budget requirement 

• Making arrangements for proper administration of our financial affairs, where the 
Chief Finance Officer is the responsible person (Section 151 duties) 

 
A5 The Chief Finance Officer must report (under section 114) to all our councillors if there is, or is 

likely to be, unlawful expenditure or an unbalanced budget. This would include situations where 
reserves have become seriously depleted and it is forecast that the authority will not have the 
resources to meet its expenditure in a particular financial year. The issue of a section 114 notice 
by the Chief Finance officer cannot be taken lightly and has serious operational implications.  

 
A6 Guidance on specific levels of reserves and balances is not given in statute, by CIPFA or the 

Auditors. There is no statutory minimum level of reserves. It is up to local authorities themselves 
to set their own level of reserves and balances on the advice of the Chief Finance Officer.  
 
The role of the Chief Financial Officer 
 

A7 Within the existing statutory and regulatory framework, it is the responsibility of the Section 151 
Officer to advise the Council about the level of reserves that it should hold and to ensure that 
there are clear protocols for their establishment and use. For the Council, the Section 151 Officer 
is the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services). 

 
A8 The Council then, acting on the advice of the Section 151 Officer, and taking into account all 

local circumstances, must make its own judgements on the level of reserves and balances.  
 
A9 Local circumstances include the strategic, operational and financial risks and the adequate and 

effective systems of internal control.  
 
A10 The Chief Finance Officer will report to the Council on the adequacy of reserves, and reserve 

movements will be considered as part of our budget monitoring arrangements. 
 

Page 118



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

24 
 

 
Types of Reserve 
 

A11 Usable reserves can be held for three main purposes:  
 

• Working Balances – These reserves help to cushion the impact of uneven cash flows, 
avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing, and provide funds for unexpected events or 
emergencies. 

• Earmarked Reserves – These are where funds are set aside for a future purpose such 
as to help deliver a long-term strategy, to change processes, or deliver specific one 
off projects. These future purposes can be very specific, or may be quite broad, 
dependant on the level of detail known when setting up a reserve.  

• Capital Reserves – These are where we keep the balance of an unutilised capital 
funds. These funds can be made up of capital receipts, contributions, grants and 
contributions from revenue.  

 
A12 We also hold other ‘un-useable’ reserves that arise out of legislation and accounting standards. 

These reserves are not cash backed and cannot be used for other purposes. These are 
separated on the face of our core financial statements which are published each year.  
 
Target Working Balances / Reserves 
 

A13 The principles used by the Chief Finance Officer to assess the adequacy of unallocated general 
reserves when setting the budget, ensure that account is taken of the strategic, operational and 
financial risks facing the authority.  

 
A14 Setting the level of reserves is just one of several interrelated decisions in the formulation of the 

medium-term financial strategy (MTFS) and the budget for a particular year.  
 
A15 Consideration is given to the key assumptions underpinning the budget alongside the authority’s 

financial management arrangements, and the risks, opportunities, economic and local factors 
identified in the MTFS. We also consider previous guidance issued by the Audit Commission. 

 
A16 For the General Fund, a risk-based approach is taken to estimate reserve requirements, which 

is then considered as a percentage of turnover. This provides a risk-based approach to short 
term reserve levels, and a proxy for our forecasts of medium-term reserve requirements.  

 
A17 For 2020/21, the minimum working balances have been assessed as £2.6m, which equates to 

around 5% of turnover (excluding benefits subsidy). On this basis, the medium-term minimum 
working balance has been set as 5% of turnover. 
 

A18 We may decide to make use of the working balances to help balance the budget in the short 
term, such as for one off expenditure, due to a delay to an efficiency proposal, or to reduce the 
level of working balances to target. However, working balances will not be utilised for recurrent 
expenditure without this being explicit in the budget report, and on the advice of the Chief 
Financial Officer.   

 
A19 For the Housing Revenue Account, due to the restricted nature of the funds, and lower exposure 

to as many risks, the target working balance is maintained as low as reasonably possible to 
minimise borrowing costs. On this basis, 5% of turnover is used, which supports cashflows, and 
provides a cushion for risk.  

 
 
 

Page 119



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

25 
 

Earmarked Reserves 
 

A20 Our earmarked reserve balances, the reason for holding these reserves, along with any 
budgeted contributions to and from these reserves, will be approved by Full Council as part of 
the annual budget setting process.  

 
A21 Additional contributions to and from these reserves may be made during the year, or at the end 

of the year, as approved by Full Council or under delegated authority as appropriate. 
 
A22 Priorities may also be identified as part of the budget setting process where reserves, or 

increases to reserves may be required. Should there be a favourable variance at year end these 
would be the first areas for consideration.  

 
A23 We will not create earmarked reserves for expenditure that should be treated as a provision, 

which is determined by accounting standards and the CIPFA code of practice on Local 
Government Accounting.  
 
Capital Reserves 
 

A24 There is no target/minimum balance for capital reserves.  
 
A25 Capital receipts and contributions are restricted for capital use, and reserves are used in line 

with the capital financing strategies set out in the MTFS.  
 
A26 Consideration will be given to other financing methods to enable reserves to be utilised for future 

capital expenditure, while balancing the risk of investing and cost to carry. 
 
A27 We will consider the strategic disposal of assets to generate additional capital receipts where 

appropriate and will do this in line with our asset management strategy. 

 
Reporting and Governance Framework  
 

A28 The Chief Finance Officer has a duty to local taxpayers and must be satisfied that the decisions 
taken on balances and reserves represent proper stewardship of public funds. 

 
A29 Compliance with this policy assists the Chief Finance Officer to be satisfied that there are 

governance arrangements in place for our reserves. 
 
A30 The level and utilisation of reserves is determined formally by the Council at its meetings to 

approve the annual budget and the final accounts. These decisions are informed by the advice 
and judgement of the Chief Finance Officer.  

 
A31 The budget report presented annually will include the budget for the next financial year will 

include a statement from the Chief Financial Officer on the adequacy of reserves over the 
lifetime of the medium-term financial strategy. 

 
A32 We actively monitor our budgets throughout the year, and we will report on any forecast changes 

in the level of balances or reserves.  
 
A33 Our annual statement of accounts includes a schedule of all reserves in the balance sheet. 

Significant reserve movements are explained in the Chief Finance Officer’s foreword to the 
accounts and out-turn reports.  

 

Page 120



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

26 
 

Annex B – Fees and Charges Strategy 
 

B1 This Strategy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy and is reviewed annually. It sets 
out our approach to setting our fees and charges.  

 
B2 A significant proportion of our income is derived from fees and charges and a balance has to be 

struck between meeting our statutory responsibilities and the subsidies we provide for 
discretionary services. Our strategy has three core underlying principles: 
 

• We will raise income from users of services wherever there is a power/duty to do so 

• Income raised should cover the full costs of providing the service, and will rise 
annually 

• Any departures from this policy must be justified with reference to the Council’s 
priorities and policies 

 
Raising Income for Services 
 

B3 We believe that raising charges to recover costs is preferable to removing a service completely, 
and we aim to recover costs of services from the users of those services, unless there are wider 
benefits for funding a service in another way. 

 
B4 Statutory defined fees and charges will change in line with the governing legislation.  
 
B5 We will approve a full list of fees and charges at Full Council as part of our budget setting 

process, which will be published.  
 
B6 Concessionary charges may be set for a service and will be appropriate to the circumstances 

of the customer while encouraging increased participation for less advantaged groups. This 
should not lead to unjustifiable preferential treatment. 
 
Covering Service Cost 
 

B7 We will aim to recover the full cost of services through the collection of fees and charges, 
including overheads, where it is possible to do so.  

 
B8 Our fees and charges will increase at least in line with inflation unless there is a clear reason for 

an alternative approach. 
 
B9 Consideration will be given to local circumstances, economic conditions, comparability/ 

benchmarking, the impact of changes on the usage of the service and the user’s ability to pay.  
 
Departures from Policy 
 

B10 When we do not raise income in areas where we have the power to do so, we forego the 
opportunity to cover the cost of the service, which will increase our savings targets. 

 
B11 Members will scrutinise fees and charges and will be supplied with information to allow them to 

make decisions in a structured and explicit manner. Any decision to forego income or to 
subsidise a service is considered a policy decision. 
 

Page 121



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

27 
 

Annex C – Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
 

C1 This Strategy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy and is reviewed annually. It sets 
out our approach to determining how we will efficiently and prudently set aside funds for the 
repayment of our borrowing.  

 
C2 Where we finance General Fund capital expenditure through debt, we must also ensure we  

put aside resources to repay that debt in future years. 
 
C3 An amount is charged to the revenue account on an annual basis for this, and this is known as 

the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).  
 
C4 In determining how much we should set aside each year, we must have regard to the guidance 

issued by the Government and the Local Government Act. The most recent guidance was 
issued in 2018 by the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government. 

 
C5 In order to ensure a prudent and efficient approach is taken to the repayment of debt, we will 

align the period of MRP charges to the period of which the capital expenditure/asset provides 
benefit. 

 
C6 The guidance requires us to produce this annual statement/policy each year and sets out a 

number of options for determining an MRP charge. Our policy on charging MRP is as follows: 
 

• We will adopt the Asset Life method for the calculation of our MRP, where the charge is 
calculated to reflect the life of the asset. 

 

• We will calculate MRP on a straight-line basis, where an equal instalment is made each year, 
and this charge will go to the repayment of external debt, or to the balance sheet to reduce the 
level of capital financing requirement. 

 

• We will not charge MRP in the year of purchase/scheme completion. MRP will be charged from 
the following financial year. 

 

• For capital expenditure loans to third parties that are repaid in annual or more frequent 
instalments of principal, we will make nil MRP, but will instead apply the capital receipts arising 
from principal repayments to reduce the capital financing requirement. In years where there is 
no principal repayment, MRP will be charged in accordance with our standard asset life policy. 

 
 

Page 122



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

28 
 

Annex D – Financial Planning Framework 
 

D1 This Framework supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy and is reviewed annually. It sets 
out our approach to how we will determine our budget priorities, how we will assess budget 
changes, and our governance process.  

  
D2 When setting our budget, we start with our medium-term strategy, which includes all previously 

known factors and assumptions. We then take into account any changes to our plans based on 
the outturn of the most recent financial year. Outlined in the table below are the key stages 
involved in producing the budget: 
 

June We agree our strategic priorities for the next year. 
 
Cabinet approves the framework for the budget setting process for the 
following year. 
 

July/August Budget setting guidance if issued to our senior officers.  
 
Officers are then asked to submit bid forms which outlines any proposals 
they are recommending for incorporation into our budgets, including 
capital projects, efficiencies and growth. 
 

September / 
October 

We update our medium-term financial forecasts to reflect the new bids 
submitted and/or amendments made to existing bids.  
 
All of the bids are reviewed by the Corporate Director (Resources, 
Environmental and Cultural Services) to ensure that the bids submitted 
have complied with the approved budget guidance. 
 

October / 
November  

All bids are then challenged and scrutinised by the Corporate Management 
Team, before discussion with for comments and recommendations.  
 

December The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement is announced by 
the government (this indicates the levels of funding we will receive and any 
policy decisions that may change our budgets). 
 

January Our draft capital and revenue budgets are presented to Cabinet and to 
Resources and Overview Scrutiny Committee for consideration. 
 
Growth, savings and capital bids are considered against our priorities, 
and the impact on affordability and risk indicators considered.  
 
Any budget consultation with the public and/or business rates payers is 
also analysed and fed into the budget decision process. 
 

February Full Council approves next financial year’s council tax, capital and 
revenue budget, and new Medium-Term Financial Strategy and Financial 
Governance Framework.  
 

April The new financial year commences, and the budget approved is then 
assessed under the monitoring process. 

Page 123



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

29 
 

Annex E – Investment Strategy 
 

E1  This policy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and is reviewed annually. It 
ensures we fully understand and consider the risks and opportunities of commercial and service-
based investments.   

 
E2. It sets out our approach to investing money, specifically in relation these commercial and service 

investment activities. 
 
E3 Service based investment activities covers us lending money to, or buying shares in, other 

organisations. 
 
E4 Commercial investment activities cover property and other similar investments to where 

profit/return is the main purpose of the investment.  
  

E5 Investments made for treasury management activities (surplus cash arising from day to day 
activities and cash-flows), are covered separately by the councils Treasury Management 
Strategy (Annex F). 

 
E6 We will ensure we have professionally qualified staff, and make use of external professional 

advice where appropriate, as set out in our MTFS. 
 

Service Based Investments - Loans 
 
E7 We have a number of loan arrangements with local charities, residents, its joint venture and its 

employees to support local public services and stimulate economic growth and provide 
affordable housing.  

 
E8 Our wholly owned company, Now Housing, which will be providing affordable housing in the 

Borough, is due to start trading in 2020/21. We will be lending the company money to invest in 
housing. 

 
E9 These loans are treated as capital expenditure. The main risks associated with service loans, is 

that the borrower will be unable to repay the principal amount lent and/or interest due. In order 
to limit the risk, and exposure remains appropriate and proportionate, limits are set. 

 
E10 We will set these limits giving consideration to the financial risks, an assessment of the demand 

for such services, our risk appetite and professional advice received. A summary of our loans 
for service purposes, and limits are shown in the table below: 
 

Category of 
borrower 

2018/19 actual 2019/20 2020/21 

Balance 
owing  

£000 

Loss 
allowance 

£000 

Net figure 
in 

accounts 
£000 

Forecast 
Balance 

£000 

Limit 
£000 

Joint Venture 107  0 107 107 172 

Local charities 146  0 146 130 146 

Local residents 4,443  0 4,443 4,513 4,800 

Employees 135 0 135 112 250 

Housing Company 0 0 0 0 26,000 

TOTAL 4,822 0 4,822 4,862 31,368 

Page 124



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

30 
 

 
E11 We are required through accounting standards to set aside a loss allowance for loans, to reflect 

the likelihood of non-payment. We make every reasonable effort to recover sums lent and have 
appropriate credit control arrangements in place.  

 
E12 Loans to residents shown in the table, are for the rent to mortgage scheme, which in no longer 

in operation. Although not in operation, balances are still collectable, and a charge is made 
against the relevant properties which ensures recovery when the asset is sold. There is 
therefore minimal risk with non-recovery. 

  
E13 In relation to the Housing Company, debt will be secured against the property owned by the 

company. Due to the anticipated high gearing ratio of the company, a downturn in the housing 
market may lead to the assets being a lower value than the loans. However, as the aim is to 
hold the assets in the long term to provide affordable housing, not to make capital returns, short-
term changes in the property markets should not impact on the longer-term ability of the 
company to repay borrowing. 

 
E14 In making loans, we will ensure we fully consider risk implications, both on the individual loan, 

and the cumulative exposure to risk. 
 
E15 We will ensure that full due diligence is undertaken, that security is in place where appropriate, 

and that loans are actively monitored.  
 
E16 Any business case will set out the benefits and risks of the investment and will require approval 

in line with our constitution and approved policies.  
 
E17 To monitor the exposure risks associated with service-based investments, we will report the 

following information: 
 

• Total service investments made 

• Ratio of Cost to Returns (Cost of borrowing against returns generated) 
 
Commercial Property Investments 
 

E18 We hold a small portfolio of local commercial property, purely for the intention of generating a 
profit to support local services. These assets are historical asset holdings, and have no debt 
associated with them. 

 
E19 These properties are defined as investment properties, and per international accounting 

standard 40, and had a value as at the 31 March 2019 of £5.615m, generating around £428k 
per annum in rental income, which supports the delivery of local services. 

 
E20 While we have no plans to invest in further property, purely for financial return, we monitor our 

existing commercial property investments.  
  
E21 We consider property investment to be secure, if its accounting value is the same as, or higher 

than its purchase price including taxes and transaction costs.  
 
E22 We review our investment property valuations each year to monitor the risk of fluctuations in 

value.  
 
E23 We also monitor the net rental income generated by our property investments to identify trends, 

as reductions in market rent would could point to a fall in property value.  
 

Page 125



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

31 
 

E24 If we wish to undertake further investment in property purely for financial return, we will ensure 
full due diligence is carried out, professional advice is obtained, and a business case presented 
weighing up the risks and benefits. Consideration will be given to liquidity (assets of this type 
are harder to convert back to cash at short notice) and of the wider property market. Any 
investments of this type would require budget approval from Full Council. 
 
Service Based Property Investments 
 

E25 In addition to the property we hold purely for commercial returns, we also hold a large portfolio 
of assets for service reasons, and these assets also generate returns for the Council. Such 
assets include town centre and neighbourhood centre retail units, car parks, community assets 
and business centres.  

 
E26 These properties had a (gross book) value as at the 31 March 2019 of £78.667m, generating 

around £6.747m per annum in rental income, and had £19.814m of debt associated with them. 
 
E27 Whilst the primary purpose of holding these assets is not financial return, they do face similar 

risks to those assets held purely for financial return.  
 
E28 For this reason, we make use of three ratios to help us monitor risks for the community and 

commercial asset portfolio. These indicators are: 
 

• Loan to value (Capital Financing Requirement related to these assets, compared to 
the value of the assets) 

• Principal cover (Minimum Revenue Provision Charge in relation to these assets, 
compared to the net income stream generated from these assets) 

• Interest Cover (Income derived from these assets divided by the interest cost 
associated with these assets) 

 
 
  
 

Page 126



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

32 
 

Annex F – Treasury Management Strategy 
 

F1.1  This strategy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and is reviewed annually. 
It ensures we appropriately manage and protect our cash balances and carefully manage our 
borrowing to support our activities.   

 
F1.2 Treasury Management is the management of the our cash flows, borrowing and investments 

and associated risks. This activity involves substantial sums of money and therefore exposes 
us to financial risks such as loss of funds and impacts from changing interest rates.  

 
F1.3 The successful identification, monitoring and control of these risks are therefore central to 

prudent financial management. 
 
F1.4 Our treasury risk management is conducted within the framework of the Chartered Institute of 

Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of 
Practice 2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code), which requires the approval of a treasury management 
strategy before the start of each year.  

 
F1.5 Our strategy also fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

have regard to the CIPFA Code. It ensures we fully understand and consider the risks and 
opportunities of commercial and service-based investments.   
 
Balance sheet summary and forecast 
 

F2.1 To take a view on likely treasury activity in 2020/21 it is necessary to look at the Council’s 
balance sheet to estimate the level of funds available for investment purposes and any 
borrowing requirements, as shown in the table below: 
 
 

 31.3.19 31.3.20 31.3.21 31.3.22 31.3.23 
Actual Estimate Forecast Forecast Forecast 

£m £m £m £m £m 

General Fund CFR 33.614 40.121 52.140 52.166 50.953 

Loans Requirement (Now 
Housing) 

0.000 0.000 25.418 42.480 55.196 

HRA CFR 241.580 238.078 234.590 244.241 241.250 

Total CFR 275.194 278.199 312.148 338.887 347.399 

Less: Other debt liabilities (2.356) (2.338) (2.320) (2.302) (2.284) 

Loans CFR 272.838 275.861 309.828 336.585 345.515 

Less: Existing borrowing (246,699) (232.899) (212.899) (191.499) (168.799) 

Internal/(over) borrowing 26.139 42.962 96.929 145.086 176.315 

Less: Usable reserves (45.143) (40.323) (31.796) (26.548) (24.081) 

Less: Working capital (8.187) (8.200) (6.200) (4.200) (2.200) 

New Borrowing (cumulative) 0.000 (5.179) (43.515) (81.858) (104.541) 

New Borrowing (cumulative - 
Now Housing) 

0.000 0.000 (25.418) (42.480) (55.196) 

Investments  (27.191) (10.740) (10.000) (10.000) (10.000) 

      

 

Page 127



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

33 
 

Interest rate forecasts 
 

F3.1 Another factor to consider when setting a treasury management strategy is the forecast for 
interest rates. The rates assumed are set out in our MTFS (section 2.1), which are provided by 
our treasury management advisors, Arlingclose. 

 
Borrowing Strategy 

 
F4.1 Objectives: The Council’s primary objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately 

low risk balance between securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those costs over 
the period for which funds are required. The flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s 
long-term plans change is a secondary objective. 

 
F4.2 Strategy: The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR). It represents the amount of debt the Council needs to/has taken 
to fund the capital programme after repayments and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) are 
taken into account. 

 
F4.3 Whether external borrowing is taken out depends on the level of cash balances held by the 

Council, and forecasts relating to this are set out in section F2.1.   
 
F4.4 We manage and monitor our cash position to ensure sufficient funds are available to meet all 

requirements, taking advice from the Council’s treasury advisors Arlingclose Ltd in relation to 
timing and structure of borrowing. This may be through utilising cash balances held by the 
Council (internal borrowing) in the short or medium term.   

 
F4.5 When required and prudent, the Council will borrow externally from external bodies (such as the 

Government through the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) or the money markets). Following 
the 1% increase to PWLB rates in October 2019, this may no longer be the cheapest source of 
borrowing available, so we will always consider other sources where appropriate.   

 
F4.6 We may borrow in advance of need to take advantage of low interest rates, if deemed to be in 

our financial interest.  Any borrowing in advance of need will not exceed the capital financing 
requirement for the current year plus 2 years.  Borrowing for short periods of time to cover 
unexpected cash flow shortages may also be undertaken if required. 

 
F4.7 Context: At 1 April 2020 the Council will hold around £238.073m of long term HRA loans.  The 

debt portfolio was originally structured to mirror projected cash surpluses arising from the HRA 
business plan on the introduction of self-financing, with all loans being repaid by 2028.   

 
F4.8 Our budget shows there is further borrowing requirement of £16.513m in 2020/21, to support 

the Affordable Housing Programme.  We continue to generate receipts from right to buy sales, 
however the number of sales has started to reduce over the last two years. 

 
F4.9 In addition to this, the Government’s four-year rent reduction policy impacted on our ability to 

repay loans as quickly as it originally intended. This means that in the medium term of the 30 
Year HRA Business Plan, additional borrowing will be needed to extend the duration of the 
repayment period. 

 
F4.10 The forecast General Fund borrowing requirement on 1 April 2020 of £40.121m relates to the 

acquisition and refurbishment of properties in recent years to support the economic 
development and regeneration of town and neighbourhood centres in the Borough. 

 
 

Page 128



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

34 
 

F4.11 Sources of borrowing: Our approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing will be: 
 

• Public Works Loan Board and any successor body 

• Any institution approved for investments (see section 7) 

• Any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK 

• Any other UK public sector body 

• UK public and private sector pension funds (except Hertfordshire Pension Fund) 

• Capital market bond investors 

• Special purpose companies created to enable local authority bond issues 
 

F4.12 Other sources of debt finance: In addition, we may finance our capital expenditure through 
other methods that are not directly borrowing cash, but would be classed as debt liabilities: 

 

• Leasing 

• Hire purchase 

• Private Finance Initiative 

• Sale and leaseback 
 
F4.13 We have previously raised all of our cash borrowing from the PWLB but will consider other 

sources of finance, such as local authority loans and bank loans that may be available at more 
favourable rates. 

 
F4.14 Debt rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay 

a premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based on current interest rates.  
 
F4.15 We may take advantage of this and replace some of our loans with new loans, or repay loans 

without replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in 
the our risk exposure. 

 
F4.14 Housing Company: We will lend to our housing company (Now Housing) from 2020/21 for the 

provision of affordable housing. We will undertake our borrowing in line with our Treasury 
Management Strategy. Loans and repayments will be covered through robust loan agreements, 
and will be undertaken in line with the companies business plan, subject to approval by our 
section 151 officer.   
 

F4.16 Governance and Reporting: We maintain a number of indicators to monitor and limit our risk 
exposure in relation to our debt, some of which are required by legislation.  

 
F4.17 Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to 

refinancing risk. Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of 
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment. The upper and lower 
limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will be: 

 

Maturity Structure of Borrowing Upper Limit Lower Limit 

Under 12 months 20% 0% 

12 months and within 24 months 30% 0% 

24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 

5 years and within 10 years 80% 0% 

10 years and within 20 years 100% 0% 

20 years and above 100% 0% 
 

Page 129



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

35 
 

F4.18 Authorised Borrowing Limit: The authorised limit is what we determine to be our maximum 
affordable borrowing in any one year. It is not the amount the Council expects to borrow to meet 
its capital expenditure requirements, but provides headroom over and above our capital 
requirements to allow for unusual cash movements, or to take advantage of low interest rates 
and to borrow in advance of need. 

 
Authorised Borrowing Limit 2020/21 2022/23 2023/24 

 £’m £’m £’m 

External Borrowing 303,483 312,307 302,002 

Other Long-term Liabilities 2,103 2,103 2,103 

External Borrowing for Now Housing 26,000 42,500 55,500 

Total 331,586 356,910 379,605 

 
F4.19 Operational Boundary: The operational boundary is based on the Council’s estimate of most 

likely scenario for external debt. It links directly to the Council’s estimates of capital expenditure, 
the capital financing requirement, and is a key management tool for in-year monitoring. The 
operational boundary below is set based upon our expected year end position and may be 
exceed during the year based on upon cashflow requirements, and the timing of borrowing 
repayments. 

 
Operational Boundary 2020/21 2022/23 2023/24 

 £’m £’m £’m 

External Borrowing 273,483 282,307 292,002 

Other Long-term Liabilities 2,103 2,103 2,103 

External Borrowing for Now Housing 26,000 42,500 55,500 

Total 301,586 326,910 349,605 

 
Investment Strategy 

 
F5.1 We holds significant invested funds, representing the income we have received in advance of 

our expenditure, plus the balances and reserves we hold. It is expected that our investment 
balances will range between £10m and £60m in the 2020/21 financial year. 

 
F5.2 Our non-treasury investments, such as investment in property, are covered separately by our 

investment strategy (Annex E of our MTFS). 

 
F5.3 Objective: To ensure funds are invested prudently, giving regard to the security and liquidity of 

investments, before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. We will aim to strike a balance 
between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of 
receiving unsuitably low investment income. 

 
F5.4 Strategy: Interest rates are forecast to remain low throughout 2020/21 and it is anticipated that 

we will make use of internal borrowing to fund our capital expenditure in year.  This means 
investment balances are likely to remain low.  

 
F5.5 In this environment we will need to maintain liquidity to meet our day to day expenditure and so 

will keep a large proportion of our investment balances in short term liquid investments. 
 
F5.6 Where cashflow allows, we will continue to look for opportunities to diversify into more secure 

and/or higher yielding asset classes and to identify core cash that can be invested for longer 
periods to improve yield. 

Page 130



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

36 
 

 
F5.7 Negative interest rates: There is a small chance that during 2020/21, the Bank of England 

could set its Bank Rate at or below zero, which is likely to cause negative interest rates for all 
low risk, short term investment options.  

 
F5.8 This situation already exists in many other European countries. In this event, security will be 

measured as receiving the contractually agreed amount at maturity, even though this may be 
less than the amount originally invested. 

 
Managing Investment Risks 

 
F6.1 We maintain a list of counterparties that we can invest with (section 7), and actively monitor the 

risk of investing with these counterparties.  
F6.2 Risk assessment and use of credit ratings: Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by our 

treasury advisors, who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit 
rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then: 

 

• No new investments will be made; 

• any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be; and 

• full consideration will be given to recall or sale of all other existing investments with the 
affected counterparty. 

 
F6.2 Where a credit rating agency announces that a rating is on review for possible downgrade (also 

known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”), and that indicates that a rating is 
likely to fall below the approved rating criteria, we will only invest in these institutions the 
investment can be withdrawn on the next working day. This policy will not apply to negative 
outlooks, which indicate a long term direction of travel rather than an imminent change of rating, 
and will only apply during  the period of the rating revew. 

 
F6.3 Other information on the security of investments: We understand that credit ratings are 

good predictors of investment default, but not perfect.  
 
F6.4 Full regard will be given to other available information on the credit quality of the organisations 

in which we invest, including credit default swap prices, financial statements, information on 
potential government support, reports in the quality financial press and analysis and advice from 
our treasury management advisor.  

 
F6.5 No investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit 

quality, even though it may otherwise meet other criteria such as minimum credit rating. 

 
F6.6 When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all organisations, 

as in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit ratings, but can be seen in other 
market measures. In such extreme circumstances, a report would be presented to members to 
provide an understanding of the impact to us. 

 
F6.7 In these circumstances, we will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit 

quality and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the required level of 
security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market conditions. 

 
F6.8 If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of “high credit quality” are 

available to invest our cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK 
Government, via the Debt Management Office, invested in government treasury bills, or with 

Page 131



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

37 
 

other local authorities. This will cause a reduction in the level of investment income earned, but 
will protect the principal sum invested. 

 
F6.9 Liquidity management: We use cash flow analysis to determine the maximum period for which 

funds may prudently be committed. Our forecasts are compiled on a prudent basis to minimise 
the risk of being forced to borrow on unfavourable terms to meet our financial commitments. 
Limits on long term investments are set with reference to the Council’s medium-term financial 
strategy and cash flow forecast. 

 
F6.10 Interest rate risk: We manage our exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view to 

containing interest costs and/or securing interest revenues, to meet budget expectations. This 
is achieved through the prudent use of approved instruments, methods and techniques, 
primarily to create stability, and certainty of costs and revenues, whilst retaining a sufficient 
degree of flexibility to take advantage of unexpected, potentially advantageous changes in the 
level or structure of interest rates.  Advice is taken from our treasury advisors in this respect. 

 
F6.11 Governance and Reporting: We maintain a key indicators to monitor and limit our risk 

exposure in relation to our investments: 
 
F6.12 Principal sums invested for periods longer than one year: The purpose of this indicator is to 

balance our liquidity needs, and control our exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking 
early repayment of its investments. The limits on the total principal sum invested to final 
maturities beyond one year will be: 

 
 2020/21 2022/23 2023/24 

 £m £m £m 

Sums invested beyond one year 5.000 5.000 5.000 

 
Approved investment counterparties 

 
F7.1 We may invest our surplus funds with any of the counterparties in the following table, subject to 

the cash limits (per counterparty) and time limits shown. The levels are unchanged from 
2019/20.  The table must be read in conjunction with the remainder of this section. 

 
Credit 
Rating 

Banks 
Unsecured 

Banks 
Secure

d 

Government Corporates 
Registered 
Providers 

UK Govt n/a n/a 
£ Unlimited 

50 years 
n/a n/a 

AAA 
£3m 

5 years 
£4m 

20 years 
£4m 

50 years 
£3m 

20 years 
£3m 

20 years 

AA+ 
£3m 

5 years 
£4m 

10 years 
£4m 

25 years 
£3m 

10 years 
£3m 

10 years 

AA 
£3m 

4 years 
£4m 

5 
years 

£4m 
15 years 

£3m 
5 years 

£3m 
10 years 

AA- 
£3m 

3 years 
£4m 

4 
years 

£4m 
10 years 

£3m 
4 years 

£3m 
10 years 

A+ 
£3m 

2 years 
£4m 

3 
years 

£4m 
5 years 

£3m 
3 years 

£3m 
5 years 

A 
£3m 

13 months 
£4m 

2 
years 

£4m 
5 years 

£3m 
2 years 

£3m 
5 years 

A- 
£3m 

6 months 
£4m 

   13 months 
£3m 

5 years 
£3m  

  13 months 
£3m 5 

years 

Pooled 
funds 

£4m per fund 

 

Page 132



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

38 
 

 

F7.2 Credit Ratings: Investment limits are set by reference to the lowest published long-term credit 
rating from a selection of rating agencies. Where available, the credit rating relevant to the 
specific investment or class of investment is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is 
used.  

 
F7.3 Banks Unsecured: These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should 

the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. This class includes accounts, 
deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, 
other than multilateral development banks.  

 
F7.4 Banks Secured: These investments are secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential 

losses in the unlikely event of insolvency, and means that they are exempt from bail-in. This 
class includes covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other collateralised 
arrangements with banks or building societies. Where there is no investment specific credit 
rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is secured has a credit rating, the higher of 
the collateral credit rating and the counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and 
time limits. The combined secured and unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed 
the cash limit for secured investments. 

 
F7.5 Government: These investments are not subject to bail-in and there is generally a lower risk of 

insolvency. Investments with the UK Central Government may be made in unlimited amounts 
for up to 50 years. This class includes loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national 
governments, regional and local authorities and multilateral development banks. 

 
F7.6 Corporates: These investments are not subject to bail- in but are exposed to the risk of the 

company going insolvent. This class includes loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by 
companies other than banks and registered providers.  

 
F7.7 Registered Providers: These bodies are tightly regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing 

and, as providers of public services, they retain the likelihood of receiving government support 
if needed. This class includes Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on the 
assets of registered providers of social housing and registered social landlords, formerly known 
as Housing Associations.  

 
F7.8 Pooled Funds: These are shares or units in diversified investment vehicles consisting of any 

of the above investment types, plus equity shares and property. These funds have the 
advantage of providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a 
professional fund manager in return for a fee. Short term Money Market Funds that offer same-
day liquidity and very low or no volatility will be used alongside instant bank accounts, while 
pooled funds whose value changes with market prices and/or have a notice period will be used 
for longer investment periods. 

 
F7.9 Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term but are more 

volatile in the short term. These allow diversification into asset classes other than cash without 
the need to own and manage the underlying investments. As these funds have no defined 
maturity date, but are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and 
continued suitability in meeting our investment objectives will be monitored regularly. 

 
F7.10 HSBC Group: As an exception to the criteria in the table above, the maximum limit for 

unsecured deposits in HSBC banking group is increased to £4m, subject to the bank’s lowest 
long term credit rating remaining at A+ or above. This is to allow balances up to £1m to be 
invested in an interest bearing call account when it is not cost effective to place the funds 
elsewhere. Overnight balances in the Council’s operating bank accounts at HSBC will not count 

Page 133



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

39 
 

towards their investment limit, on the basis that they cannot always be controlled and 
unexpected payments are often received. 

 
F7.11 Investment Limits: The maximum that will be lent to any one organisation (other than the UK 

government) will be £4m in order that no sum in excess of available reserves is put at risk in the 
case of a single default. A group of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single 
organisation for limit purposes. Limits will also be placed on investments in brokers’ nominee 
accounts and industry sectors as below.  

 
F7.12 Our treasury advisors generally recommend a secured bank deposit limit of 30% of general fund 

reserves and unsecured limit of 15%, to ensure resilience in the event of a default.  
 
F7.13 On the basis or General Fund reserves (including general, earmarked and capital balances) are 

anticipated to be £23.2m at 31 March 2020, this would mean limits of £6.96m and £3.48m 
respectively. Due to the short dated nature of the majority of our investments, and reserves 
being able to absorb more than one default, it is believed that the limits in the below table are 
currently acceptable. The situation will, however, be kept under continuous review. 

 
 

 Cash limit 

Any single organisation, except the UK Central Government £4m each 

UK Central Government Unlimited 

Any group of organisations under the same ownership £4m per group 

Any group of pooled funds under the same management £4m per manager 

Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s nominee account £10m per broker 

Registered providers and registered social landlords £6m in total 

Money market funds £28m in total 

 

Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives 
 

F8.1 The CIPFA Code requires us to clearly our policy on the use of derivatives.  We do not plan to 
use derivatives currently. 

 
F8.2 If required, we will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures 

and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce the overall level of the financial 
risks that we are exposed to. Any additional risks presented, such as credit exposure to 
derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when determining the overall level of risk. 

 
F8.3 Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and forward starting 

transactions, will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they present will be managed 
in line with the overall strategy. 

 
F8.4 Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets the 

approved investment criteria. The current value of any amount due from a derivative 
counterparty will count against the counterparty credit limits. 

 
F8.5 We will seek and consider external advice before entering into financial derivatives to ensure 

that we fully understand any implications. 
 
 

Page 134



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

40 
 

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 

 
F9.1 We have opted up to professional client status with our providers of financial services, including 

advisors, banks, brokers and fund managers. This allows us access to a greater range of 
services but without the greater regulatory protections afforded to individuals and small 
companies.  

 
F9.2 Given the size and range of the Council’s treasury management activities the Corporate Director 

(Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) believes this to be the most appropriate status. 

 
Policy on apportioning interest to the Housing Revenue Account 
 

F10.1 All long-term loans in the Council’s portfolio are assigned in their entirety to either the General 
Fund or the HRA pool at the time the loan is agreed. Interest payable and other costs/income 
arising from long-term loans (e.g. premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be 
charged/credited to the respective revenue account. 

 
F10.2 Differences between the value of the HRA loans pool and the HRA’s underlying need to borrow 

(adjusted for HRA balance sheet resources available for investment) will result in a notional 
cash balance which may be positive or negative. This balance will be measured each month 
and interest transferred between the General Fund and HRA at the Council’s average rate on 
investments, adjusted by credit risk. 

 

Page 135



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

41 
 

Annex G – Summary of Performance and Risk Indicators 
 

G1.1  This strategy supports our Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and is reviewed annually. 
It provides a summary of all of our key indicators used to monitor performance and manage risk.   

 
 Reserves and Balances 
 
 We will maintain minimum working balances as follows: 
 

 2019/20 

Minimum 

£’m 

2020/21 

Minimum 

£’m 

2020/21 

Minimum 

£’m 

General Fund 2.600 2.600 2.600 

Housing Revenue Account 2.640 2.718 2.832 

 
 Capital Expenditure and Financing 
  
 Based on our capital schemes, we expect our capital expenditure to be as follows: 

 

 2020/21 
£’m 

2021/22 
£’m 

2022/23 
£’m 

2023/24 
£’m 

2024/25 
£’m 

      

General Fund (GRF) 30.020 4.035 1.561 1.411 1.501 

Housing Revenue Account 37.257 42.832 28.101 17.061 16.349 

Sub-Total 67.277 46.867 29.662 18.472 17.850 

      

Loans to Now Housing (GRF)  25.418 17.072 12.770 18.595 3.603 

Total 92.695 63.939 42.432 37.067 21.453 

 
Based on this expenditure we expect our financing to be as follows: 
 

General Fund 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m £’m 

Grants and Contributions 13.009 1.292 0.592 0.592 0.592 

Reserves and Revenue 
Contributions 

4.015 1.508 0.884 0.819 0.909 

Borrowing 12.996 1.235 0.085 0.000 0.000 

Sub-Total 30.020 4.035 1.561 1.411 1.501 

      

Borrowing for Now Housing 25.418 17.072 12.770 18.595 3.603 

Total 55.438 21.107 14.331 20.006 5.104 

 
 

Housing Revenue Account 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m £’m 

Grants and Contributions 0.672 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Reserves and Revenue 
Contributions 

20.072 11.782 8.392 5.324 5.121 

Borrowing 16.513 31.050 19.709 11.737 11.228 

Total 37.257 42.832 28.101 17.061 16.349 

 

Page 136



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

42 
 

Based on the above expenditure and financing, we expect our capital financing requirement 
(CFR) to be: 
 

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m £’m 

General Fund 52.140 52.166 50.953 49.616 48.279 

Loans to Now Housing (GRF)  25.418 42.480 55.196 73.692 77.146 

Housing Revenue Account 234.590 244.241 241.250 228.787 214.215 

Total 312.148 338.887 347.398 352.095 339.64 

 
 Based on these capital plans, and the longer-term 30-year Housing business plan, we expect 

our HRA debt to be repaid in 23 years. 
 

We have set the following maturity structure limits for borrowing: 
 

Maturity Structure of Borrowing Upper Limit Lower Limit 

Under 12 months 20% 0% 

12 months and within 24 months 30% 0% 

24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 

5 years and within 10 years 80% 0% 

10 years and within 20 years 100% 0% 

20 years and above 100% 0% 
 

We have set the following authorised limits (maximum) for borrowing: 

 
Authorised Borrowing Limit 2020/21 2022/23 2023/24 

 £’m £’m £’m 

External Borrowing 303,483 312,307 302,002 

Other Long-term Liabilities 2,103 2,103 2,103 

External Borrowing for Now Housing 26,000 42,500 55,500 

Total 331,586 356,910 379,605 

 
We have set the following operational boundaries (expected levels) for borrowing: 

 
Operational Boundary 2020/21 2022/23 2023/24 

 £’m £’m £’m 

External Borrowing 273,483 282,307 292,002 

Other Long-term Liabilities 2,103 2,103 2,103 

External Borrowing for Now Housing 26,000 42,500 55,500 

Total 301,586 326,910 349,605 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 137



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

43 
 

 
 Investments (Cash/Treasury) 

 
We have set the following limits for long term investments: 
 

 2020/21 2022/23 2023/24 

 £m £m £m 

Sums invested beyond one year 5.000 5.000 5.000 

 
 
We have set the following counterparty limits: 
 

 Cash limit 

Any single organisation, except the UK Central Government £4m each 

UK Central Government Unlimited 

Any group of organisations under the same ownership £4m per group 

Any group of pooled funds under the same management £4m per manager 

Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s nominee account £10m per broker 

Registered providers and registered social landlords £6m in total 

Money market funds £28m in total 

 
 

Credit 
Rating 

Banks 
Unsecured 

Banks Secured 
Government Corporates 

Registered 
Providers 

UK Govt n/a n/a 
£ Unlimited 

50 years 
n/a n/a 

AAA 
£3m 

5 years 
£4m  

20 years 
£4m 

50 years 
£3m  

20 years 
£3m  

20 years 

AA+ 
£3m 

5 years 
£4m  

10 years 
£4m 

25 years 
£3m  

10 years 
£3m  

10 years 

AA 
£3m 

4 years 
£4m  

5 years 
£4m 

15 years 
£3m  

5 years 
£3m  

10 years 

AA- 
£3m 

3 years 
£4m  

4 years 
£4m 

10 years 
£3m  

4 years 
£3m  

10 years 

A+ 
£3m 

2 years 
£4m  

3 years 
£4m 

5 years 
£3m  

3 years 
£3m  

5 years 

A 
£3m 

13 months 
£4m  

2 years 
£4m 

5 years 
£3m  

2 years 
£3m  

5 years 

A- 
£3m 

6 months 
£4m 

13 months 
£3m 

5 years 
£3m 

13 months 
£3m  

5 years 

Pooled 
funds 

£4m per fund 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 138



Classification: Unrestricted 

  

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

44 
 

 Investments (Non-Treasury) 
 
We monitor a suite of indicators to monitor performance and risk of service based and 
commercial investments: 
 

 2018/19 

Actual  

£’m 

2019/20 

Estimate 

£’m 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£’m 

Income Generating Assets held for service purposes 

Ratio: Loan to value (CFR to asset base) £1 : £3.97 £1 : £3.84 £1 : £3.01 

Ratio: Principal cover (MRP to income stream) £1 : £13.12 £1 : £13.57 £1 : £13.45 

Ratio: Interest cover (interest cost to income) N/A N/A £1 : £32.22 

Non-Income Generating Assets held for service purposes 

Cost of borrowing in relation to council tax £6.67 £6.58 £18.09 

  Commercial Assets  

Ratio: Loan to value (CFR to asset base) N/A N/A* N/A* 

Ratio: Principal cover (MRP to income stream) N/A* N/A* N/A* 

Ratio: Interest cover (income to interest cost) N/A* N/A* N/A* 

 
*As there is currently no debt associated with these assets, these indicators have not been 
calculated. The value of assets was £5.615m at 31 Mrch 2019, and generated £428k. 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted

Summary of Special Expenses Impact on Band D Council Tax Appendix M

Parish

 Tax Base @ 

99.4%  

Collection Rate 

Expenditure
Reduction in 

Council Tax

Additional 

Council Tax

 Net Inc/(Dec) in 

Council Tax 

2020/2021

 Net Inc/(Dec) in 

Council Tax 

2019/2020

£ £ £ £ £

Ayot St Lawrence 69.2 0.00 (13.57) 0.00 (13.57) (13.27)

Ayot St Peter 114.7 0.00 (13.57) 0.00 (13.57) (13.27)

Essendon 432.9 2,550.00 (13.57) 5.89 (7.68) (7.02)

Hatfield 11,790.5 89,502.84 (13.57) 7.59 (5.98) (5.82)

North Mymms 4,391.2 0.00 (13.57) 0.00 (13.57) (13.27)

Northaw & Cuffley 3,070.0 48,860.00 (13.57) 15.92 2.35 0.26

Welwyn 4,664.2 33,065.40 (13.57) 7.09 (6.48) (6.55)

Welwyn Garden City 17,497.5 404,081.44 (13.57) 23.09 9.52 9.80

Woolmer Green 559.8 0.00 (13.57) 0.00 (13.57) (13.27)

Total 42,590.0 578,059.69

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 141



Classification: Unrestricted

Total Provision Special Expenses Appendix M

Essenden Northaw

Hatfield Hatfield & Cuffley
Open Allotments Community Open Play Public Total Open Allotments Community Open Playing Total Allotments Community Open Play Playing Total TOTAL

Spaces Centres Spaces Areas Conveniences Hatfield Spaces Centres Spaces Fields Welwyn Centres Spaces Areas Fields W.G.C

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Essendon Hatfield Hatfield Hatfield Hatfield Hatfield Northaw & CuffleyWelwyn Welwyn Welwyn 1 Welwyn Welwyn Garden CityWelwyn Garden CityWelwyn Garden CityWelwyn Garden CityWelwyn Garden City

Welwyn 2

Maintenance 1,160 3,097 0 6,030 0 0 9,127 30,800 237 0 22,273 0 22,509 7,046 11,910 16,450 0 0 35,406 99,003 

Other Expenses

Employees 720 10,513 0 3,710 14,157 0 28,380 9,300 803 0 13,700 7,225 21,729 23,914 0 10,120 19,463 135,743 189,239 249,368 

Premises 0 1,689 27,270 460 691 16,160 46,270 2,420 129 0 1,690 910 2,729 3,842 43,350 1,240 949 45,108 94,489 145,908 

Rent/Rates 0 0 0 3,200 0 0 3,200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,720 0 0 0 12,720 15,920 

Equipment 380 364 5,780 1,970 8,675 0 16,789 10,040 28 0 7,270 0 7,298 828 11,900 5,370 11,925 25,445 55,468 89,975 

Direct Overheads 60 0 0 310 0 0 310 1,560 0 0 1,130 946 2,076 0 0 840 0 14,183 15,023 19,028 

Income 0 (4,198) (26,290) 0 0 0 (30,488) (11,260) (321) (33,010) 0 0 (33,331) (9,551) (74,940) 0 (5,000) (23,920) (113,411) (188,490)

Operating Cost 2,320 11,465 6,760 15,680 23,523 16,160 73,587 42,860 876 (33,010) 46,063 9,081 23,009 26,079 4,940 34,020 27,337 196,558 288,934 430,711 

Departmental Overheads 230 5,574 0 1,170 9,172 0 15,916 6,000 426 5,290 4,340 0 10,056 12,680 22,620 3,200 12,608 64,039 115,147 147,349 

Total 2,550 17,039 6,760 16,850 32,694 16,160 89,503 48,860 1,302 (27,720) 50,403 9,081 33,065 38,759 27,560 37,220 39,946 260,596 404,081 578,060 

<---------Welwyn---------> <-------- Welwyn Garden City --------><-------- Hatfield -------->

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 142



Classification: Unrestricted

Additional Council Tax, per area, for each element of the Special Expenses Appendix M

Parish / Area Allotments
Community 

Centres
Open Spaces Play Areas Playing Fields

Public 

Conveniences
Total

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Ayot St Lawrence 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Ayot St Peter 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Essendon 0.00 0.00 5.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.89 
Hatfield 1.45 0.57 1.43 2.77 0.00 1.37 7.59 
North Mymms 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Northaw & Cuffley 0.00 0.00 15.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 15.92 
Welwyn 0.28 (5.94) 10.80 0.00 1.95 0.00 7.09 
Welwyn Garden City 2.22 1.58 2.13 2.28 14.89 0.00 23.10 
Woolmer Green 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

3.95 (3.79) 36.17 5.05 16.84 1.37 59.59 

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 143



Classification: Unrestricted

Allotments Appendix M

Plots

Hatfield 131 29.80%

Welwyn 10 2.30%

Welwyn Garden City 298 67.90%

Total 439

Allotments £ 29.8% 2.3% 67.9% 100.0%

Category of Expenditure 2020/21 Hatfield Welwyn

Welwyn 

Garden City Total

Maintenance 10,380 3,097 237 7,046 10,380 

Employees 35,230 10,513 803 23,914 35,230 

Premises 5,660 1,689 129 3,842 5,660 

Equipment 1,220 364 28 828 1,220 

Income (14,070) (4,198) (321) (9,551) (14,070)

Departmental Overheads 18,680 5,574 426 12,680 18,680 

Grand Total 57,100 17,039 1,302 38,759 57,100

Cost 17,039 1,302 38,759 57,100

Tax Base 11,790.5 4,664.2 17,497.5 33,952.2

Council Tax Charge for Special Expenses 1.45 0.28 2.22 3.95

The total net costs from the Allotments general budget (6080), is allocated proportionately based upon the number of plots within each area.

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 144



Classification: Unrestricted

Appendix M

Community Centres

Community Centres Welwyn: Hatfield:

Category of Expenditure

Hazel Grove 

Community 

Centre

Panshanger 

CC

Vineyard 

Barn CC Welwyn CC

Hilltop 

Community 

Centre 2020/21 Hatfield Welwyn

Welwyn 

Garden City TOTAL

Maintenance 3,100 1,000 7,810 0 0 11,910 0 0 11,910 11,910 

Premises 10,530 21,910 10,910 0 27,270 70,620 27,270 0 43,350 70,620 

Rent/Rates 2,050 6,560 4,110 0 0 12,720 0 0 12,720 12,720 

Equipment 1,990 5,780 4,130 0 5,780 17,680 5,780 0 11,900 17,680 

Income (6,770) (26,440) (41,730) (33,010) (26,290) (134,240) (26,290) (33,010) (74,940) (134,240)

Departmental Overheads 2,390 15,200 5,030 5,290 0 27,910 0 5,290 22,620 27,910 

Grand Total 13,290 24,010 (9,740) (27,720) 6,760 6,600 6,760 (27,720) 27,560 6,600 TRUE

Cost 6,760 (27,720) 27,560 6,600

Tax Base 11,790.5 4,664.2 17,497.5 33,952.2

Council Tax Charge for Special Expenses 0.57 (5.94) 1.58 (3.79)

The net costs of running community centres, excluding the capital charges, are directly allocated to area where community centre is located.  Each community centre has its 

own cost centre which is fully allocted to the relevent area.

Welwyn Garden City:

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 145



Classification: Unrestricted

Play Areas Appendix M

Sites

Hatfield 16 42.10%

WGC 22 57.90%

38

Play Areas £ 42.1% 57.9% 100.0%

Category of Expenditure 2020/21 Hatfield

Welwyn 

Garden City Total

Employees 33,620 14,157 19,463 33,620 

Premises 1,640 691 949 1,640 

Equipment 20,600 8,675 11,925 20,600 

Income (5,000) 0 (5,000) (5,000)

Departmental Overheads 21,780 9,172 12,608 21,780 

Grand Total 72,640 32,694 39,946 72,640 

Cost 32,694 39,946 72,640

Tax Base 11,790.5 17,497.5 29,288.0

Council Tax Charge for Special Expenses 2.77 2.28 5.05

NOTES

The costs from Play areas general budget (6421) are proportionately allocated between Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield based on the number of play areas 

in the each area.

Income relates to section 106 funding held and released overtime.  Relates to Welwyn Garden City projects.

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 146



Classification: Unrestricted

Playing Fields Appendix M

Playing Fields £ Welwyn

Category of Expenditure 2020/21 KGV Moneyhole Digswell Total Welwyn

Welwyn 

Garden City TOTAL

Employees 142,968 117,863 17,880 7,225 142,968 7,225 135,743 142,968 

Premises 46,018 45,108 0 910 46,018 910 45,108 46,018 

Equipment 25,445 24,840 605 0 25,445 0 25,445 25,445 

Direct Overheads 15,128 11,785 2,398 946 15,128 946 14,183 15,128 

Income (23,920) (19,932) (3,988) 0 (23,920) 0 (23,920) (23,920)

Departmental Overheads 64,039 64,039 0 0 64,039 0 64,039 64,039 

Grand Total 269,677 243,702 16,894 9,081 269,677 9,081 260,596 269,677

Cost 9,081 260,596 269,677

Tax Base 4,664.2 17,497.5 22,161.7

Council Tax Charge for Special Expenses 1.95 14.89 16.84

The total net costs of running playing fields, is provided by the contractor for this service, apportioned directly to the relevent areas.

WGC

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 147



Classification: Unrestricted

Open Spaces Appendix M

Open Spaces Year Welwyn: Welwyn:

Category of Expenditure
2020/21 Essendon Hatfield

Northaw & 

Cuffley
Danesbury

Mardley 

Heath

Welwyn 

Garden City TOTAL

Grounds Maintenance 6,770 100 530 2,720 1,550 420 1,450 6,770 

Maintenance Directly Apportioned 62,263 1,060 5,500 20,400 16,000 4,303 15,000 62,263 

Maintenance Directly Apportioned (1) 7,680 0 0 7,680 0 0 0 7,680 

Employees 37,550 720 3,710 9,300 10,790 2,910 10,120 37,550 

Premises 5,810 0 460 2,420 1,330 360 1,240 5,810 

Ground Rent 3,200 0 3,200 0 0 0 0 3,200 

Equipment 25,030 380 1,970 10,040 5,730 1,540 5,370 25,030 

Direct Overheads 3,900 60 310 1,560 890 240 840 3,900 

Income (11,260) 0 0 (11,260) 0 0 0 (11,260)

Departmental Overheads 14,940 230 1,170 6,000 3,420 920 3,200 14,940 

Grand Total 155,883 2,550 16,850 48,860 39,710 10,693 37,220 155,883 

Cost 2,550 16,850 48,860 39,710 10,693 37,220 155,883

Tax Base 432.9 11,790.5 3,070.0 4,664.2 4,664.2 17,497.5 42,119.3

Council Tax Charge for Special Expenses - Open Spaces 5.89 1.43 15.92 8.51 2.29 2.13 36.17

Total maintenance costs and ground rent for Opens Spaces, excluding capital charges, are allocated directly based on information from the Landscape and 

Ecology team.  The remainder of associated costs (equipment, overheads etc) are apportioned on a pro-rata basis to maintenance costs.

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 148



Classification: Unrestricted

Public Conveniences Appendix M

Public Conveniences Year 100.0% 100.0%

Category of Expenditure 2020/21 Hatfield TOTAL

Premises 16,160 16,160 16,160 

Grand Total 16,160 16,160 16,160

Cost 16,160 16,160

Tax Base 11,790.5 11,790.5

Council Tax Charge for Special Expenses 1.37 1.37

The costs from Public Conveniences budget (6492) relate wholly to the public conveniences in Hatfield.

Classification: Unrestricted

P
age 149



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix N 
 

Statement of the Chief Finance Officer 
 
Introduction 
 
The ‘Chief Finance Officer’ within the meaning of section 151 of the Local government Act 1972, 
and known as the S151 Officer, is required to make a statement on the adequacy of reserves and 
the robustness of the budget.  This is a statutory duty under section 25 of the 2003 Local 
Government Act which states the following: 
 
(1) Where an authority to which section 32 or 43 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
(billing or major precepting authority) or section 85 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 (c.29) 
(Great London Authority) applies is making calculations in accordance with that section, the chief 
finance officer of the authority must report to it on the following matters- 
 

(a) The robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the calculations, and 
  

(b) The adequacy of the proposed financial reserves. 
 
(2) An authority to which a report under this section is made shall have regard to the report when 
making decisions about the calculations in connection with which it is made. 
 
This includes reporting and taking into account: 
 

• The key assumptions in the proposed budget and to give a view on the robustness of 
those assumptions. 

 

• The key risk areas in the budget and to assess the adequacy of the Council’s reserves 
when reviewing the potential financial impact of these risk areas on the finances of the 
Council.  This should be accompanied by a Reserves Strategy. 

 
This report has to be considered and approved by Council as part of the budget approval and 
Council Tax setting process. 
 
This document concentrates on the 2020/21 General Fund and Housing Revenue budgets, the 
Capital Programme, Treasury Management, and also considers key medium term issues faced by 
the Council.   
 
Assurance Statement of the Council’s Section 151 Officer  
 
The following are the summary assurances and recommendations of the Council’s Section 151 
Officer.   
        
In relation to the 2020/21 Budgets I have examined the proposals and I believe that they are 
achievable, given the political and management will to implement them. The Council has a history 
of strong financial management, along with sound and robust monitoring of performance and 
budgets.  A comprehensive budget planning process has ensured the robustness of the budget 
proposals, and I believe the estimates are reasonable, given the inherent uncertainties and climate 
of economic change. 
 
 

Page 151



The forecast reserve levels in 2020/21 are appropriate and adequate, given the amount of known 
financial risks and future volatility, along with the potential for unknown financial risks.  The 
financial outlook beyond 2020/21 is dependent upon the outcome of the Spending Review, Fair 
Funding Review and Business Rates Retention system, which is also accompanied by a full reset 
of all the mechanisms within the business rates system. There are also continued uncertainties 
around New Homes Bonus funding.  Over the medium term (2021/22 to 2022/23), I will continue to 
closely monitor the achievement of savings targets which need to be delivered, to ensure reserve 
balances continue to be maintained at an adequate level.   
 
I, as the Council’s Section 151 Officer, consider the estimates for 2020/21 to be sufficiently robust, 
and that the level of reserves adequate for approval by the Council.  This statement is conditional 
upon the agreement of the budget proposals, appendices, strategies and policies contained within 
the budget report for 2020/21.  
 
Ka Ng, BSc(Hons), MSc, CPFA  
Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 

Page 152



1 

 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 3 FEBRUARY 2020 
FOR DISCUSSION AS PART OF ITEM 8 – BUDGET PROPOSALS AND MEDIUM- 
TERM FORECASTS 2020/21 
 
PROPOSED BUDGET AMENDMENTS FROM LIBERAL DEMOCRATS  

Proposed budget amendment 1 - Restore ward improvement budgets at £2500 
per ward for 2020/21 only, to be funded by drawdown from General Balances 

Budget and Council Tax implications and key changes to the budget report 

• If this is agreed, there will be no change to the council tax proposed as this is being 
funded by General Balances. 

• There are 16 wards in total and therefore the total expenditure will amount to £40k 
and the drawdown from General Fund balance will increase by a corresponding 
amount.  If this is approved, the budget summary will be revised to the following:  

Description 

Proposed 
Budget 
2020/21 per 
Full Council 
report 

Budget 
Amendment 
1 if 
accepted 

Difference 

  £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 

Net Controllable Income and Expenditure 19,150  19,190  40  

Net Recharge to the Housing Revenue Account (5,285) (5,285) 0  

Net General Fund Expenditure 13,865  13,905  40  

Taxation and non-specific grant income       

Income from Council Tax (10,855) (10,855) 0  

Business Rates Income (4,908) (4,908) 0  

Collection fund deficit/(surplus) 1,472  1,472  0  

New Homes Bonus Grant (1,028) (1,028) 0  

Other Operating Income and Expenditure     0  

Less Interest & Investment Income (30) (30) 0  

Minimum Revenue Provision and finance leases 1,131  1,131  0  

Borrowing Interest 378  378  0  

Revenue Contribution to Capital 0  0  0  

Parish Precepts 1,701  1,701  0  

Net Total before movements in reserves 1,728  1,768  40  

Other Movements in reserves       

Contribution (from) / to Earmarked Reserves in 
relation to Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit (1,465) (1,465) 0  

Other Contributions (from) / to Earmarked Reserves 37  37  0  

Contribution from GF Balances Before Pensions 
and Climate Change Contributions (299) (339) (40) 

        

Contribution to Pension Fund Earmarked Reserve 1,200  1,200  0  

Contribution to Youth Service Reserve 25  25  0  

Contribution to Climate Change Reserve 100  100  0  

Total Contribution from GF Balances (1,624) (1,664) (40) 

Key of variance column = (Decrease in expenditure/increase in income), Increase in 
expenditure/reduction in income 

 

Page 153



2 

 

 

Proposed budget amendment 2 – Increase capital project “Parking 
programme” by £100k for 2020/21.  The capital expenditure will increase from 
£250k to £350k, to be funded from General Fund capital reserves 

Budget and Council Tax implications and key changes to the budget report 

• If this is agreed, there will be no change to the council tax proposed as this is being 
funded by capital reserves.  The General Fund revenue budget is also not affected by 
this amendment. 

• The Capital Financing Summary (Appendix J) will be amended to: 

Capital Financing Summary (General Fund) 

2020/21 (Per 
Full Council 
Report) 
£'000 

Budget 
Amendment 2 if 
accepted 
£'000 

Difference 
£’000 

        

Expenditure (excluding Service Loans) 30,020 30,120 100 

Capital Receipts and Reserves (4,015) (4,115) (100) 

Capital Grants and Contributions (13,009) (13,009) 0 

Revenue Contribution to Capital 
                            

-  
                                 

-  
0 

Borrowing Requirement before MRP and Loans 12,996 12,996 0 

Service Loan Expenditure (Now Housing) 25,418 25,418 0 

Minimum Revenue Provision (976) (976) 0 

Loan Repayments 0 0 0 

Net Change in Borrowing Requirement for Year 
(inc loans) 

37,437 37,437 0 

Cumulative Borrowing Requirement (exc Loans) 52,140 52,140 0 

Cumulative Borrowing Requirement (inc Loans) 77,558 77,558 0 

Capital Reserves and Grants Balance at year end 6,013 5,913 (100) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 154



3 

 

 

Proposed budget amendment 3 – Increase Youth Service earmarked reserve 
by £25k to £50k 

Budget and Council Tax implications and key changes to the budget report 

• If this is agreed, there will be no change to the council tax proposed as this is 
funded by a drawing down of £25k from General Fund Balances.   

• If this is approved, the budget summary will be revised to the following: 

Description 

Proposed 
Budget 

2020/21 per 
Full Council 

report 

Budget 
Amendment 
3 if accepted 

Difference 

  £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 

Net Controllable Income and Expenditure 19,150  19,150  0  

Net Recharge to the Housing Revenue Account (5,285) (5,285) 0  

Net General Fund Expenditure 13,865  13,865  0  

Taxation and non-specific grant income       

Income from Council Tax (10,855) (10,855) 0  

Business Rates Income (4,908) (4,908) 0  

Collection fund deficit/(surplus) 1,472  1,472  0  

New Homes Bonus Grant (1,028) (1,028) 0  

Other Operating Income and Expenditure     0  

Less Interest & Investment Income (30) (30) 0  

Minimum Revenue Provision and finance leases 1,131  1,131  0  

Borrowing Interest 378  378  0  

Revenue Contribution to Capital 0  0  0  

Parish Precepts 1,701  1,701  0  

Net Total before movements in reserves 1,728  1,728  0  

Other Movements in reserves       

Contribution (from) / to Earmarked Reserves in 
relation to Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit (1,465) (1,465) 0  

Other Contributions (from) / to Earmarked Reserves 37  37  0  

Contribution from GF Balances Before Pensions 
and Climate Change Contributions (299) (299) 0  

        

Contribution to Pension Fund Earmarked Reserve 1,200  1,200  0  

Contribution to Youth Service Reserve 25  50  25  

Contribution to Climate Change Reserve 100  100  0  

Total Contribution from GF Balances (1,624) (1,649) (25) 

Key of variance column = (Decrease in expenditure/increase in income), Increase in 
expenditure/reduction in income 

 

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Part I 
For Decision 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 3 FEBRUARY 2020 
 
Recommendation from the Cabinet on 6 January 2020:- 
 
83.1 Peartree Conservation Area – Recommendation from the meeting of the 

Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel on 17 December 2019 
 
The Cabinet considered the designation of the Peartree area of Welwyn 
Garden City as a conservation area, following consultation. 
 
The Council had a duty to determine whether any parts of the Borough 
had special architectural or historic interest that should be preserved and 
enhanced. 
 
A character appraisal had judged that the Peartree area of Welwyn 
Garden City warranted designation as a conservation area. 
 
The Council consulted on whether to designate the Peartree area as a 
conservation area from 26 September to 11 November 2019.  This 
included a letter to all residents in the area and a public drop-in exhibition 
at Woodhall community centre on 15 October 2019. 
 
The Cabinet approved the recommendation of the Cabinet Planning and 
Parking Panel and RECOMMENDS to the Council that the Peartree area 
of Welwyn Garden City be designated as a conservation area. 
 

 

Page 157

Agenda Item 9a



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

Part I 
Main author: Colin Haigh 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
Peartree Ward 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET – 6 JANUARY 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
PEARTREE CONSERVATION AREA 
 
1 Executive Summary 

 
1.1 The Council has a duty to determine whether any parts of the borough have 

special architectural or historic interest that should be preserved and enhanced.   
 

1.2 A character appraisal has judged that the Peartree area of Welwyn Garden City 
warrants designation as a conservation area. 
 

1.3 The Council consulted on whether to designate the Peartree area as a 
conservation area from 26 September to 11 November 2019.  This included a 
letter to all residents in the area and a public drop-in exhibition at Woodhall 
community centre on 15 October 2019.   
 

1.4 The consultation generated 5 responses from statutory bodies and 20 responses 
from residents and these are summarised below. 
 

2 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That this Panel considers whether to recommend to Cabinet and Council that the 

Peartree area of Welwyn Garden City be designated as a conservation area. 
 

3 Explanation 
 

3.1 Section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
requires that “Every local planning authority shall from time to time determine 
which parts of their area are areas of special architectural or historic interest the 
character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance.”  These 
areas should then be designated as conservation areas.   
 

3.2 Section 71 continues that “It shall be the duty of a local planning authority from 
time to time to formulate and publish proposals for the preservation and 
enhancement of any parts of their area which are conservation areas.” 
 

3.3 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that plans should set out 
a positive strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of the historic 
environment.  Councils should maintain a historic environment record which 
assesses the significance of heritage assets and the contribution they make to 
the environment.  This information should be used to help formulate policies and 
determine planning applications.  It clarifies that councils should be sure that an 
area justifies conservation area status, so that the concept is not devalued. 
 

Page 159



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

3.4 In light of this legislation and policy framework, the Planning Service has 
embarked on a process of reviewing its eight existing conservation areas (Ayot 
St Lawrence, Ayot Green, Welwyn historic core, Welwyn Garden City town 
centre and west, Beehive, Old Hatfield historic core, Essendon historic core and 
Northaw historic core) and appraising whether any new areas also warrant 
conservation area status. 
 

Peartree character appraisal 
 

3.5 The character appraisal prepared by Place Services in Appendix 1 confirms that 
the Peartree area does warrant conservation area status.   
 

3.6 It describes Peartree as one of the first developments to be laid out to the east of 
Welwyn Garden City and benefits from a distinct character and appearance 
which contributes to the understanding of the garden city as a whole.  Much of 
the area’s architectural language, landscape and streetscape remains largely 
intact, providing an insight into an area that was planned to accommodate lower 
income housing, comparative to the larger homes built in the west. 
 

3.7 It is consider that Beechfield Road, Barnfield Road, Furzefield Road, Pinewood, 
Sandpit Road, part of Woodhall Lane, part of Holwell Road, part of Mill Green 
Lane and part of Cole Green Lane as well as Gainswood and Pondcroft cul-de-
sacs warrant designation.  This includes Woodhall shops, Woodhall community 
centre, Salvation Army church, Catholic Church of our Lady, Little Tulips day 
nursery and Pear Tree Inn public house. 
 

3.8 It is considered that Moss Green, Woodhall Court and Peartree Court have 
alternate or diluted character and that Four Acres and Hunters Close are too 
distant from the core area to warrant designation. 
 

Peartree consultation responses 
 

3.9 There are 25 responses to the consultation; 5 from statutory bodies, 10 from 
residents within the proposed area, 9 from residents outside the proposed area 
and 1 resident from an unknown location. 
 

3.10 The five statutory bodies were: 
 

 Historic England are unable to comment specifically due to the number of 
consultations that they receive. 

 
 Natural England does not consider that the designation of Peartree as a 

conservation area poses any likely risk or opportunity in relation to their statutory 
purpose, so does not wish to comment on this consultation. 

 
 National Grid has carried out an assessment with respect to the National Grid’s 

electricity and gas transmission apparatus which includes high voltage electricity 
assets and high-pressure gas pipelines.  It has identified that it has no record of 
such apparatus within the area. 

 
 Herts Highways considers that the main impact would be the enhanced materials 

and/or street furniture that might be required.  If the designation goes ahead HCC 
would require the borough council to ensure that mapping is updated so that 

Page 160



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

levels of maintenance and replacement appropriate to a conservation area are 
applied.  The same information would be used to advise utilities and works 
promoters that construction needs to be in accordance with the borough council’s 
planning requirements.  They have no objection. 

 
 Herts CC Growth and Infrastructure Unit have considered the document and 

have no comments to make. 
 

3.11 The views of residents are: 
 

 Yes No No 
response 

Question 1. Do you think the character 
appraisal for Peartree accurately reflects 
the special character and historic interest 
of the area? 

13 6 6 

Question 2. Do you agree with the 
proposal to designate Peartree as a 
conservation area? 

11 9 5 

Question 3. Do you agree with the 
proposed boundaries of Peartree 
conservation area? 

11 9 5 

Question 4: Do you think there is anything 
else that could be done to protect the 
character and appearance of the Peartree 
area? 

14 4 7 

 
3.12 The results indicate that there is mixed support for the designation of the 

Peartree area as a conservation area. 
 

3.13 In respect of Question 4, the following issues were raised: 
 

 Disagreement with the driveway proposals; street parking is messy.  Proposals 
could provide design guides for full frontage parking to keep it attractive and in 
character.  Most properties with hardstanding look neater than those with a single 
space and a garden, as long as there are still beds, uniformity and hedge 
retention. 

 
 The main blight throughout the town is traffic, parking and street furniture.  Off-

street parking on hardstanding has to be accepted and will become essential as 
electric car use and chargers develop.   

 
 Management under the EMS should be more than enough to preserve the 

character of the Peartree area. 
 
 Verges and avenues of trees should be maintained.  There should be a blanket 

prohibition of parking on verges which must be enforced. 
 
 No parking on grass verges. 
 
 Protect the verges.  People pave over their front gardens but don’t want to pay to 

have the curb dropped so the verges are constantly damaged. 

Page 161



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 
 Many people park on grass verges because there isn’t enough parking available.  

This needs enforcing.  Allow driveways on end of terrace and semi-detached 
properties, which would leave spaces available for mid terrace properties.  
Conservation status would mean that there would be a cost to residents applying 
for a driveway which may deter them which may affect the visual characteristics 
of a road with parking on grass verges.  There is no point thinking about a 
conservation area without a solution to parking issues. 

 
 Enforce a time limit on parking in the car park opposite the doctor’s surgery. 
 
 Have a resident parking scheme, more traffic calming measures and 

enforcement of restrictions on commercial traffic access.  There needs to be 
signage to identify Peartree as a historical area and not just a ward. 

 
 Original porches should be maintained. 
 
 Modern telecommunications are demanded throughout the country but require 

service cabinets, masts and duct inspection chambers – high capacity fibre optic 
internet provision could reduce satellite and aerial installations which would 
benefit the visual environment. 

 
 Unregulated works go unpunished which leads to visual characteristics of the 

roads being compromised. 
 
 This proposal seems to be just an extension of the EMS and the ‘rules’ everyone 

is asked to abide by to protect the unique appearance should be more robustly 
patrolled.  People in the area need to be educated on their obligations.  There 
should be reminders sent out with council tax bills on what it means to live within 
the EMS area. 

 
 No changes are needed – just keep doing a good job of what is done at the 

moment. 
 
 At Woodhall House there aren’t individual bins, there are huge topper bins which 

are eyesores and regularly get upended by anti-social youths.  It is no good 
having a lovely conservation area if there are on-going problems with litter and 
other problems are allowed to continue. 

 
 Maintenance is the key to retaining a traditional appearance, as it is not 

economical to try to fix a property or items in high state of disrepair.  This is 
usually the point where old gets replaced with new and the traditional ‘charm’ is 
lost.  This not only applies to properties, but also roads, hedges, bins, lamps, 
railings, trees, outbuildings etc. 

 
 Clear guidance should be published on what is and isn't acceptable within the 

existing EMS boundaries.  Residents have not necessarily considered the impact 
of changes to the area as a whole when they work on their homes and may be 
more minded to do so if they see a justification for it. 

 
 The appraisal may not be clear for some who live in the area therefore they are 

unable to make informed decisions as the cost implications are also not clear.  

Page 162



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

The existing EMS should be sufficient enough to preserve the look of the area 
without imposing unnecessary additional cost to residents and the public purse.  
This proposal has given no consideration to the impact on the people that live in 
the area who happen to be the poorest in WGC.  The majority of housing in this 
area is also council and not privately owned.  Other considerations are the 
additional cost to homeowners for the use of specified materials and the potential 
impact of not being able to implement greener measures for their homes.  

 
 Would like to see the other half of Holwell Road included – Why have the older 

and important houses opposite Holwell Primary School been excluded from the 
plan?  These display architectural features distinctive of the houses/roads chosen 
and are more historically significant.  Could these be considered?  There is a 
concern that by subdividing Peartree into those in the conservation and those not 
may re-prioritise resources.  For instance the east side of Holwell Road has seen 
deterioration in its aesthetic over the last decade – increased parking on grass 
verges, litter and paving of vast driveways. 

 
 The report showed lack of understanding about the day to day life in Peartree.  

Criticisms of uPVC windows, hardstanding, security cameras and pull-down 
hoardings and designation the day nursery and café/day room of the church as 
negative quality buildings all reveal a mentality that puts preservation of the 
‘historic’ look of the area above residents’ needs. 

 
 The quality of the area should be valued as much as other areas of the town and 

should receive the same care and maintenance. 
 
 Verges and trees should be maintained to an acceptable standard across the 

proposed conservation area, including a prohibition of verge parking.  Funding for 
this could be considered/resourced through a joint venture initiated by both 
WHBC and Herts CC. 

 
 Important for residents so have pride in their community. 
 
 There needs to be awareness of the demographic of the area.  It is a working 

class area and by imposing a conservation area it will make it harder for people 
to make amendments to their properties.  It is hard enough to buy a property and 
even harder to climb the ladder so most people can only afford to extend their 
current properties.  This might make it less appealing for people as it is another 
loop to go through. 

 
 The convex footprint of the Woodhall shopping parade is an example of appalling 

retail design by today’s standards.   This encourages petty crime and leads to the 
necessity of metal shutters.  The service area behind the shops is not fit for 
purpose.  Rather than conserving this area it should be earmarked for total 
redevelopment in a compatible architectural design in the future. 

 
 Homeowners are divided between the benefits that a conservation area brings 

versus the needs of families to extend their homes.  WGC homes are small and 
families will always require expansions.   

 
 The demographic of Peartree requires consideration.  There are many local 

authority tenants that do not care for their front of house appearance. 

Page 163



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 
 The initiative is welcomed – some moved to the area because they liked the fact 

that front gardens simply can’t just be pulled up and turned in to a car park, 
remove trees and hedges, and that there is protection of unique characteristics. 

 
 Peartree is evolving all the time and doesn’t need to be conserved as the houses 

in the main are not of architectural interest.  There are one or two in the area but 
not necessarily in Peartree which have already been over developed. 

 
 The Peartree area is already beautiful with a lot of trees. 
 
 Why does the proposed area not cover all of Peartree?  This area is covered by 

EMS but isn’t administered properly and people have made changes to their 
properties that should not have been allowed.  Now those changes will be 
protected even though they shouldn’t be there. 

 
 A window on the landing at Woodhall House (the previous Barclays Bank 

entrance) was smashed by hooligans in August.  On 15 October it still hadn’t 
been repaired even though the area is meant to be inspected and cleaned every 
week by the council.  It is pointless having a conservation area if these things are 
allowed to continue. 

 
 Turning Peartree into a conservation area is not the right step.  It is already in the 

EMS which has been doing its job successfully.  By introducing a conservation 
area the overlap would become too significant, and tax payers don’t like to see 
job duplicity and would rather see the money invested somewhere where there is 
a positive difference.  Therefore as the EMS already exists there is no point in 
adding to it. 

 
 Although it is important to retain a traditional look of the properties and 

surroundings, the concerns of a conservation area are that families will be put 
under more financial pressure due to: rising cost of maintenance; longer approval 
time; application permissions associated with cost; use of traditional materials, 
e.g. replacing double glazing uPVC vs timber has cost and maintenance 
implications; and use of approved materials and applicable methods. 

 
 Energy demands are growing and the planet can’t keep up with the growth.  The 

long term drive should be to make our buildings more ecological and energy 
efficient, hence using modern materials in the building industry should be 
supported not denied. 

 
 The area is suffering with crime and anti-social behaviour problems, which should 

be the focus of resources rather than implementing additional schemes to restrict 
what people can and can’t do to their homes.  
 

3.14 Three key issues emerge from these comments: parking/hardstanding/verges, 
the cost of home improvements and the estate management scheme. 
 

3.15 Parking is a perennial problem.  The creation of more hardstandings has the 
benefit of removing cars from the street but creates a less green, more urban 
environment and often results in the loss of hedges.  The Council and Herts 

Page 164



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

County Council are keen to resist parking on verges but it is difficult to enforce 
and can serve to make on-street parking even worse. 
 

3.16 The designation of Peartree as a conservation area means that planning officers 
will be looking for proposals that protect and enhance the area, which includes 
careful attention to design and the use of materials.  The Council has called a 
climate change emergency and planning policies can therefore look more 
favourably on proposals for energy efficient technologies. 
 

3.17 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is responsible for administering the planning 
system and the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme.  It is 
recognised that there are similarities and overlaps between conservation area 
and EMS rules.  Officers take the view however that if an area is worthy of 
conservation area status then this should happen regardless of whether it is also 
covered by the EMS.  This situation already exists for the west of the town and 
Beehive area which are both conservation areas and part of the EMS.  It is also 
worth noting that EMS only covers residential properties and their gardens, 
whereas conservation areas include everything within their boundary including 
commercial and retail buildings, streets, verges, open space, street furniture, etc. 
 

3.18 One response recommended that Ravenfield Road and Peartree Lane should 
also be considered for conservation area designation.  The Council has 
commissioned Place Services to assess the value of this area and will bring a 
separate report to a future meeting of this Panel. 
 

4 Legal Implications 
 

4.1 Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
states that the Council must advertise the designation of a conservation area via 
an advert in the Welwyn Hatfield Times and the London Gazette and must inform 
Historic England and the MHCLG Secretary of State. 
 

4.2 Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
states that the designation of a conservation area must be registered as a local 
land charge on all properties in the area. 
 

5 Financial Implications 
 

5.1 The financial implications of designating a conservation area is that anyone 
wishing to make changes to their property will need to apply for planning 
permission and pay the associated fee.  The Council will receive these fees but 
use more officer time to determine such applications. 
 

5.2 Although it is not a planning matter, the designation of a conservation area may 
have an impact on properly values, depending on whether it is perceived as a 
desirable protection or a hindrance to making changes to properties.  A study 
undertaken by English Heritage and the London School of Economics in 2012 
found that houses in conservation areas sell at a premium and show a greater 
appreciation in value than those in other areas, even when adjusted for the kind 
of property and where it is located. 
 

6 Policy Implications 
 

Page 165



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

6.1 The positive implications of designating Peartree as a conservation area are that 
policies will be in place to preserve and enhance its character and to resist poor 
quality development proposals that harmed its character.  The character 
appraisal sets out opportunities for enhancement and management proposals to 
help protect and enhance the character of the area that would be used in the 
determination of planning applications. 
 

6.2 The negative implications of designating Peartree as a conservation area are that 
it will remove nationally permitted development rights.  Those wishing to make 
changes to the external appearance of their property, to demolish any building or 
to carry out works to a tree would need planning permission.  It is a criminal 
offence to carry out demolition in a conservation area within planning permission.  
The Council could take enforcement action against breaches of planning control 
and will rank breaches as a higher priority than those not in a conservation area. 
 

6.3 If the designation is agreed, the character appraisal and management plan will 
become a material consideration in the determination of planning applications. 
 

7 Risk Management Implications 
 

7.1 There are no risk management implications associated with this report, although 
it should be noted that some residents have opposed the designation of the 
conservation area. 
 

8 Security and Terrorism Implications 
 

8.1 There are no security or terrorism implications associated with this report. 
 

9 Procurement Implications 
 

9.1 Place Services provide heritage advice to the Council through a service level 
agreement. 
 

10 Climate Change Implications 
 

10.1 There are no direct climate change implications associated with this report.  It 
should be noted however that the designation of a conservation area means that 
some permitted development rights relating to energy efficient technologies are 
removed and such works require planning permission. 
 

11 Human Resources Implications 
 

11.1 There are no human resources implications associated with this report.  It is 
worth nothing however that conservation area work is part of the planning policy 
function, which is currently busy progressing the Local Plan. 
 

12 Health and Wellbeing Implications 
 

12.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications associated with this report.  
The protection and enhancement of the character of Peartree area as a 
conservation area may contribute to the wellbeing of residents. 
 

Page 166



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

13 Communications and Engagement Implications 
 

13.1 The designation of Peartree as a conservation area will require formal letters to 
be sent to all properties within the designated area, wider communication to other 
interested parties, an advert in the Welwyn Hatfield Times, an advert in the 
London Gazette, a letter to Historic England, a letter to the MHCLG Secretary of 
State and its registration as a local land charge on all affected properties. 
 

14 Link to Corporate Priorities 
 

14.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021 and 
particularly Priority 2 Our Environment to enhance spaces. 
 

15 Equalities and Diversity 
 

15.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 
 

Name of author Colin Haigh 
Title Head of Planning 
Date December 2019 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Peartree Conservation Area report, to CPPP on 3 July 2019 and Cabinet on 9 July 2019 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Peartree Conservation Area Character Appraisal (Place Services, March 2019) 
 
2. Schedule of all affected properties in Peartree area 

 

3. Consequences of conservation area designation 
 

4. Consultation responses 
 

 

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Part I 
For Decision 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 3 FEBRUARY 2020 
 
Recommendation from the Cabinet on 6 January 2020:- 
 
84.3 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan (Forward Plan Reference 

FP931) 
 
The Cabinet considered the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 
2020-2050 setting out the Council’s strategic plan for managing its social 
housing stock and noted that any comments from the Cabinet Housing 
Panel on 15 January would be returned to the Special Cabinet on 
21 January 2020 for consideration before final recommendations were 
made to the Council for adoption.  No comments were made by the Panel. 
 
The Housing Revenue Account Business Plan set out the Council’s 
strategic plan for managing and maintaining its social housing stock. 
 
It set out in detail the Council’s short to medium term plans and priorities 
for its asset management and housing management services and provided 
a thirty year forecast on stock investment requirements and financial 
planning. 
 
The Cabinet approved the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2020-
2050 and RECOMMENDS it to the Council for adoption. 

 
 

Page 169

Agenda Item 9b



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Sian Chambers 
Executive Member: Cllr Nick Pace 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET 6 JANUARY 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) BUSINESS PLAN 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The Housing Revenue Account Business Plan sets out the council’s strategic 
plan for managing and maintaining the council’s social housing stock. 

1.2 It sets out in detail the council’s short to medium term plans and priorities for its 
asset management and housing management services and provides a thirty year 
forecast on stock investment requirements and financial planning. 

1.3 This report will also be presented to Cabinet Housing Panel on 15 January and 
any changes will be presented to Special Cabinet on 21 January, in order for it to 
recommend to Council at its meeting on 3 February 2020. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Cabinet to approve the Housing Revenue Business Plan 2020-2050 and note 
that any comments from the Cabinet Housing Panel will be returned to Special 
Cabinet on 21 January 2020 for consideration, before final recommendations are 
made to Full Council for adoption. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Since the introduction in 2012 of the Housing Revenue Account self financing 
arrangement, the council has had a greater degree of control over the use and 
management of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

3.2 The HRA Business Plan sets out the vision for the future of council housing in 
our Borough 

3.3 The thirty year Business Plan has been developed within the context of longer 
term strategic and resource planning process. 

3.4 The plan sets out how we will, through effective management and planning within 
the HRA, support the council’s wider strategic aim to meet housing need and to 
provide high quality homes. 

3.5 Council housing is managed by the Housing Operations service, in conjunction 
with the Property Services team, which oversees the repair, maintenance and 
investment needs of the homes.  The Community and Housing Strategy team 
supports these teams through developing strategy across all housing services. 

3.6 As at 31 March 2019, there were 7218 general needs properties, 1690 sheltered 
properties and 1303 leasehold flats within the HRA. 

3.7 The HRA also contains three designated homeless hostels – at Howlands 
House, Hazelgrove House and Inspira House.  These sites comprise 21 shared 
flats (63 individual rooms) and 75 self-contained properties respectively 

Page 171



- 2 - 

3.8 There are 593 garages let within the HRA 

3.9 There are also a small number of properties owned within the HRA, but leased to 
other providers to provide specialist supported housing for adults with learning 
difficulties. 

3.10 Due to the Right to Buy, there are on average 40 homes sold annually.  However 
the council is replenishing stock through the Affordable Housing Programme, 
both through building new homes and acquiring homes on the open market.  The 
council’s current target is to maintain a stock of 9000 or more rented units within 
the HRA 

3.11 The key aims for the housing management services is to  

 maximise rental and other income 

 let properties as quickly as possible 

 ensure tenants have the necessary support and advice to manage their 
tenancy, and where there are support needs, live as independently as 
possible 

 robustly manage anti-social behaviour 

 offer tenants and leaseholders opportunities to get involved in the housing 
service and have their say 

3.12 The self-financing environment enables a pro-active approach to asset 
management planning.  An update Asset Management Strategy for the HRA is 
currently being prepared. 

3.13 In 2016 a stock condition validation exercise was carried out, which underpins 
the current strategy for investment in homes, to ensure they meet the Decent 
Homes Standard. The council reports nearly 100% compliance with the Decent 
Homes Standard.  The exceptions being 36 properties which are considered to 
be non-decent, but due to design are uneconomic to be made decent and 17 
refusals (where tenants have said they do not want the improvements) 

3.14 Page 27 of the draft Business Plan contains a table which sets out the stock 
investment requirements over the next thirty years.  Based on today’s values, just 
under £348 million investment is required over the thirty year plan period. 

3.15 The responsive repairs and void maintenance, together with the majority of 
planned investment work, is currently undertaken by Mears under a 15 year 
partnership contract.  The contract ends in October 2022, with no contractual 
opportunity to extend the term.  Re-procurement of the service is underway with 
a number of key milestones already met.  The timescale includes an eight month 
mobilisation/de-mobilisation period, which will be used to embed new processes 
and systems and to source and occupy new shared office premises, with the 
successful contractor. 

3.16 A Housing Delivery Strategy has been agreed, which sets out the proposals for a 
five year programme of direct development and property acquisitions. 

Page 172



- 3 - 

3.17 As part of the Affordable Housing Programme the council has already built 52 
properties, now managed within the HRA and also acquired a total of 212 
properties via the Open Market Purchase programme. 

3.18 We have plans in place to deliver around 340 new homes for the HRA in the next 
five years, with the team working on other schemes which will add to this 
programme.  Highlights being the redevelopment of Howlands House, Burfield 
Close and Minster Close – which will deliver over 200 new homes. 

Implications 

Legal Implication(s) 

3.19 The Council has various housing duties and powers, including duties and powers 
in relation to homelessness under Part VII of the Housing Act 1996. 

3.20 Section 167 of the Localism Act 2011 gave effect to Schedule 15 of that Act and, 
since the coming into force of Schedule 15, English local authorities have been 
required to be self-financing in relation to their housing stock, financing their 
housing stock from their own rents. 

3.21 Part 3 of the Business Plan identifies certain of the changes introduced by the 
Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 and the Housing and Planning Act 2016.  

3.22 It is not a legal requirement to produce an HRA Business Plan; however it is 
good practice and helps provide a good framework for long term strategic 
planning. 

4 Financial Implication(s) 

4.1 The Housing Revenue account is a ringfenced account funded from dwelling 
rental income, which must demonstrate sustainability over the longer term. 

4.2 Part seven of the plan (pages 37-38), sets out the forecasts of the plan over the 
medium term, and demonstrates that plans will allow the council to maintain its 
minimum working balance requirements (5% of income).  

4.3 Also included in the plan (page 41), are key sensitivity tests applied to the 
business plan model. These tests demonstrate that the plan is resilient in the 
longer term to changes in market conditions.  

4.4 Appendix A and B provide a snapshot of the medium term forecasts (years 1-5) 
and longer term forecasts (year 30). 

5 Risk Management Implications 

5.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

5.2 There are no risks related directly to this report.  There are strategic and 
operational risks mapped for all aspects of housing revenue account activities, 
which are monitored appropriately 

5.3 The production of the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan document is in 
itself a risk control, as it is a helpful tool to assist with strategic planning for the 
service and development of new homes. 

 

Page 173



- 4 - 

6 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

6.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising from this report 

7 Procurement Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report 

 

8 Climate Change Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report, however the 
Asset Management Strategy will include measures the council is and plans to 
take to reduce carbon emissions and to tackle fuel poverty. 

9 Human Resources Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no human resource implications arising from this report 

10 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

10.1 Good quality housing is linked to improved health and well being 

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no communication and engagement implications arising from this 
report. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The HRA Business Plan supports the council’s overall vision for the borough ‘to 
make Welwyn Hatfield a great place to live, work and study with a vibrant, 
growing economy’ 

12.2 The vision set out in the council’s Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 
Strategy is ‘to provide local people with opportunities to access good quality 
homes which they can afford to live in and where they can enjoy settled, secure 
and healthy lives’.  The HRA Business Plan objectives help to meet the 
objectives which underpin these visions. 

12.3 Specific priorities are to ‘deliver more housing to meet the housing needs of local 
people’ and to ‘make the best use of housing in the borough’.  Both are key 
objectives set out in the Business Plan. 

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

Name of author Sian Chambers 
Title Head of Community and Housing Strategy 
Date 3 December 2019 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

Appendices to be listed  

Draft Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 

Page 174



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Janet Pilbeam 
Executive Member: Cllr Fiona Thomson 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 3 FEBRUARY 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTON, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2020/21 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to approve the council’s Pay Policy Statement for 
2020 / 21.  
 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 It is recommended that the Pay Policy Statement, for the period 2020 / 21 be 
approved. 
 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Section 38(1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires English local authorities to 
produce a Pay Policy Statement for each financial year. 

 

3.2 The legislation requires the Pay Policy Statement to cover disparate aspects of 
Remuneration Policy.  For this reason, the Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) 
strongly recommends local authorities use the opportunity to set out their overall 
rewards strategy for the whole workforce, and not to limit themselves to matters 
specifically required by the Act and statutory guidance.  Consequently, the 
attached policy document is designed to extend beyond legal requirement and be 
more transparent about all aspects of remuneration. 
 

3.3 The specific matters, which must be included in the Council’s statutory pay policy 
are as follows: 
 

 The level and elements of remuneration for each chief officer; 

 The remuneration of its lowest paid employees (together with a definition 
of ‘lowest paid employees’ and its reasons for adopting that definition); 

 The relationship between the remuneration of its chief officers and other 
officers; and 

 Other specific aspects of chief officers’ remuneration: (i.e. remuneration 
on recruitment increases and additions to remuneration, any use of 
performance related pay and bonuses, termination payments and 
transparency) 

 

3.4 For the purposes of the Pay Policy Statement, senior management means ‘chief 
officers’ as defined by s43 of the Localism Act.  The posts falling within the 
statutory definition are set out below, with details of their basic salary as at 1 April 
2020 included in section 6 of the appended Pay Policy Statement: 

Page 175

Agenda Item 10



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

- 2 - 

a) Chief Executive; 
b) Corporate Directors; 
c) Heads of Service. 

 

3.5 Pay Multiples 

3.5.1 The current pay levels within the Council define the multiple between the mean 
pay and the Chief Executive as a ratio 4.94:1 and; between the mean pay and 
average Chief Officer as a ratio of 3.22:1.  The multiple between the median 
(average) full time equivalent earnings and the Chief Executive is a ratio of 
5.50:1 and; between the median (average) full time equivalent earnings and 
average Chief Officer is a ratio of 3.53:1. 
 

3.5.2 Whilst the Chief Officer ratio has marginally changed in relation to the average 
salary, the salaries of the Chief Officers’ has remained stable.  As a result of staff 
changes in the organisation and vacant posts, the average salary that has 
decreased. 
 

 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The Localism Act 2011 requires full Council approval of the Pay Policy 
Statement. 

 

4.2 The Council is required to produce the information detailed in paragraph 3.3 of 
this report in order to comply with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.  
There are no impacts on the pay and conditions of employees arising from this 
report. 
 

4.3 As soon as is reasonably practicable after approving a Pay Policy Statement, the 
council must publish it in such manner as it thinks fit, which must include 
publication on the council’s website. 
 

 
5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The financial implications of this report have been budgeted for in the financial 
year 2020 / 21. 
 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 There are no Risk Management implications arising from this report. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no Security and Terrorism implications arising from this report. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no Procurement implications arising from this report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no Climate Change implications arising from this report. 

Page 176



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

- 3 - 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no direct Human Resource implications arising from this report. 

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no communication and engagement implications arising from this 
policy.  The statement is published on the Council’s website. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority  
Our Council, and specifically to the achievement of achieving Value for Money, 
being an Employer of Choice and is linked to a statutory requirement, under 
Section 38(1) of the Localism Act 2011 legislation. 

13 Equality and Diversity 

An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
 
Name of author Claire Papworth 2774 
Title Human Resources Advisor 
Date 9 January 2020 
 
 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

Appendices to be listed  

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

1 
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 
Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 

 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1. This statement sets out the Council’s position in relation to pay for its senior 

managers and lowest paid employees in compliance with section 38 of the 
Localism Act 2011 (the Act) and the statutory guidance on Openness and 
Accountability issued under section 40 of the Act. 
 

1.2. The policy sets out the Council’s approach to the pay and remuneration of its 
senior managers. 

 
1.3. This statement covers the financial year 2020/21.  The statement is updated 

and approved annually by full Council.  This statement is published on the 
Council’s website. 

 
2. Scope of Pay Policy 

 
2.1. The Council’s senior managers are defined within the Council’s Constitution 

and are shown in the following table: 
 

Head of Paid Service  Chief Executive 

Directors Corporate Director, Public Protection, Planning and 
Governance 
Corporate Director, Housing and Communities 
Corporate Director, Resources, Environment and 
Cultural Services (Section 151 Officer) 

Heads of Service  Head of Environment 
Head of Resources (deputy Section 151 Officer) 
Head of Law and Administration (Monitoring Officer) 
Head of Public Health and Protection 
Head of Housing and Community 
Head of Planning 
Head of Policy and Culture 
Head of Property Services 
Head of Housing Operations 

 
3. General Terms and Conditions of Employment and Remuneration of 

Employees  
 

3.1. All employees of the Council are employed as part of the Single Status 
Agreement, under either the National Agreement on Pay and Conditions of 
Service of the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services 
(commonly known as the ‘Green Book’), or the Joint Negotiating Committee 
(JNC) for Chief Officers and Chief Executives. 
 

3.2. The Council uses a pay spine that commences at national Spinal Column Point 
(SCP) 1 and ends at local SCP 39.  This pay spine is divided into 12 pay 
bands, most having four incremental points with the exception of Scales A to D. 
A contains only one scale point and Scale B to D contain 2 scale points. Scale 

Page 179



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

2 
 

A is the lowest grade and Scale M is the highest of these pay grades.  Posts 
are allocated to a pay scale through a process of job evaluation.  We use the 
National Local Government Job Evaluation Scheme for this purpose. 

 
3.3. For the purpose of this Policy Statement, employees on Scale A are defined as 

our lowest paid employees.  At 1 April 2019, the annual value of SCP 1 is 
£18,067 and is exclusive of Outer Fringe Allowance, currently £609 per annum. 

 
3.4. The values of the SCPs in pay grades are increased in line with the national 

pay awards agreed by the NJC for Local Government Services.   
 
3.5. The pay award effective from 1 April 2020 has not been agreed nationally and 

negotiations will commence following the outcome of the December 2019 
general election.  The Outer Fringe Allowance is also subject to national 
negotiations.  Pay scales will be adjusted accordingly, once agreement has 
been reached. 

 
4. General Principles Applying to Remuneration of Employees 

 
4.1. On recruitment, individuals will be placed on the appropriate SCP within the pay 

grade for the post that they are appointed to.  This decision will be made by the 
appropriate Director and will take various factors into account, including the 
experience of the candidate, the level of competition for the post and the 
difficulty of recruiting to the post.  
 

4.2. Individuals will normally receive an annual increment, subject to the top of their 
grade not being exceeded.  In exceptional circumstances (e.g. examination 
success), individuals will receive accelerated increments.  Again, this is subject 
to the top of their grade not being exceeded. 

 
4.3. The Council does not apply performance related pay or bonuses.  
 
4.4. On ceasing to be employed by the Council, individuals will only receive 

compensation: 
 
a) in circumstances that are relevant (e.g. redundancy); and 
b) that is in accordance with our published Policy Statement on how we 

exercise the various employer discretions provided by the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS),  (Annex A); and/or 

c) that complies with the specific term(s) of a settlement agreement.  
 
4.5. The Council can consider flexible retirement under its pension discretions.  This 

is where an employee draws their pension and carries on working at a lower 
grade and/or on reduced hours.  It is available to LGPS members who are aged 
55 or over, and who, with the Council’s consent, permanently reduce their 
hours and/or reduce their grade.  The employee’s pension is actuarially 
reduced if paid before normal state pension age.  This policy applies to all 
grades including Chief Officers, however, this is at the Council’s discretion. 

 
4.6. The employees within the scope of this Pay Policy are entitled to join the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  Currently employees contribute 

Page 180



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

3 
 

between 5.5% and 12.5% of their salary.  For the purpose of this statement, 
employees included with the table in section 2.1 contribute between 8.5% and 
12.5%, depending on where they are within the salary range. It has not been 
confirmed if this rate will change for 2020/21. 
 

4.7. Any decision to re-employ an individual, who was previously employed by the 
Council and, on ceasing to be employed was in receipt of a severance or 
redundancy payment, will be made on merit. The Council will not however, 
normally engage such an individual under a contract for services.  

 
4.8. Any honorarium will only be paid in exceptional circumstances as agreed by 

Corporate Directors.  
 

4.9. Employees required to use their cars for work related travel are able to reclaim 
45 pence per mile.  A number of employees with a contract prior to 2012, who 
are required to have a motor car at their disposal, receive a car user allowance 
of £846 per annum.  These employees are able to claim mileage rates of 36.9p 
to 45p per mile. 

 
4.10. Employees that joined the Council from the Community Housing Trust under 

the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE), 
receive car allowances at the following rates: 

 

ESSENTIAL 
USERS 

451-999cc 1000-1199cc 1200cc+ 

Lump Sum £846 £963 £1,239 

Rate per mile 
Up to 8500 miles 

36.9p 40.9p 50.5p 

Over 8500 miles 13.7p 14.4p 16.4p 

CASUAL  
USERS 

 

Rate per mile 
Up to 8500 miles 

46.9p 52.2p 65.0p 

Over 8500 miles 13.7p        14.4p  16.4p 

 
4.11. Subsistence allowances are no longer agreed nationally.  The Council pays the 

allowance at the rates below, which have remained static since those last 
agreed nationally in 2011.  The ability to claim an allowance for tea was 
removed in March 2019. 

 
Breakfast £7.21  
Lunch £9.95  
Evening Meal £12.33 

 
5. Apprenticeships 

 
5.1. The Council is committed to offering apprenticeships to people wishing to gain 

experience whilst working towards a qualification.  Apprentices are contracted 
under a learning agreement and receive a minimum of £358 per week inclusive 
of weighting allowance, depending on the qualification they are undertaking. 

 

Page 181



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

4 
 

6. Remuneration of Corporate Management Team 
 

6.1. The remuneration of the Chief Executive and Corporate Directors was subject to 
a full and wide ranging review carried out by independent specialist consultants 
in 2009. The recommendations of the consultants were considered by Council 
Members (including both Leaders of the Opposition) and formed the basis of the 
agreement made by Members in October 2009.   
 

6.2. The salary range for Corporate Management team can be seen in the table 
below: 

 

Post Range 

From To 

Chief Executive £120,525 £131,481 

Corporate Directors £90,392 £98,611 

Heads of Service £60,255 £71,569  

 
Figures are exclusive of Outer Fringe Allowance, currently £609 per annum. 
 
The above salary ranges may change if pay awards are awarded within the 
financial year and before the next pay policy statement is produced. 
 

7. Chief Executive 
 

7.1. The Chief Executive is the Council’s Head of Paid Service.  There are three 
incremental points in the Chief Executive grade.   
 

7.2. The Chief Executive also receives a Returning Officer fee in respect of Borough 

and Parish Council Elections. The fees are currently £317 for each contested 

ward and £80 for each uncontested ward, and £262 for each contested 

Town/Parish ward and £66 for each uncontested Town/Parish ward. If a 

Town/Parish ward is contested along with a Borough ward the fee is £368 for the 

first Borough ward that is combined with a Parish ward election where one 

Borough Councillor is being elected.  Fees for conducting Parliamentary 

Elections, Referendums, European and Police and Crime Commissioners are 

determined by way of a Statutory Instrument. 

 
8. Corporate Directors  

 
8.1. There are three Corporate Directors reporting to the Chief Executive namely;  

 Public Protection, Planning and Governance 

 Housing and Communities 

 Resources, Environment and Cultural Services (Section 151 Officer).   
 

8.2 There are three incremental points in the Corporate Director grade.  
 

9. Remuneration of other Chief Officers  
 

Page 182



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

5 
 

9.1. There are nine Heads of Service reporting to the three Corporate Directors.  In 
addition, there are eleven Service Managers reporting to the Heads of Service. 
These posts are evaluated using the HAY job evaluation methodology to ensure 
roles are graded fairly, accurately and consistently.  The job evaluation 
methodology allocates each role a grade. 
 

9.2. The roles occupied by the Heads of Service are; Head of Environment, Head of 
Resources (deputy Section 151 Officer), Head of Law and Administration 

(Monitoring Officer), Head of Public Health and Protection, Head of Housing and 
Community, Head of Planning, Head of Policy and Culture, Head of Property 
Services and Head of Housing Operations. 

 
9.3. There are seven incremental points in the Heads of Service grade. 
 
9.4. The Head of Law and Administration undertakes the duties of the Monitoring 

Officer for the authority and, these duties attract a fixed annual payment of 
£5000. 

 
9.5. The Monitoring Officer has an appointed deputy in receipt of a fixed annual 

payment of £3000 in relation to these additional duties.  An organisation chart is 
attached as appendix A, covering staff in the top three levels in the organisation 
including: 

 

 Grade 

 Job Title 

 Department & Team 

 Employment Status (Permanent or Fixed Term Temporary) 

 Contact Details 

 Salary in £5,000 brackets, consistent with the details published under 
section 34 of the Transparency Code, and 

 Salary Ceiling (the maximum salary for the grade). 
 
10. Pay Multiples 

 
10.1. The relationship between the remuneration of Chief Officers and all other staff  

for the year 2020/21 is given below:  
 

  2019/20 2020/21 

Ratio Chief Executive's pay to the mean pay for the 
Council 

 
4.59:1 

 
4.94:1 

Ratio of average Chief Officers' pay to mean pay for 
the Council 

 
2.96:1 

 
3.22:1 

Ratio of the highest paid salary (which is currently 
paid to the Chief Executive) to the median pay for the 
Council “The pay multiple” 

 
 

5.28:1 

 
 

5.50:1 

Ratio of average Chief Officers' pay to median pay for 
the Council 

 
3.15:1 

 
3.53:1 

 
 
 

Page 183



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

6 
 

11. Other Benefits Relating to Pay 
 

11.1. The employees within the scope of this policy are entitled to participate in the 
Council’s Salary Sacrifice Scheme, which includes a Childcare Voucher 
scheme, whereby any employee can sacrifice part of their salary for childcare 
vouchers. These vouchers are exempt from income tax or National Insurance 
contributions and therefore represent a saving for employees who then use 
them to purchase childcare.  The childcare salary sacrifice scheme was 
closed by the government, therefore only those who were in receipt of the 
vouchers prior to 6 April 2017 retain this benefit.  A similar scheme is also 
open to employees to allow them to purchase bicycles. 
 

11.2. The Council has an eye care voucher scheme in place to fulfil its obligation to 
provide those employees using a VDU with an annual eye test and payment 
for a prescription required solely for VDU work.  Vouchers are issued in 
accordance with the Councils’ Eye Test Policy. 

 
12. Trade Union Facility Time 

 
12.1. The Data Transparency Code 2014 requests that local authorities publish the 

following information on Trade Union Facility Time: 
 

 Total number (absolute number and full time equivalent) of staff who are 
union representatives (including general, learning and health and safety 
representatives); 3 representatives, 2.6 FTEs  

 Total numbers (absolute number and full time equivalent) of union 
representatives who devote at least 50 per cent of their time to union 
duties; Nil. 

 Names of all trade unions represented in the local authority; 
               Unison and GMB 

 A basic estimate of spending on unions (calculated as the number of full 
time equivalent days spent on the union duties multiplied by the average 
salary) £1155.62 

 A basic estimate of spending on unions as a percentage of the total pay bill 
(calculated as the number of full time equivalent days spent on unions 
duties multiplied by the average salary divided by the total pay bill); 
0.01% of total pay bill 

 
13. Review 

 
13.1. The Localism Act 2011 requires relevant authorities to prepare a Pay Policy 

Statement for each financial year. Our next Statement is scheduled to be for 
2021/22 and will be submitted to Council for approval by 31 March 2021. 
 

13.2. If it should be necessary to amend this 2020/21 Statement during the year that 
it applies, an appropriate resolution will be made by Council.     

 
13.3. A copy of the Pay Policy will be published on the Council’s website and the 

Corporate Governance group will be responsible for the implementation and 
publication of the Pay Policy.      

 

Page 184



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

7 
 

13.4. Paragraph 35 of the Data Transparency Code 2014 requires local authorities to 
place a link on their website to this published data or place the data itself on its 
website, together with a list of responsibilities (for example, the services and 
functions they are responsible for, budget held and number of staff) and details 
of bonuses and ‘benefits-in-kind’, for all employees whose salary exceeds 
£50,000.  The key differences between the requirements under this Code and 
the Regulations referred to above is the addition of a list of responsibilities, the 
inclusion of bonus details for all senior employees whose salary exceeds 
£50,000 and publication of the data on the authority’s website. 

 
 

14. Background Documents  
 

 The Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data 
Transparency. 

 Openness and Accountability in Local Pay: Guidance under section 40 of 
the Localism Act 2011. 

 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Constitution 

 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council LGPS Discretionary Policy 

 Car Mileage Allowances 

 Flexible Retirement Policy 

 Redundancy and Redeployment Policy  
 

 
 

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Head of Policy & Culture 
Permanent 

Salary band COB max 
£71,569 

Salary CIRCA £70,000 
 

Rob Bridge 
Chief Executive 

CE salary band max £131,481 
Salary CIRCA £130,000 

 

Simone Chinman Russell 
Corporate Director 

Permanent 
Director salary band max £98,611 

Salary CIRCA £100,000 
 

Ka Ng 
Corporate Director 

Permanent 
Director salary band max £98,611 

Salary CIRCA £100,000 
 

Nick Long 
Corporate Director 

Permanent 
Director salary band max £98,611 

Salary CIRCA £100,000 
 

Head of Resources 
Permanent 

Salary band COB max 
£71,569 

Salary CIRCA £70,000 
 

Head of Environment 
Permanent 

 Salary band COB max 
£71,569 

Salary CIRCA £70,000 
 

Head of Housing & 
Community 
Permanent 

Salary band COB max 
£71,569 

Salary CIRCA £70,000 
 

Head of Housing 
Operations 
Permanent 

Salary band COB max 
£71,569 

Salary CIRCA £70,000 
 

Head of Property 
Services 

Permanent 
Salary band COB max 

£71,569 
Salary CIRCA £70,000 

 

Head of Planning 
Permanent 

Salary band COB max 
£71,569 

Salary CIRCA £70,000 
 

Head of Public Health 
& Protection 
Permanent 

Salary band COB max 
£71,569 

Salary CIRCA £65,000 
 

Head of Law & 
Administration 

Permanent 
Salary band COB max 

£71,569 
Salary CIRCA £70,000 

 

Chief Executive 

Executive Directors 

Heads of Service 

 

Key 

P
age 187



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 BUDGET PROPOSALS AND MEDIUM TERM FORECASTS 2020/21
	Appendix A - General Fund Summary 2020-21
	Appendix B - General Fund Head of Service Summaries 2020-21
	Appendix C - Revenue Efficiencies 2020-21
	Appendix D - Revenue Growth 2020-21
	Appendix E - General Fund Fees and Charges 2020-21
	Appendix F Housing Revenue Account Summary 2020-21
	Appendix G - Housing Revenue Account Summary of changes 2020-21
	Appendix H - Housing Revenue Account Fees and Charges 2020-21
	Appendix I - Capital Programme 2019-20 to 2024-25
	Appendix J - Capital Financing Summary 201920 to 202425
	Appendix K - Capital Reserve and Grant balances 201920 to 202425
	Appendix L - Medium Term Financial Strategy and Financial Governance Framework
	Appendix M - Special Expenses
	Appendix N - Statement of the Chief Finance Officer V2
	Proposed Budget Amendments

	9a Peartree Conservation Area
	Peartree Conservation Area report updated

	9b Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan
	HRA Business Plan cover report

	10 PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2020/21
	10a - Pay Statement 2020
	10b - Pay Statement structure 3 tiers


